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Agenda

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

9:00 a.m.

James R. Mills Building
Board Meeting Room, 10th Floor
1255 Imperial Avenue, San Diego

This information will be made available in alternative formats upon request. To request an agenda in an
alternative format, please call the Clerk of the Board at least two working days prior to the meeting to ensure
availability. Assistive Listening Devices (ALDs) are available from the Clerk of the Board/Assistant Clerk of the
Board prior to the meeting and are to be returned at the end of the meeting.

ACTION
RECOMMENDED

1. Roll Call
2. Approval of Minutes - October 30, 2014 Approve
3. Public Comments - Limited to five speakers with three minutes per speaker. Others

will be heard after Board Discussion items. If you have a report to present, please

give your copies to the Clerk of the Board.
4. Appointment of Ad Hoc Nominating Committee for Recommending Appointments to Appoint

MTS Committees for 2015 (Sharon Cooney)

Action would appoint an Ad Hoc Nominating Committee to make recommendations
to the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the Board to serve as
Vice-Chair, Chair Pro-Tem and on MTS and non-MTS committees for 2015.

Please SILENCE electronics
during the meeting

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490  (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
(nonprofit public benefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trolley, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab administrator for seven cities.

MTS member agencies include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, €l Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santee, and the County of San Diego.
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CONSENT ITEMS

6.

10.

11.

12.

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE) Railway Company Quarterly Reports and
Ratification of Actions Taken by the SD&AE Board of Directors at its Meeting on
October 21, 2014

Los Angeles - San Diego - San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor Agency Joint Powers
Agreement

Action would approve the proposed amendments to the 2013 Amendment to the
Joint Powers Agreement Concerning the Los Angeles - San Diego - San Luis Obispo
Corridor Rail Agency (LOSSAN) to ensure that the official agency name is correctly
stated as the Los Angeles - San Diego - San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor Agency
throughout the document.

Investment Report - September 2014

Increased Authorization for Legal Services - Opper & Varco, LLP

Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to: (1) execute Amendment
No. 2, MTS Doc. No. G1429.2-12 with OPPER & VARCO, LLP to pay current and
future legal expenses through the remainder of fiscal year 2015; and (2) ratify one
prior contract amendment entered into under the CEO's authority.

Colocation Data Center Facility Services - Contract Award

Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to: (1) execute MTS Doc.
No. G1765.0-15 with American Internet Services, LLC (AIS) for colocation data
center facility services for a two-year base period with two one-year options periods
(for a total of 4 years); and (2) exercise each option year at the CEQ's discretion.

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) Website Replacement Project
Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute MTS Doc. No.
G1694.0-14 with Steer, Davies, Gleave for replacement of the MTS website.

Addition of the Following Positions: One (1) F/T HR Representative II; Two (2) F/T
Bus Operator Training Instructors; One (1) P/T Administrative Assistant

Action would authorize the CEO to add: One (1) HR Representative Il to the FY15
budget, increasing the total Full Time Equivalent (FTE) position from 3 to 4 at Grade
#7 ($47,531 - $74,391); Two (2) Bus Operator Training Instructors to the FY15
budget, increasing the total Full Time Equivalent (FTE) position from 6 to 8 at Grade
#6 ($41,512 - $64,970); and One (1) P/T Administrative Assistant to the FY15 budget
at $15.00 per hour.

CLOSED SESSION

24.

None.

Oral Report of Final Actions Taken in Closed Session

NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS

25.

None.

information

Approve

Information

Approve

Approve

Approve

Approve



DISCUSSION ITEMS

30.

Fiscal Year 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Erin Dunn and Larry
Marinesi; Kenneth Pun and Gary Caporicci of Pun & McGeady)

Action would receive the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR).

REPORT ITEMS

45.

46.

47.

48.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

Year End Operations Report (Wayne Terry, Bill Spraul and Denis Desmond

Fiscal Year 2014 Final Budget Comparison (Mike Thompson)

Operations Budget Status Report for September 2014 (Mike Thompson)

Chula Vista Transit Update (Paul Jablonski)

Chairman's Report

Audit Oversight Committee Chairman's Report

Chief Executive Officer's Report

Board Member Communications

Additional Public Comments Not on the Agenda

If the limit of 5 speakers is exceeded under No. 3 (Public Comments) on this agenda,
additional speakers will be taken at this time. If you have a report to present, please
furnish a copy to the Clerk of the Board. Subjects of previous hearings or agenda
items may not again be addressed under Public Comments.

Next Meeting Date: December 11, 2014

Adjournment

Receive

Information

Information

Information

Information

Information

Information

Information



MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101

MINUTES
October 30, 2014
Roll Call

Chairman Mathis called the Board meeting to order at 9:04 a.m. A roll call sheet listing Board
member attendance is attached.

Approval of Minutes

Mr. Ewin moved to approve the minutes of the September 18, 2014, MTS Board of Directors
meeting. Mr. McClellan seconded the motion, and the vote was 10 to 0 in favor, with Messrs.
Alvarez, Minto, Cunningham, Roberts and Gastil absent.

Public Comments

Matt Yagyagan — Mr. Yagyagan, with Alliance San Diego, commented on the MTS advertising
policy. He stated that Alliance San Diego submitted a few nonpartisan voting advertisements to
MTS, but the advertisements were rejected for different reasons. Mr. Yagyagan said that
Alliance San Diego is disappointed with MTS for not allowing the advertisements to be posted.
He urged MTS to change its advertising policy to allow nonpartisan voting advertisements and
for MTS to partner with Alliance San Diego in all future elections.

Andrea Guerrero — Ms. Guerrero, with Alliance San Diego, displayed the rejected advertisement
to the Board members. She stated that Alliance San Diego urges MTS to revisit its
advertisement policy and its current restrictions. Ms. Guerrero said that voter awareness needs
to be raised and MTS should allow these nonpartisan voting advertisements to be posted on its
buses and trolleys. She stated that Alliance San Diego would like to partner with MTS in future
elections.

Board Member Comments

Mr. Gloria commented that this subject was briefly discussed at the Executive Committee
meeting on October 23, 2014, and that it was his understanding that this matter will be
discussed at a future Board meeting. Ms. Landers stated that she is expecting to bring this item
to the Board meeting in either December or January.

CONSENT ITEMS

6.

Adoption of the 2015 San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) Executive Committee and
Board of Directors Meeting Schedule
Action would adopt the 2015 Executive Committee and Board of Directors meeting schedule.

Number Not Used
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

51

16.

Adoption of Amended 2014 Conflict of Interest Code

Action would: (1) adopt Resolution No. 14-12 amending the MTS Conflict of Interest Code
pursuant to the Political Reform Act (PRA) of 1974, (2) adopt the amended 2014 MTS Conflict
of Interest Code; and (3) forward the amended 2014 MTS Conflict of Interest Code to the
County of San Diego (the designated code-reviewing body).

Investment Report - August 2014

Centralized Train Control (CTC): SDSU Fire Life Panel System Upgrade and Technical Support
- Addendum 17 Project Scope of Work Amendment 24.1

Action would approve an amendment to Addendum 17 Project Scope of Work (MTS Document
No. G0930.17-04.24.1) for the flagging and Construction Management services for the SDSU
Fire Life Panel System Upgrade project.

Procurement and Installation of Replacement Coupler and Draft Gear for SD-100 Light Rail
Vehicles (LRV) - Contract Award

Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute MTS Doc. No. L1192.0-14
with Dellner, Inc. for the procurement and installation of 104 buffer couplers, plus four spare
coupler and draft gears for SD-100 LRVs.

Green Line Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) System Upgrades - Contract Award

Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute MTS Doc. No. PWL155.0-
14 with Kratos Public Safety & Security Solutions, Inc. (Kratos) for the procurement and
installation of MTS Green Line CCTV systems upgrades.

Siemens Industry, Inc. - 11th Amendment to Contract No. L0914.0-10 - Procurement of
Ultrashort Low-Floor Vehicles

Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute the 11th Amendment to MTS Doc.
No. L0914.0-10 documenting contract close out agreements and authorizing a one-time partial
release of retention.

Revisions to Board Policy No. 51 Regarding Claims Against the San Diego Metropolitan Transit
System, a California Public Agency, or its Subsidiaries, San Diego Transit Corporation or San
Diego Trolley, Inc.

Action would approve and adopt the updated Board Policy No. 51.

Clarifier Waste Transportation and Recycling Services - Contract Award

Action would authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute MTS Doc. No. PWG157.0-
14 with Asbury Environmental Services for the provision of clarifier waste removal,
transportation and recycling services.

San Ysidro Radio Tower Lease with the City of San Diego
Action would authorize the CEO to execute MTS Doc. No. G1757.0-15 with the City of San
Diego for a lease of space at their Moody Canyon radio site in San Ysidro.

Action on Recommended Consent ltems

Ms. Emerald moved to approve Consent Agenda ltem Nos. 6 — 16. Ms. Bragg seconded the
motion, and the vote was 13 — 0 in favor, with Mr. Minto and Mr. Cunningham absent.
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CLOSED SESSION

24.

Closed Session ltems

The Board convened to Closed Session at 9:10 a.m.

a. CLOSED SESSION — CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8;
Property: 8650 Tech Way, San Diego, California (Assessor Parcel Nos. 369-220-85)
Agency Negotiators: Paul Jablonski, Chief Executive Officer; Karen Landers, General
Counsel; and Tim Allison, Manager of Real Estate Assets
Negotiating Parties: Excel Hotel Group
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

The Board reconvened to Open Session at 9:14 a.m.

Oral Report of Final Actions Taken in Closed Session

Karen Landers, General Counsel, reported the following:

a. The Board received a report and gave instructions to real property negotiators.

NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS

25.

None.

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

30.

Amendments to Ordinance No. 4, Establishing a Metropolitan Transit System Fare-Pricing
Schedule (Karen Landers)

Karen Landers, General Counsel, provided a presentation regarding the proposed amendments
to Ordinance No. 4. She stated that this agenda item was brought to the September 18, 2014
Board meeting as the first reading of the amendments to Ordinance No. 4. Ms. Landers said
that the amendments are minor and include similar changes to the Comprehensive Fare
Ordinance, which was approved by SANDAG on July 25, 2014. The amendments include
recognizing the UPass Agreement with UCSD, adding the Rapid brand name to the Fare
Ordinance as well as other minor, non-substantive changes. Ms. Landers briefly described the
background and details of the UPass Agreement with UCSD and its students. She also
commented that the other minor change includes changing the term “curb-to-curb” to “origin-to-
destination” in the definition of ADA Complementary Paratransit Services.

Ms. Sotelo-Solis inquired what the new definition was for the Rapid services. Ms. Landers
stated that MTS recently implemented Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) service and branded that
service as “Rapid”. Mr. Jablonski also commented that the MTS I-15 Premium Express service
has been in place for a long time and that service is now branded as “Rapid”. He also noted
there will be other Rapid services opening in the other areas of San Diego under the Rapid
brand name.
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31.

Action Taken

Mr. McClellan moved to (1) Read the title of Ordinance No. 4, An Ordinance Establishing a
Metropolitan Transit System Fare-Pricing Schedule; (2) Waive further readings of the ordinance;
(3) Adopt the proposed ordinance amendments; and (4) Direct publication of an ordinance
summary. Ms. Emerald seconded the motion, and the vote was 14 to 0 in favor, with Mr.
Cunningham absent.

Amended and Restated MTS-BNSF-NCTD San Diego Subdivision Shared-Use Agreement
(Karen Landers)

Ms. Landers provided a presentation on the proposed amendments to the MTS, Burlington
Northern Santa Fe (BNSF), North County Transit District (NCTD) Shared-Use Agreement. She
reviewed the background of the shared use agreement; reasons for the amended shared use
agreement, including the confusing indemnification and liability provisions. Ms. Landers
discussed the restated and amended items of the shared use agreement, including MTS-NCTD
project coordination and protocol; updates related to all parties with derailments; third-party
liability; insurance; good faith negotiations and the removal of arbitration provisions. Lastly, she
reviewed the other items relating only to NCTD and BNSF.

Mr. Alvarez inquired whether the shared liability relates only to trains being involved and not
with other vehicles. Ms. Landers replied that is correct that it only relates to MTS, BNSF and
NCTD trains.

Mr. Jablonski provided brief information on the Santa Fe Depot station. He commented that the
station has been increasingly used by other agencies’ trains and operations. Mr. Jablonski
stated that in the future, the Santa Fe Depot station will need more track capacity. Currently, the
station has six tracks, two of which are for MTS and the other four tracks are for heavy rail
operations. Mr. Jablonski stated that heavy rail is projected to have large increases in the near
future which would result in possibly needing more track capacity. He stated that he will keep
the Board informed of any new information that arises.

Action Taken

Mr. Alvarez moved to (1) Approve the Amended and Restated Shared-Use Agreement between
MTS, Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF), and North County Transit District (NCTD); and (2)
Authorize the Chief Executive Officer and/or the General Counsel to make minor, non-material
changes to the document prior to execution by all parties. Ms. Emerald seconded the motion,
and the vote was 15 to 0 in favor.

REPORT ITEMS

46.

San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) Pension Investment Status (Larry Marinesi and Jeremy
Miller, Representative from RVK) (Taken Out of Order)

Larry Marinesi, Chief Financial Officer, introduced Jeremy Miller, with RVK. Mr. Miller reviewed
the SDTC Pension Investment Status as of Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014. Mr. Miller stated
that the ending market value for the fiscal year was $165,209,671.00, a 13.21% return. He
commented that this benchmark well outperformed the actuarial rate, which was 7.5%.
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47.

He discussed the schedule of investable assets; asset allocation versus target allocation; and
asset allocation by Manager. Mr. Miller also reviewed the asset allocation and comparative
performance as of June 30, 2014.

Board Member Comments

Mr. Cunningham complimented RVK on a job well done. He inquired if the $19 million gain was
net of fees or gross of fees. Mr. Miller replied that amount is gross of fees. Mr. Cunningham
asked what the overall investment fees were for the past fiscal year. Mr. Miller stated he did not
have the exact number readily available. Mr. Marinesi replied that the average fees are
approximately 60 basis points. Mr. Miller also commented that the fees are slightly lower than
the industry average.

Mr. Alvarez inquired how often the portfolio is changed. Mr. Miller stated that they meet on a
quarterly basis or more and they change the portfolio on an as needed basis. He noted they are
continuously looking at the portfolio for any changes or updates.

Semi-Annual Security Report (January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014) (Bill Burke) (Taken Out
of Order)

Bill Burke, Director of Transit System Security, provided a presentation on the semi-annual
security report for January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014. He reviewed the Part | incidents on
Rail including incidents against persons, property and non-patron related theft incidents. He
reviewed the comparison of these incidents from 2013 to 2014. Mr. Burke discussed the Part Il
arrests on Rail and compared these results from 2013 to 2014. He reviewed the Part | incidents
and Part Il arrests on SDTC buses. He also discussed the ‘If You See Something, Say
Something’ campaign and commented that it has been very successful. Mr. Burke stated that
MTS received a $100,000 training grant and was able to apply that to the Rock and Roll
Marathon. He noted there were many regional agencies that participated in the event. Mr. Burke
discussed the Special Enforcement Unit (SEU) results on zero tolerance fare inspections. He
noted that the fare evasion rate for January through June 2014 was 3.3%. Mr. Burke discussed
a recent felony vandalism arrest of a man who had vandalized MTS trolleys on multiple
occasions. He also announced that MTS received a law enforcement grant of $1,000,000, which
will go towards funding overtime costs for local law enforcement agencies to conduct
enforcement operations within and along the MTS trolley system. Lastly, Mr. Burke discussed
the officer body cameras and stated that the cameras are now in use and have reduced the
number of complaints received. The cameras allow for much quicker investigation of allegations
of officer misconduct.

Board Member Comments

Ms. Emerald inquired if the cameras make a difference. Mr. Burke stated the cameras are
making a large difference and the complaints against the Code Compliance Inspectors have
lowered. Ms. Emerald asked if there will be a media event related to the received grant and the
law enforcement officers that will be working with MTS and on the trolleys. Mr. Burke stated that
they do anticipate holding a media event.

Ms. Sotelo-Solis stated that she sits on the SANDAG Public Safety Committee. She asked how
other cities will participate in the grant. Mr. Burke replied that each city will be given a dedicated
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45.

portion of time to participate in this program. He said that each city will have one officer that will
participate. Ms. Sotelo-Solis asked if the DU! incident in the report was an employee. Mr. Burke
stated the DUI incident was not an employee, but someone from the public who drove into the
MTS right of way.

Mr. Ramirez inquired about the arrest records and the statistics on the chances someone will be
caught if they commit a crime. Mr. Burke stated that there has been an ongoing process where
riders are not aware of when officers will be on the trolleys and there is a consistently high
presence of officers on the system. Mr. Ramirez asked if there are higher penalties for crimes if
they are committed on a public transit system. Mr. Burke replied that the crimes are weighted
similarly to other crimes and they do not necessarily have a higher penalty. Mr. Jablonski stated
there are no special penalties for public transit crimes. He commented that MTS requested the
U.S. Attorney to consider categorizing the copper wire thefts as terrorist acts, but the request
was denied.

Ms. Bragg commented that people should focus on the story that San Diego’s public transit
system is very safe.

Ms. Sotelo-Solis asked how long MTS keeps recorded videos. Ms. Landers stated that the
length of time is limited by the technology. MTS has thousands of hours of video every day and
has retention of approximately 7 to 21 days. She stated that MTS cannot guarantee the video
after that timeline and encourages people to request videos within the stated timeframe. Ms.
Landers also commented that once the video item that has been requested is clipped, it is held
indefinitely.

Pacific Imperial Railroad (PIR) Desert Line Agreement — Status Update (Karen Landers)

Ms. Landers provided a report on the Pacific Imperial Railroad (PIR) Desert Line Agreement.
She reviewed the PIR milestones achieved, including the submission of the Business Plan,
Desert Line Reconstruction Plan, and $1,500,000 in lease payments received, with the next
payment due on January 1, 2015. She discussed the status of PIR and Baja California Railroad
(BJRR) negotiations to unify the line in Mexico and the US and to obtain Mexico rights. Ms.
Landers discussed the status updates and various negotiations during the timeframe of January
2014 through October 2014. She also reviewed the next steps for November to December
2014, including MTS working with Mexico legal counsel to determine the most effective course
of action to achieve bi-national freight operations. Ms. Landers also noted that PIR is developing
an alternative freight operating plan to meet the milestones in the contract with MTS.

Board Member Comments

Mr. Ramirez commented that he believes MTS does not have a plan for what the rail system
looks like and that the bi-national operation is very complex with different interests and
stakeholders involved. He believes one of the principal problems that has not been outlined is
what the public interest objectives are for the system. Mr. Ramirez stated that bi-national
planning efforts need to be put in place and if there is no plan, the system will not move forward.
He commented that MTS should care that the line is profitable and that it brings back benefits to
the public. He requested that the MTS Board approve a comprehensive, bi-national study to be
conducted to find out the needs for the Desert Line.
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Mr. Alvarez commented that he had previously suggested for MTS to set aside money to spend
on conducting a study for the Desert Line. He discussed a study SANDAG is conducting in the
Otay area that would be a similar type of study that could be conducted on the Desert Line. Mr.
Alvarez stated that he has spoken with the Consul General of Mexico and learned that there
have been no conversations between the Department of Ministry and Foreign Affairs in Mexico
and our State Department regarding crossing goods back and forth over the border.

Public Comments

Roberto Tamayo — Mr. Tamayo stated that he is the CEO for Baja California Railroad. He said
they are working on the railroad in Mexico, which is 70.1 kilometers in length. They have
invested 200 million pesos in the railroad. Mr. Tamayo stated the product from the maquiladoras
in Tijuana is very large and needs to be moved. He said they will be ready in March 2015. Mr.
Tamayo commented that PIR is not the company they would like to do business with because a
lot of their plan needs to be revised. He said that Baja California Railroad will be the first bi-
national railroad that will be opened and their region needs the maquiladoras served.

Board Members Comments — continued

Mr. Alvarez stated again that he would like to set aside funds for a study on the Desert Line. He
commented that he understands the Business Plan is not a public document, but asked if the
Reconstruction Plan was a public document. Ms. Landers replied that it is not a public
document. Mr. Alvarez said that he does not know where in the progress the Desert Line is at
and would like to see a study conducted.

Ms. Sotelo-Solis stated that she feels the Board should have access to the plan with the Desert
Line. She stated she would like to formerly request a report be given on the future of this
system.

Mr. McClellan stated that MTS has an agreement with PIR and it is up to PIR to reach the
milestones and if they do not complete the milestones, the contract will be null and void. He said
it is an additive plus that MTS is helping to negotiate with PIR, when it is not required.

Mr. Gastil stated that he has heard two viewpoints, including that MTS does not have a clear
vision in place of the public interest and the other viewpoint is that PIR is moving along and
MTS is monitoring their progress. Mr. Gastil said that there is a contract with PIR and agrees
that it is important MTS continues monitoring their progress. He also commented that he
believes a lot of people do not know what is actually going on with the Desert Line, but have
their assumptions. Mr. Gastil recommended that it may be beneficial to discuss plans going
forward and the big picture for the Desert Line.

Mr. Roberts stated that it seems there is an overall agreement that they would like this line to be
open and running. He said there is a big difference between a study and a negotiation. Mr.
Roberts commented that everyone has a different outlook on the focus of the public benefits. He
stated that he would like to see the public benefit go fully towards MTS. Mr. Roberts said there
is money on both sides of the border to invest in the Desert Line. Mr. Roberts stated that the
first and foremost priority is benefiting the good of public transit. He said that this line has
significant value and wants public transit to see the maximum benefit. Mr. Roberts commented
that SANDAG may need to study the potential value that is at stake with the Desert Line and the
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benefit MTS can receive. He noted that MTS has a legally binding contract with PIR and cannot
jeopardize that contract. Mr. Roberts also commented that Mr. Jablonski has been diligently
working countless hours on this matter. Lastly, he reiterated that MTS owns this valuable line
and wants to see its benefit go towards MTS and public transportation.

Mr. Ramirez commented that he disagrees with Mr. McClellan that the primary focus point is the
contract with PIR. Mr. Ramirez believes the primary point should be the public interest. He
commented that he also disagrees with Mr. Roberts that the benefit of the railroad should be
with MTS and public transit. Mr. Ramirez believes the potential benefits should be bi-national
with the interests in jobs and the environment. He commented that he has a business in Tecate
and belongs to business and civic groups in Tecate. He said there is a concern among the
people wondering what would happen to the city with all of the truck traffic and a large cargo line
going through the city. Mr. Ramirez stated that a comprehensive bi-national plan needs to be in
place. He said he would like to move to initiate a comprehensive bi-national study for the Desert
line.

Chairman Mathis stated that the motion is out of order, because the agenda item is an
informational item. He also stated that as members of the Board, there is a fiduciary
responsibility to protect the interests and mission of MTS. The Desert Line is an asset that
belongs to MTS and the Board has the duty to protect the interests and assets of MTS.
Chairman Mathis commented to Mr. Ramirez that he is mistaken if he thinks all MTS cares
about is the money. He stated that MTS cares about the mission and that there will be many
additional benefits that will flow from the negotiations and implementation of the Desert Line.

Mr. Jablonski stated there has been discussion about conducting a study, but circumstances did
not allow us to conduct a study in the past. He commented that if PIR is not successful under
the current lease, MTS would conduct a comprehensive analysis before moving forward with
other options. Mr. Jablonski also commented that the potential in revenue from the Desert Line
is much more than $1 million per year, but rather 15% of gross, which could result in $25-$35
million per year. This could have the potential to be the second largest funding source to MTS
other than the Federal government.

Mr. Minto stated that he will bring the study as a recommendation to the SANDAG Borders
Committee.

Mr. Alvarez stated that he is not trying to take MTS away from the Desert Line. He said that if
PIR lapses in the contract, he would like to continue the discussion for other options
immediately. Mr. Alvarez said that he does not know whether or not there is a lot of money to be
made on the Desert Line. He commented that he wants to make sure the line works and
believes that conducting a study will be beneficial.

Mr. Roberts stated that there may need to be a financial assessment to see the value of the
Desert Line. He said that he is looking for much more than $1,000,000 per year from this line.
Mr. Roberts stated he has observed that MTS is doing all that is possible to move forward.

Mr. Jablonski stated that MTS staff can work on a potential scope and bring it back for review.
Ms. Sotelo-Solis said the study will be very beneficial to make sure MTS gets the most out of
the Desert Line.
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48.

63.

60.

61.

62.

63.

Chairman Mathis stated that staff can put together a scope and bring it back to the Board for
review.

Mr. Cunningham stated that he wanted to clarify that the Board does not have a notion that PIR
will fail, but has full confidence that PIR will succeed. There were indications of agreement
made by the Board members.

Mr. Ramirez inquired what the time frame will be for this item to be agendized. Mr. Jablonski
stated that it will be agendized in either November or December.

Operations Budget Status Report for August 2014 (L uke Kromer)

The report was waived.

Board Member Communications (Taken Qut of Order)

Mr. Roberts commented that he attended the APTA Annual Conference and had the privilege to
see Mr. Jablonski awarded APTA’s Outstanding Public Transportation Manager.

Chairman’s Report

Chairman Mathis stated that he was also at the APTA Annual Conference and that Mr.
Jablonski’'s award was extremely well deserved.

Audit Oversight Committee Chairman’s Report

Mr. Ewin commented that the Audit Oversight Committee met last Thursday, October 23, 2014.
He stated that the audit is almost complete for the production of the CAFR and there are no
significant items to report on.

Chief Executive Officer's Report

Mr. Jablonski stated that he attended the APTA Annual Conference in Houston as well as the
TOPS Committee in Washington D.C., which was paid for by the Transit Cooperative Research
Program. He thanked all of the Board members for their continued support and they share in his
award as well.

Board Member Communications — continued

Mr. Gastil commented that he has been appointed to the FACT Board, Facilitating Access to
Coordinated Transportation. He said it is an honor to serve on that Board and periodically he will
bring reports and updates.

Mr. Alvarez commented on Consent Agenda Item No. 16, the San Ysidro Radio Tower Lease.
He noted that the property is owned by the City where there is potential for a new library. He
also commented on the MidCoast Trolley, stating that the Morena trolley station has been
rejected by the community. Mr. Alvarez asked if SANDAG is responsible for the station sites.
Mr. Jablonski replied that SANDAG is responsible, however MTS is very involved. Mr. Alvarez
asked what the costs would be for that particular station. Mr. Jablonski replied that SANDAG
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64.

65.

66.

would likely have that information. Mr. Roberts stated that the assignment of the MidCoast
stations has been in place for years. He also commented that we are almost at the point of
receiving a Federal full funding grant agreement for the MidCoast project and do not want to
jeopardize that funding.

Additional Public Comments on Iltems Not on the Agenda

Valerie Hightower — Ms. Hightower thanked MTS for the stop signs located at 26™ Street and
Market Street and for the extra bus benches. She requested two additional bus benches at
Imperial Avenue and 36" Street. Mr. Hightower asked if the Route 4 bus could run three times
per hour Monday through Saturday and two times per hour on Sundays. She also asked if the
Senior/Disabled monthly passes could be issued at any time of the month rather than just at the
beginning of the month. Mr. Jablonski stated that people can purchase their monthly passes
during any time of the month and the pass will be valid for 30 days. Ms. Hightower also said that
Route 11, 13, 955 and 3 have a lot of passengers who drink and smoke while waiting for the
bus. Lastly, she requested the Route 16 bus to be brought back in service.

Next Meeting Date

The next regularly scheduled Board meeting is November 20, 2014,

Adjournment

Chairman Mathis adjourned the meeting at 11:47 a.m.

{
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ROLL CALL
MEETING OF (DATE). __October 30, 2014 CALL TO ORDER (TIME): _9:04 a.m.
RECESS: RECONVENE:
CLOSED SESSION: __9:10 a.m. RECONVENE: _ 9:14 a.m.
PUBLIC HEARING: RECONVENE:

ORDINANCES ADOPTED: _1 (Ord. 4 amendment) ADJOURN: _ 11:47 a.m.

PRESENT ABSENT
BOARD MEMBER (Alternate) (TIME ARRIVED) (TIME LEFT)
ALVAREZ 3] (Zapf) 0 9:08 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
BRAGG X (Bilbray) (] 9:04 a.m. 11:23 a.m.
COLE (Zapf) O 9:04 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
CUNNINGHAM X (Mullin) 0 9:19 a.m. 11:42 a.m.
EMERALD (£} (Zapf) O 9:04 a.m. 11:22 a.m.
EWIN X (Arapostathis) O 9:04 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
GASTIL X (Jones) O 9:08 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
GLORIA X (Zapf) O 9:04 a.m. 11:18 a.m.
MATHIS x1 9:04 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
MCCLELLAN (Ambrose) O 9:04 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
MINTO X (McNelis) O 9:18 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
OVROM X (Denny) O 9:04 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
RIOS O (Sotelo-Solis) X1 9:04 a.m. 11:34 a.m.
ROBERTS (Cox) O 9:08 a.m. 11:47 a.m.
SALAS O (Ramirez) X 9:04 a.m. 11:47 a.m.

SIGNED BY THE CLERK OF THE BOARD: \W@m/@
CONFIRMED BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL: \W M/ (M%/_\




AGENDA ITEM NO. %

REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED ‘

PLEASE SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED FORM (AND YOUR WRITTEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISCUSSION OF YOUR ITEM

1. INSTRUCTIONS
This Request to Speak form must be filled out and submitted in advance of the discussion of your
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not
on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yielding of time is
allowed. Subjects of previous hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under
General Public Comments.

(PLEASE PRINT)

DATE Novemper 22 >y, 4

Name Aloxi < 0 FloreS

Address 525 N 33)”0” CS#E\?‘IL

Telephone Gl - 822 -0 148

Organization Represented %ﬁ“

Subject of Your Remarks A94 Bus Rovie P fare
Regarding Agenda Item No.

Your Comments Present a SUPPORT X OPPOSITION
Position of: :

2. TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Hearing.

3. DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to
a particular agenda item.

4. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes
each, under the Public Comment Agenda ltem. Additional speakers will be heard at the end of the
Board's Agenda.

NOTE: Subjects of previous hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under General
Public Comments.

H:\Board Member Listings, Labels, Envelopes & Other\Request to Speak Form.doc
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REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED

= MTS Z
4 #ﬂmpoﬁwnﬁanslt System AGENDA ITEM NO.

PLEASE SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED FORM (AND YOUR WRITTEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISCUSSION OF YOUR ITEM

1. INSTRUCTIONS
This Request to Speak form must be filled out and submitted in advance of the discussion of your
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not
on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yielding of time is
allowed. Subjects of previous hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under
General Public Comments.

(PLEASE PRINT)

DATE I S a2

Name (d/ Z(ﬁ\/ L fa{\ U(AMJ

Address S (< 7 Z,& Duv- M= §7Lf S:zn Diltﬁ | O
{ <

Telephone (oo, 5¢7F. I’(Zﬂ € 9

Organization Represented _SHC/ 7/J

7 - ¢
Subject of Your Remarks Celblc Cia Vo aﬂ\/\
Regarding Agenda Item No.
Your Comments Present a SUPPORT OPPOSITION
Position of:

2. TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Hearing.

3. DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to
a particular agenda item.

4. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes
each, under the Public Comment Agenda Item. Additional speakers will be heard at the end of the
Board's Agenda. s

NOTE: Subjects of previous hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under General
Public Comments.

H:\Board Member Listings, Labels, Envelopes & Other\Request to Speak Form.doc
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REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED 3

PLEASE SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED FORM (AND YOUR WRITTEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISCUSSION OF YOUR ITEM

1. INSTRUCTIONS
This Request to Speak form must be filled out and submitted in advance of the discussion of your
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not
on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yielding of time is
allowed. Subijects of previous hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under
General Public Comments.

(PLEASE PRINT)

DATE Noyv ©

Name ﬁzé-;v‘@c}(— V:} lO O/ \«‘

Address %O& f /3 0{ M g ff

Telephone (a{ QL "j ZS _01%(‘3,%7

Organization Represented

Subject of Your Remarks

Regarding Agenda Item No.

Your Comments Present a SUPPORT OPPOSITION
Position of:

2. TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Hearing.

3. DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to
a particular agenda item.

4. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes
each, under the Public Comment Agenda Item. Additional speakers will be heard at the end of the
Board's Agenda.

NOTE: Subjects of previous hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under General
Public Comments.

H:\Board Member Listings, Labels, Envelopes & Other\Request to Speak Form.doc
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November 13, 2014

Chairman Harry Mathis "
Metropolitan Transit System ~

1255 Imperial Avenue Suite 1000 Mid-City CAN
N Comniunity Advocacy Network
San Diego, CA 92101

Re: Youth Opportunity Pass, a no-cost youth bus pass

Dear Chairman Mathis:

lam writing to request an in person meeting with you and leaders of the Improving Transportation in City Heights
Momentum Team of Mid-City CAN before December 10%, 2014. On December 10" we will be holding a press
conference to bring awareness to this issue and we hope to report on a positive meeting with you.

We would like to discuss the following requests we have of MTS to move the Youth Opportunity Pass (YOP) forward:

Promotional 33% Discount for all school districts in MTS coverage area to start/continue YOP programs
Implement transit education program for current YOP program

Study of the cost of a free youth pass for al] people under 18 years old and all community college students at
community colleges within the MTS coverage area

Include YOP program in transit operations funding plan to be submitted to the State of California for Cap &
Trade transit operations funding

The youth bus pass began as a pilot project last year and its continuation marks progress toward the regional youth transit
pass for middle, high-school and college students in the San Diego region. The program has been expanded to a year-
round pass to encourage a continuing pattern of ridership and increase access to summer jobs and internships for young

people. The preliminary data demonstrates the biggest opportunities for growth in transit usage for students in the
program are for non-school activities, like jobs and recreation,

Continuing the investment in this program is a necessary step to bring state and federal money to San Diego. This is also a

growing national movement with programs in place in cities like: San Francisco, Phoenix, New York, Portland, Pittsburg,

San Bernardino, and now Nashville. San Diego has the opportunity to proactively position for funding and to take a
leadership role on the national stage. :

Multiple studies have shown how student pass programs increase ridership. Following the introduction of the Zip Card in

London, “the average number of bus trips made by 12-17 year olds increased by 35%”. (Green et al,, In press-b) With the
BruinGoPass at UCLA, "bus ridership for commuting to campus increased by 56%;

and single-passenger commuting to
campus decreased by 20%”. (Brown et al., 2003)

Chairman Mathis, please meet with us to discuss this important program for our youth. If you have any questions,
please contact, Emily Serafy Cox at (619) 283-9624 ext. 203 or at eserafycox@midcitycan.org, We look forward to
working with you and your office toward the goal of making this a universal transit pass for all youth in San Diego.

Sincerely,
Fhpain Cqly W
Maria Cortez rbara Nevarez

Co-chairs, Improving Transportation in City Heights Momentum Team

Mid-City Community Advocacy Network
P.0. Box 12319 San Diego, CA 92112
www, midcltycan.org

Fiermi Cnancne., Aficrinn Frine Srnn Nioan



_, 5 AGENDA ITEM NO. %

@ Metropolitan Transit System —

REQUEST TO SPEAK FORM ORDER REQUEST RECEIVED ﬁ[,

PLEASE SUBMIT THIS COMPLETED FORM (AND YOUR WRITTEN STATEMENT)
TO THE CLERK OF THE BOARD PRIOR TO DISCUSSION OF YOUR ITEM

1. INSTRUCTIONS

This Request to Speak form must be filled out and submitted in advance of the discussion of your
item to the Clerk of the Board (please attach any written statement to this form). Communications
on hearings and agenda items are generally limited to three minutes per person unless the Board
authorizes additional time; however, the Chairperson may limit comment to one or two minutes each
if there are multiple requests to speak on a particular item. General public comments on items not
on the agenda are limited to three minutes. Please be brief and to the point. No yielding of time is
allowed. Subijects of previous hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under
General Public Comments.

(PLEASE PRINT)
DATE
Name marn COritSz
Address U236 a, /‘[rp o Lﬂ/\ )/ 1US,
Telephone 619

Organization Represented

Subject of Your Remarks

Regarding Agenda Item No.

Your Comments Present a SUPPORT OPPOSITION
Position of:

. TESTIMONY AT NOTICED PUBLIC HEARINGS
At Public Hearings of the Board, persons wishing to speak shall be permitted to address the Board
on any issue relevant to the subject of the Hearing.

. DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS
The Chairman may permit any member of the public to address the Board on any issue relevant to

a particular agenda item.

. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be limited to five speakers with three minutes
each, under the Public Comment Agenda Item. Additional speakers will be heard at the end of the
Board's Agenda.

NOTE: Subjects of previous hearings or agenda items may not again be addressed under General

Public Comments.

H:\Board Member Listings, Labels, Envelopes & Other\Request to Speak Form.doc
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MTS

;?/I "“\\\\@ Metropolitan Transit System

A

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 » FAX (619) 234-3407

Agenda Item No. 4

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:
APPOINTMENT OF AD HOC NOMINATING COMMITTEE FOR RECOMMENDING
APPOINTMENTS TO MTS COMMITTEES FOR 2015 (SHARON COONEY)
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board of Directors appoint an Ad Hoc Nominating Committee to make
recommendations to the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the Board
to serve as Vice-Chair, Chair Pro-Tem and on MTS and non-MTS committees for 2015.
Budget Impact
None.
DISCUSSION:

Each year, the Board makes appointments to various committees, including the
Budget Development Committee, Ad Hoc Public Security Committee, Audit Oversight
Committee, Executive Committee, Joint Committee on Regional Transit (JCRT),
Taxicab Committee, Los Angeles-San Diego-San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor Agency
(LOSSAN), and the Accessible Services Advisory Committee (ASAC). The Executive
Committee membership is governed by MTS Board Policy 22.8. The Executive
Committee appoints the representative to the San Diego Association of Governments
(SANDAG) Transportation Committee. Attachment B is a table of committee
appointments for 2014.

MTS Board Policy No. 22 (Attachment A) specifies that on or before the Board's first
meeting in November, the Board shall appoint less than a quorum of members to an Ad
Hoc Nominating Committee. Last year's Ad Hoc Nominating Committee included Board
members Mathis, Roberts, Rios, Ewin and Zapf.

The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall review the list of MTS committees and make
recommendations to the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the Board

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 = (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com @ @ @

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Tralley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Rallway Company
(nonprofit public benefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trolley, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab adminlstrator for seven cties.

MTS member agencies include the clties of Chula Vista, Coronado, EI Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, Natlonal City, Poway, San Diego, Santee, and the County of San Diego.



to serve on each committee. The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee is also tasked with
reviewing the list of outside boards and/or committees and making recommendations to
the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the Board to represent MTS on
each outside board or committee, except for the Board representative appointed to the
SANDAG Transportation Committee, which is appointed by the Executive Committee.

The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee forwards its recommendations for appointments of
officers and committee members on or before the first Board meeting in January.

The election procedures to appoint an Ad Hoc Nominating Committee pursuant to
Robert's Rules of Order are as follows:

1.

2.

The Chairman of the Board opens the agenda item.

The Chairman requests nominations from the floor. Nominations do not require a
second.

The Chairman closes the nominations.

The Chairman invites the candidate(s) to address the Board for three minutes.
The Chairman asks for any Board discussion.

The Chairman calls for the vote on each motion for each candidate.

A vote is taken on the motion(s) for each candidate based upon the order in
which they were nominated. The vote continues until a candidate is elected.

Paul C.(Jablonski””

Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment:  A. Board Policy 22
B. Table of MTS Committees for 2014
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‘Zﬂ_ju\@ Metropolitan Transit System

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
619/231-1466

FAX 619/234-3407

Policies and Procedures No. 22

Board Approval: 12/11/08

SUBJECT:

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM (MTS)
PURPOSE:

To define and clarify Board Rules of Procedure and incorporate them in Board Policy.
BACKGROUND:

In 1977, the Board adopted Rules of Procedure by resolution and from time to time
amendments have been adopted. The Rules shall be contained in Board Policy for ease
of reference and periodic updating.

221 Membership and Organization

22.11 Membership in this Board is established by Division 11, Chapter 1,
Section 120050 through 120051.6 of the California Public Utilities
Code.

221.2 The Board consists of 15 members selected as follows:
a. One member of the County of San Diego Board of

Supervisors appointed by the Board of Supervisors.

b. Four members of the City Council of the City of San Diego,
one of whom may be the mayor, appointed by the City
Council.

c. One member of each city council appointed individually by
the City Councils of the Cities of Chula Vista, Coronado,
El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove,
National City, Poway, and Santee.

Metropolifan Transit System (MTS) is a Califonia pblic Bgency and Is comprised of San Disgo Transit Corporation and San Diego Tralley, Inc. nonprofit publia benefit canporations,
in codparation with Chula Vista Transit and National Gity Transit. MTS Is fhe taxicab administrator for slght cities. and the owner of the San Diago and Arizona Eastam Raltway Gompany,
M'mm._mmmmcuycfmm,marc«mc&vaammmyommM.cwo!u Mosa, City of Lamon Grov, City of National Gity, Gity.of Poway,
City of San Diego, Chty of Santaa, and the Colinty of San Diego.
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221.4

22.1.5

22.1.6

22.1.7

22.1.8

22.1.9

22.1.10

Att. A, Al 4, 11/20/14

d. One person, a resident of San Diego County, elected by a
two-thirds vote of the Board, a quorum being present, who
shall serve as chairperson of the Board.

Any person who is a member of the Board may be appointed by
his or her appointing authority to continue to serve as a member of
the Board after the termination of his or her term of office for a
period not to exceed four years after the date of termination of his
or her term of elected office.

Alternate members of the Board shall be appointed as follows:

a. The County of San Diego Board of Supervisors shall
appoint any other county supervisor who qualifies for
appointment to serve as an alternate member.

b. The City Council of the City of San Diego shall appoint a
member of the City Council not already appointed to serve
as an alternate member.

c. The City Councils of the Cities of Chula Vista, Coronado,
El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove,
National City, Poway, and Santee shall each individually
appoint a member of their respective city councils not
already appointed to serve as an alternate member.

This Board shall exercise all powers authorized by the laws of the
State of California.

Only the duly selected official representative, or in his or her
absence his or her duly selected alternate, shall be entitled to
represent a member agency in the deliberations of the Board.

Names of the official representatives and alternates shall be
communicated in writing to the Board by each participating
member agency and shall thereafter be annually communicated or
reaffirmed prior to the February meeting of the Board and at such
other times as changes in representation are made by member
agencies.

The Board shall have the authority to appoint committees or
subcommittees and may provide for the appointment of alternates
to these committees or subcommittees.

Standing committees shall be appointed by the Board as may be
required to carry out general and continuing functions and shall be
abolished only upon specific action by the Board.

Ad hoc specialized subcommittees may be appointed by the
Board as the need arises to accomplish specific tasks. Upon
completion of its assignment, each ad hoc subcommittee shall
disband.

N
A-2
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22.1.11

Meetings
22.2.1

22.2.2

2223

2224

22.2.5
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Board members serving on such subcommittees shall be
compensated as provided by Board ordinance. The Chief
Executive Officer is authorized to enter into agreements

to compensate individuals who were Board members at the time
of their appointments to such subcommittees and who continue to
serve on such subcommittees after their terms of office as Board
members, subject to the same limitations as exist for
compensation of Board members, and subject to replacement

by the Board.

On or before the first regular meeting of the Board in December of
each year, the Board shall adopt a schedule of its meetings by
date, time, and location for the coming year. The Board shall
conduct at least one regular meeting in each of the subsequent
twelve months. The schedule of the meetings shall be published
in the local newspaper of general circulation prior to the next
regular meeting.

The Board may, when necessary, change the time and place of
regular meetings. Notice of such change shall be posted pursuant
to the Ralph M. Brown Act.

The Clerk of the Board shall forward written notice of the annual
schedule of regular meetings and any changes thereto stating the
dates, times, and locations to each member's agency and to the
respective members and alternates of the Board and the standing
committees.

Special meetings may be called and noticed under the provisions
of the Ralph M. Brown Act as applicable and, specifically,
Section 54956 of the California Government Code. The call and
notice shall be posted in an area accessible to the public at least
24 hours prior to the meeting.

Special meetings normally shall be called by a majority of the
Board or Executive Committee only upon a finding that
extraordinary circumstances require Board action prior to the next
scheduled Board meeting, such as to discuss a work stoppage or
significant litigation, or that a special meeting is necessary to hold
a workshop, a joint meeting with another agency, or for other
special purposes at a future date beyond the next Board meeting.
The Chair may call such meetings only when such extraordinary
circumstances arise after the last Board or Executive Committee
meeting and Board action is required prior to the next regularly
scheduled Board or Executive Committee meeting.

A majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum
for the transaction of business, and all official acts of the Board

-3-
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22.2.6

2227

2228

2229

22.2.10

22.2.11

Amendments

22.3.1

2232

2233
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shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of
the Board.

Parliamentary procedure at all meetings shall be governed by
Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised except as otherwise
modified herein.

Prior to each regular meeting, the Clerk of the Board shall forward
a copy of the agenda to each member in accordance with the
schedule adopted by the Board. The agendas shall also be
mailed to each person or entity previously requesting such in
writing. The Clerk shall post the agenda in an area accessible to
the public at least 72 hours before the meeting in accordance with
the Ralph M. Brown Act. Agenda materials shall be available as
public record in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act and,
specifically, Section 54957.5 of the California Government Code.

The Board may take action on items of business not appearing on
the posted agenda in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act.

Requests for Board action may be initiated by any member of the
Board or any staff officer.

Communication requests may be initiated by an individual and
submitted to the Clerk by letter or on forms provided by the Clerk
and must state the subject matter and the action which the writer
wishes the Board to take. The Clerk shall review all
communication requests so received and shall list them on the
Board's docket under those items which the Clerk deems to be
proper areas of discussion or action by the Board. When a
Communications item is listed on the docket, it is not debatable
and must be referred to an appropriate committee, other public
agency, or to staff to prepare a report or response.

Any permanent rule of the Board as set forth herein and unless
otherwise established by law may be suspended temporarily by a
two-thirds vote of the members present.

The Board shall be responsible for making all amendments to
these rules.

Proposed amendments may be originated by the Board, or any
member of such, or by the Chief Executive Officer.

Each proposed amendment shall be considered by the Board and
a copy thereof forwarded by the Clerk of the Board to the official
representative of each member agency.
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22.4.1

2242

2243

2244

22.45
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Every ordinance shall be signed by the Chairman of the Board
and attested by the Clerk of the Board.

On the passage of all ordinances, the votes of the several
members of the Board shall be entered on the minutes.

Ordinances shall not be passed within five days of their
introduction nor at other than a regular meeting or at an adjourned
regular meeting. However, an urgency ordinance may be passed
immediately upon introduction either at a regular or special
meeting. Except when, after reading the title, further reading is
waived by regular motion adopted by unanimous vote of the Board
members present, all ordinances shall be read in full either at the
time of introduction or passage. When ordinances, other than
urgency ordinances, are altered after introduction, they shall be
passed only at a regular or at an adjourned regular meeting held
at least five days after alteration. Corrections of typographical or
clerical errors are not alterations within the meaning of this
section.

The Clerk of the Board shall cause a proposed ordinance or
proposed amendment to an ordinance, and any ordinance
adopted by the Board, to be published at least once, in a
newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the
Board's area of jurisdiction.

The publication of an ordinance, as required by subdivision, may
be satisfied by either of the following actions:

a. The Board may publish a summary of a proposed
ordinance or proposed amendment to an ordinance. The
summary shall be prepared by the Clerk of the Board and
General Counsel. The summary shall be published and a
certified copy of the full text of the proposed ordinance or
proposed amendment shall be posted in the office of the
Clerk of the Board at least five (5) days prior to the Board
meeting at which the proposed ordinance or amendment is
to be adopted. Within 15 days after adoption of the
ordinance or amendment, the Board shall publish a
summary of the ordinance or amendment with the names
of those Board members voting for and against the
ordinance or amendment, and the Clerk of the Board shall
post in the office of the clerk a certified copy of the full text
of the adopted ordinance or amendment along with the
names of those Board members voting for and against the
ordinance or amendment.

b. If the person designated by the Board determines that it is
not feasible to prepare a fair and adequate summary of the
proposed ordinance or amendment, and if the Board so

5.
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orders, a display advertisement of at lease one-quarter of
a page in a newspaper of general circulation in the Board's
area of jurisdiction shall be published at least five (5) days
prior to the Board meeting at which the proposed
ordinance or amendment is to be adopted. Within 15 days
after adoption of the ordinance or amendment, a display
advertisement of at least one-quarter of a page shall be
published. The advertisement shall indicate the general
nature of, and prove information regarding, the adopted
ordinance or amendment, including information sufficient
to enable the public to obtain copy of the complete text of
the ordinance or amendment and the name of those Board
members voting for and against the ordinance amendment.

Ordinances shall take effect thirty days after their final passage.
An ordinance takes effect immediately, if it is an ordinance for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or safety,
containing a declaration of the facts constituting the urgency and
is passed by a four-fifths vote of the Board.

Public Comment

22.5.1

2252

22.5.3

At a public hearing of the Board, persons wishing to provide
comment and testimony shall be permitted to address the Board
after submitting a written request to speak to the Clerk identifying
the person and the subject agenda item. The Chairman may limit
the time for each presentation and may permit additional time to
speakers representing a group of individuals or organizations to
avoid duplicative testimony. Ordinarily, each speaker will be
allowed no more than three minutes.

Persons wishing to comment on agenda items other than a public
hearing must submit a written request to speak in advance to the
Clerk identifying the person and the subject agenda item.
Comments must be limited to issues relevant to the particular
agenda item. The Chairman may limit the time for each
presentation and may permit additional time to speakers
representing a group of individuals or organizations to avoid
duplicative testimony. Ordinarily, each speaker will be allowed no
more than three minutes.

Public comment on matters not on the agenda will be permitted on
items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the Board. Persons wishing to comment must
submit a written request in advance to the Clerk identifying the
person and subject matter. The Chairman may limit the time for
each speaker. Ordinarily, each speaker will be allowed no more
than three minutes.
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Chairperson

Prior to the expiration of a Chairperson’s term, the Executive Committee shall
make a recommendation to the Board on whether to reelect the current
Chairpersion. In the event that the Board does not reelect a chairperson, or in
the event of a vacancy in the position of Chairperson, the Executive Committee
shall create an ad hoc nominating committee that shall, by whatever means it
deems appropriate, recommend to the Board a candidate or candidates for the
position of Chairperson. The Board shall then vote to elect a Chairperson.

Election of Board Officers and Appointments to Committees

22.71 On or before the Board's first meeting in November, the Board
shall appoint less than a quorum of members to an Ad Hoc
Nominating Committee. The Ad Hoc Nominating Commiittee shall
review the list of MTS committees and make recommendations to
the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the
Board or former Board members to serve on each MTS
committee.

2272 The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall also review the list of
outside boards and/or committees and make recommendations to
the Board with respect to the appointment of members of the
Board to represent MTS on each outside board or committee,
except for the Board representative appointed to the San Diego
Association of Governments (SANDAG) Transportation
Committee, which shall be appointed by the Executive Committee.

22.7.3 The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall also make a
recommendation to the Board with respect to the appointment of
the Vice Chairman and the Chair Pro Tem and any other board
officers.

2274 The Ad Hoc Nominating Committee shall forward its
recommendations for appointments of officers and committee
members on or before the first Board meeting in January.

22,75 At its first meeting in January, the Board shall elect a Vice
Chairman and a Chair Pro Tem from amongst its members. The
Vice Chairman shall preside in the absence of the Chairman. In
the event of the absence or inability to act by the Chairman and
Vice Chairman, the Chair Pro Tem shall preside.

22,76 The Board shall then vote on the recommendations made by the
Ad Hoc Nominating Committee with respect to all other committee
appointments.

2277 In the event that a Board member vacates his or her position on
the Board, at the next meeting, the Chairperson shall take
nominations from the floor to fill any opening in any Committee
positions vacated by that Board member.

-7-
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22.8 Executive Committee

22.8.1

22.8.2

22.8.3

The Executive Committee of the Board shall consist of the
Chairman, the Vice Chairman (if he or she is not already a voting
member) a member from the County of San Diego, a member
from the City of San Diego, the Transportation Committee
Representative (if he or she is not already a voting member), one
member who represents the cities of Chula Vista, National City,
Coronado, and Imperial Beach (the “South Bay Cities’
representative”), and one member who represents the cities of
Lemon Grove, La Mesa, El Cajon, Poway, and Santee (the “East
County Cities’ representative”). The South Bay Cities'
representative and the East County Cities’ representative shall
serve as members of the Executive Committee for a term of two
years each. The terms of these two members shall be staggered
so as to avoid replacement of both members at the same time.

The East County and South Bay representatives shall serve in the
following order:

East County: El Cajon, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, Santee, Poway—
each serving a two-year term.

South Bay: Chula Vista, Coronado, Imperial Beach, National
City—each serving a two-year term; however, the representative
must have been the primary Board member for two years in order
to serve as the Executive Committee representative. In the event
that the South Bay representative has not been the primary Board
member for two years, the rotation schedule shall be adjusted so
that the next city in the rotation serves as the representative, and
the city whose member has not yet served two years as the
primary Board member would serve the term immediately
thereafter; i.e., if Imperial Beach lacked two years of experience,
National City would serve first, then Imperial Beach and then the
rotation would continue on as set forth above. The requirement
for two years of service as the primary Board member shall only
apply to the South Bay represenative.

After each member has served as either the East County or
South Bay representative, the rotation schedule shall repeat.

The alternates to the Executive Committee members shall be as
follows:

22.8.3.1 The alternate for the County of San Diego shall be
the alternate appointed by the County of San Diego
to serve as the alternate for the Board.

28.3.2 The alternate for the City of San Diego shall be

selected from amongst the three remaining City of
San Diego Board members.

-8-
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2.8.3.3 The alternates for the East County Cities’ and the
South Bay Cities’ representatives shall be the
representative from the city that is next in the
rotation order set forth in section 22.8.3 above (for
example, if the City of El Cajon is currently the
primary Executive Committee member, then the
City of La Mesa member shall be the alternate
Executive Committee member). Alternates shall be
appointed for a term of two years or such lesser
term as necessary to coincide with the term of the
member for whom the alternate is appointed.

The Vice Chairman shall attend each Executive Committee
meeting as a voting member. The Vice Chairman shall serve as
the alternate to the Chairman in his or her absence and as a
second alternate at large for any of the Executive Committee
representatives and shall be a voting member when serving in this
capacity.

On or before its first meeting in January, the Executive Committee
shall appoint one of its members to serve as the representative
and one of its members to serve as the alternate to the San Diego
Association of Governments (SANDAG) Transportation
Committee to serve for a term of one year. In the event that the
Executive Committee feels a member of the Board who does not
serve on the Executive Committee is their preferred representative
or alternate for the SANDAG Transportation Committee, the
Executive Committee shall have the ability to select the
representative or alternate from the full Board. In that instance,
the SANDAG Transportation Committee representative, or the
alternate in his or her absence, shall attend the Executive
Committee meetings as a voting member.

The primary purpose of the Executive Committee shall be to
review and recommend consent items for the agenda of the next
MTS Board of Directors meeting; add or delete items as
appropriate; and provide input and direction on emerging policies,
plans, and issues, in advance, for Board consideration. The
Executive Committee shall have the authority to create ad hoc
subcommittees for purposes of carrying out its duties and
responsibilities.

Three members shall constitute a quorum of the Executive
Committee, and a majority vote of the members present shall be
required to approve any item. In the absence of a quorum, the
Chairman may review and recommend consent items for the
agenda, establish the order of items, and add or delete items.

The Executive Committee shall adopt operatihg procedures as are
necessary for the conduct of its business.
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229 Audit Oversight Committee

22.91

229.2

2293

2294

The Audit Oversight Committee shall be comprised of the same
members that make up the Executive Committee. The Chairman
of the Audit Oversight Committee shall be appointed from
amongst its members at the first meeting held during each
calendar year. The Chairman of the Audit Oversight Committee
shall be another member other than the member who serves as
the Executive Committee Chairman. Additional members of the
MTS Board may be appointed on an annual basis at the first MTS
Board meeting in January at the discretion of the MTS Board. The
Board may appoint individuals who are not members of the Board
to serve as non-voting advisory members to the Audit Oversight
Committee.

No additional compensation shall be paid to the members of the
Audit Oversight Committee unless a meeting takes place on a day
other than a regularly scheduled MTS Board meeting or MTS
Executive Committee meeting. Compensation shall be paid to any
additional members of the MTS Board who are appointed to serve
on the Audit Oversight Committee meeting. No compensation
shall be paid to any non-voting advisory member appointed by the
MTS Board.

The primary duties and responsibilities of the Audit Oversight
Committee shall be to ensure that management is maintaining a
comprehensive framework of internal control, to ensure that
management’s financial reporting practices are assessed
objectively, and to determine to its own satisfaction that the
financial statements are properly audited and that any problems
disclosed in the course of the audit are properly resolved.

The tasks to be performed by the Audit Oversight Committee shall
be as follows:

a. Review the appropriate scope of the annual independent
audit and any other audit the committee feels is
appropriate.

b. Review the appropriate scope of nonaudit services to be

performed by the independent auditor.

o Oversee the procurement of outside auditor services with
final approval by the Board.

d. Review and oversee the preparation of annual financial
statements, the annual financial reporting process, internal
controls, and independent auditors using an appropriate
degree of professional skepticism.

e. Assess the performance of any independent auditors.

-10-
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Provide a forum for MTS internal auditors to report
findings.

Provide at least an annual written and oral report to the
Board on how the committee discharged its duties and
responsibilities.

Establish a procedure for receipt, retention, and treatment
of complaints regarding accounting, internal controls, or
auditing matters.

The annual scheduled functions to be performed by the Audit
Oversight Committee shall be as follows:

a.

In June of each year or as soon as reasonably practicable,
review the independent audit engagement letter.

In March or April of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, establish a plan for review of the audits with
independent auditor.

In September of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, receive report on the status of any audit(s).

In October of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, receive a report on the preliminary audit
findings.

In December of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, receive a report and provide feedback on
financial and compliance statements to Board, and provide
the annual report to the Board on the committee’s
activities.

In March of each year or as soon as reasonably
practicable, review the management letter and
management's response to the letter.

On a periodic basis the Audit Oversight Committee shall perform
the following functions:

o

Establish procedure for handiing complaints.
Receive reports from MTS internal auditor.
Report to the Board in addition to annual report.

Review the appropriate scope of any nonaudit services
recommended for performance by the independent auditor.

Review the procurement of independent auditor services
and make a recommendation to the Board.

-11-
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f. Request procurement of outside independent advisor(s)
with Board concurrence.

g. Meet with the independent auditor without MTS
management present.

2297 At a minimum, the Audit Oversight Committee shall ask the
following questions of MTS Staff, the Internal Auditor and/or the
independent auditors:

a. What is the name of the audit firm performing the audit,
and how long has such firm been under contract to
perform such audits?

b. Was the audit performed in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards (AICPA GAAS standards) or
generally accepted government-auditing standards (GAO
GAGAS)? If not, why?

o Has the independent auditor(s) prepared an unqualified
opinion regarding the financial statements? If not, what
type of opinion was issued and why?

d. Was the audit performed independently? The Audit
Oversight Committee should ask how the audit firm
maintained its independence during the course of the
audit.

e. The Audit Oversight Committee should have the
independent auditor(s) describe, in general, the audit
procedures performed.

f. The Audit Oversight Committee should have the
independent auditor(s) discuss whether any new
accounting principles were adopted, whether any changes
were made, or whether the independent auditor(s)
recommends any changes in the accounting policies used
or their application. In particular, the relevant issue is
whether the audit applied best or merely permissible
principles.

g. The Audit Oversight Committee should have the
independent auditor(s) describe any significant accounting
adjustments affecting the financial statements (prior year
as well as current year).

h. Did the independent auditor(s) encounter any difficulties in
dealing with management in performing the audit, including
whether there were any disagreements with management
regarding any accruals, estimates, reserves, or accounting

-12-
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principles? Did the independent auditor(s) have the full
cooperation of MTS management and staff?

i. The Audit Oversight Committee should ask the audit firm
about the quality of the component unit's accounting,
internal controls, and the competency of staff. Did the
independent auditor(s) issue a management letter? What
nonmaterial weaknesses or reportable conditions has the
independent auditor(s) noted?

j. Were there any accounting issues on which the audit firm

sought the advice of other audit firms or regulatory bodies?

k. The Audit Oversight Committee should ask the audit firm
whether there are new pronouncements and/or areas of
potential financial risk affecting future financial statements
of which the Audit Oversight Committee should be aware.

Three members shall constitute a quorum of the Audit Oversight
Committee, and a majority vote of the members present shall be
required to approve any item. In the absence of a quorum, the
Chairman may review and recommend consent items for the
agenda, establish the order of items, and add or delete items.
The Audit Oversight Committee shall adopt operating procedures
as are necessary for the conduct of its business.

Board Member Standards of Conduct

22.10.1

22.10.2

22.10.3

22.10.4

The purpose of this policy is to emphasize that each Board
member occupies a position of public trust that demands the
highest moral and ethical standard of conduct.

This policy shall be supplemental and in addition to the Conflict of
Interest Code of the Board and is not intended to supersede such
Code or any provisions thereof.

Board members shall not engage in any business or transaction or
have a financial or other personal interest, actual, potential, or
apparent, which is incompatible with the proper discharge of his or
her official duties or would tend to impair his or her independence
of judgment or action in the performance of such duties. Such
business, transaction, or interest shall constitute a conflict of
interest.

No Board member shall engage in any enterprise or activity that
shall result in any of the following:

a. Using the prestige or influence of the Board office for
private gain or advantage of the member or another
person.

13-
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b. Using time, facilities, equipment, or supplies of the Board
for the private gain or advantage of the member or another
person.

c. Using official information not available to the general public
for private gain or advantage of the member or another
person.

d. Receiving or accepting money or other consideration from
anyone other than the Board for the performance of acts
done in the regular course of duty.

e. Receiving or accepting, directly or indirectly, any gift or
favor from any one doing business with the Board under
circumstances from which it could reasonably be inferred
that such was intended to influence such person in such
person's duties or as a reward for official action.

f. Soliciting any gift or favor in such person's official capacity,
either directly or indirectly, when such solicitation might
reasonably be inferred as to have a potential effect on
such person's duties or decision, or when the individual's
position as a Board member would in any way influence
the decision of the person being solicited.

g. Engaging in or accepting private employment or rendering
services for private interest, direct or indirect, which may
conflict with such person's responsibility or duty, or which,
because of that person's position, may influence a decision
to the benefit of the organization in which such person has
an interest.

If a Board member has an actual, potential, or apparent conflict of
interest in the subject of an agenda item, and the Board will make
a decision regarding this agenda item during an open session
meeting, the Board member must recuse himself or herself or, in
the case of uncertainty, request a binding determination from the
Board’s General Counsel. If the Board member has a conflict, he
or she may observe, but not participate, in the decision-making
process.

If a Board member has an actual, potential, or apparent conflict of
interest in the subject of an agenda item to be discussed during a
closed session meeting, the Board member shall be disqualified
and not present during such discussion so as not to make,
participate in making, or in any way attempt to use his or her
official position to influence the discussion or decision. In such
case, the Board member must recuse himself or herself or, in the
case of uncertainty, request a binding determination from the
Board's General Counsel. In accordance with the Brown Act, the
Board member would be entitled to any information that is publicly
reported. The Board member would not, however, be privy to any

-14-
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confidential or privileged information or communications pertaining
to the closed session agenda item.

No Board member shall disclose to any person, other than
members of the Board and other Board staff designated to handle
such confidential matters, the content or substance of any
information presented or discussed during a closed session
meeting unless the Board authorizes such disclosure by the
affirmative vote by a majority of the Board.

No Board member may disclose confidential or privileged
information or communications to any person other than a Board
member, General Counsel to the Board, or other Board staff
designated to handle such matters, unless disclosure is mandated
by law or the Board authorizes such disclosure by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the Board.

A Board member shall not be privy to confidential or privileged
information or communications concerning threatened,
anticipated, or actual litigation affecting the Board where the
Board member has an actual, potential, or apparent conflict of
interest. In the case of uncertainty as to whether a conflict of
interest exists, the Board’s General Counsel shall issue a binding
determination.

No Board member shall represent a position on an issue to be the
Board's unless the Board has formally adopted such position at a
public meeting.

Any violation of this policy shall constitute official misconduct if
determined by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Board in
an open and public meeting. The Board may elect to censure the
Board member and the violation may be subject to criminal and/or
civil penalties as provided for by applicable law.

Policy revised 1/12/06.
Policy revised 3/9/06.
Policy revised 3/23/06.
Policy revised 6/14/07.
Policy revised 7/19/07.
Policy revised 2/21/08.
Policy revised 12/11/08.
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2014 SLATE OF MTS COMMITTEES AND OUTSIDE AGENCY APPOINTMENTS

Accessible Services Advisory Commitiee | Lorie Bragg — Chair
(ASAC)
" Airport Authority Advisory Committee | Hamry Mathis — Commitiee Representative
Ron Roberts - Altemate
Public Security Committee ‘ Jim Cunningham — Committee Representative

Harry Mathis — Committee Representative
John Minto — Committee Representative
David Alvarez — Committee Representative
Mona Rios— Committee Representative

| Audit Oversight Commitiee Emie Ewin — Committee Representative

[ Harry Mathis — Committee Representative

Ron Roberts — County Representative
(Altemate: Greg Cox)

Sherri Lightner — City of San Diego Representative
(Altemate: Marti Emerald)

Al Ovrom- South Bay Representative
(Altemate: Lorie Bragg)

Jim Cunningham — East County Representative
(Alternate: Bob McClellan)

Budget Development Committee Harry Mathis — Committee Representative
Bob McClellan— Committee Representative
Ron Roberts - Committee Representative
Myrtle Cole — Committee Representative
John Minto— Committee Representative

Executive Committee Harry Mathis — Chair

Ron Roberts — County Representative- Vice Chair
(Altemnate: Greg Cox)

Sherri Lightner — City of San Diego Representative
(Altemate: Marti Emerald)

Al Ovrom- South Bay Representative
(Altemate: Lorie Bragg)

Jim Cunningham- East County Representative
(Altemnate: Bob McClellan)

Joint Committee on Regional Transit (JCRT) | Jim Cunningham — Committee Representative
Harry Mathis — Committee Representative
George Gastil - Committee Representative

Los Angeles - San Diego Rail Corridor Emie Ewin — Committee Representative
Agency (LOSSAN) Mona Rios ~ Altemate
SANDAG Board Harry Mathis — Advisory Representative
Al Ovrom - Altemate :
SANDAG Regional Planning Committee Mona Rios - Committee Representative i
Al Ovrom- Altemate
SANDAG Transportation Committee | Harry Mathis — Committee Representative -
Al Ovrom - Altemate
(Chosen by the Executive Committee January 9)
Taxicab Advisory Committee Myrtle Cole — Chair
Bob McClellan - Altemate
Ad Hoc Committee for Taxicab Contract Ron Roberts
Negotiations George Gastil
John Minto
Jim Cunningham
Lorie Bragg
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1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 * FAX (619) 234-3407

Agenda Item No. 6

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:
SAN DIEGO AND ARIZONA EASTERN (SD&AE) RAILWAY COMPANY QUARTERLY
REPORTS AND RATIFICATION OF ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE SD&AE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AT ITS MEETING ON OCTOBER 21, 2014

INFORMATIONAL ONLY
Budget impact
None.

DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to the Agreement for Operation of Freight Rail Services, SD&IV, Museum, and
PIR have provided operations reports during the third quarter of 2014 (Attachment A).

Coprrt >

Paul C. Jablonski—"

Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. SD&AE Meeting Agenda and Materials

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 « (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com @ @ @

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Dlego Transit Corp., San Dlego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Rallway Company
{nonprofit public benefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trollay, Inc., a 501(c)3) nonprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS Is the taxicab administrator for seven citles.

MTS member agenicies include the citles of Chula Vista, Coronado, E| Gajon, imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santee, and the County ot San Diego.
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CompPANY

A NEVADA NONPROFIT
CORPORATION

1255 IMPERIAL AVENUE,
SUTTE 1000
SAN DIEGO, CA

92101-7490
(619) 231-1466

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAUL JABLONSKI, CHAIRPERSON
MATT DOMEN

BLAKE JONES

OFFICERS

PAUL JABLONSKI, PRESIDENT
MATT-DDOMEN, SECRETARY
ERIN:DUNN, TREASURER

LEGAL COUNSEL
KAREN LANDERS
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AGENDA

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 21, 2014
9:00 a.m.

Executive Committee Room
James R. Mills Building
1255 Imperial Avenue, 10th Floor

This information will be made available in alternative formats upon request. To request
an agenda in an alternative format, please call the Clerk of the Board at least five working
days prior to the meeting to ensure availability. Assistive Listening Devices (ALDs) are
available from the Clerk of the Board prior to the meeting and are to be returned at the
end of the meeting.

ACTION
RECOMMENDED
1. Approval of the Minutes of July 15, 2014 Approve
Action would approve the SD&AE Railway Company Minutes of
July 15, 2014.
2. Statement of Railway Fin rin Dunn Receive
Action would receive a report for information.
3. Repo >ap Di n jal Valle 1V) Railroad Receive
Operations (M
Action would receive a report for information.
4. Report on Pacific Southwest Railway Museum (Diana Hyatt) Receive
Action would receive a report for information.
5. Reporton the Desert Line (Chas McHaffie Receive
Action would receive a report for information.
6. Real Property Matters (Tim Allison)
a) Summary of SD&A cuments Is Since July 15, 2014 Receive
Action would receive a report for information.
b) CONFERENCE WITH R "LP_F_'_ER

WITHR

S 54956,

PROPERTY: APNs 555-090-13 and unnumbered parcel
555-01, SAN DIEGO, CA

AGENCY NEGOTIATORS: KAREN LANDERS, MTS
GENERAL COUNSEL; TIM ALLISON, MTS MANAGER OF
REAL ESTATE ASSETS

NEGOTIATING PARTIES: San Diego Gas and Electric

UNDER NEGOTIATION: PRICE AND TERMS OF

PAYMENT
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Approval of the 20165 SD&AE Board of Directors Meeting Schedule Approve

Action would approve the 2015 SD&AE Board of Directors meeting
schedule.

Board Member Communications
Public Comments

Next Meetirig Date: January 27, 2018 (pending approval of Agenda
Item No. 7).

Adjournment

A-2
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San Diego and Arizona Eastern Rgilway Company

Qctober 21, 2014
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MINUTES OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING OF THE
SAN DIEGO & ARIZONA EASTERN RAILWAY COMPANY

July 15, 2014
A meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Diego & Arizona Eastern (SD&AE) Railway Company, a
Nevada corporation, was held at 1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, California 92101, on
July 15, 2014, at 9:00 a.m.

The following persons, constituting the Board of Directors, were present: Matt Domen,
Paul C. Jablonski, and Blake Jones. Also in attendance were:

MTS staff: Erin Dunn, Tim Allison, Karen Landers,
Wayne Terry, Mark Olson

Pacific Southwest Railroad Museum: Diana Hyatt

Pacific Imperial Railroad (PIR): Chas McHaffie, Donald Stoecklein

El Lindero: Victor Celis

Trains Magazine: Don Jones

Baja Rail: George Gonzalez

1. Approval of Minutes

Mr. Domen moved to approve the Minutes of the April 15, 2014, SD&AE Railway Board of
Directors meeting with one correction to add Diana Hyatt as in attendance representing the
Pacific Southwest Railroad Museum. Mr. Jones seconded the motion, and it was unanimously
approved.

2. Statement of Railway Finances

Erin Dunn presented the statement of railway finances for fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 (see
the attachment to the agenda item). She stated that the audit will be ongoing for the next
several months, so the numbers are subject to change.

Mr. Jablonski asked about the drainage problems on the Main Line Drainage Improvement
Project (Orange Line at Hill Street) and if staff has contacted Enterprise about issues with
reconstruction on the wall. Ms. Landers responded that there are concerns about Enterprise’s
construction not accommodating Cooper freight-loading capacity, She added that it may not
provide any benefit to us—we may still have to go in and do our project. Tim Allison added that
the carport has been removed. He stated that SANDAG engineers are working on what is still
needed structurally, and Ms. Landers has given direction to outside attomeys to deal with this
issue. Mr. Jablonski instructed staff to keep the Board apprised of this situation.

-Action T3

ken

Mr. Jablonski moved to receive the report for information. Mr. Jones seconded the motion, and
it was unanimously approved.

A4
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SD&AE Railway Board Meeting Minutes July 15, 2014

Report on SD&IV Operations

Mr. Domen presented the Periodic Report of the SD&AE Railway Company for activities for the
2™ quarter of calendar year 2014 (see the attachment to the agenda item).

Mr. Jablonski asked if there are any issues with the work being done at San Ysidro. Mr. Domen
responded that there are no issues and the project is moving very smoothly with no effect on
operations. He added that he is very impressed with the contractor and the job being done.

Mr. Jablonski requested that MTS be kept informed of all progress.

Action Taken

Mr. Jones moved to receive the report for information. Mr. Jablonski seconded the motion, and
it was unanimously approved.

Report on Pagifi

Diana Hyatt submitted a report for the Museum at the meeting (attached). Ms. Hyatt noted one
correction within the Museum's report on page 1/in the second sentence. It should read “Total
income from SD&AE property for second quarter ..." {not “first” quarter).

During the second quarter of 2014, utilizing all volunteer crews, the Pacific Southwest Railway
Museum ran 50 passenger trains caivying 2,794 passengers with no FRA reportable accidents or
injuries. Total income from SD&AT: property for fisst quarier, 2014 was §44,533.0C. Our check
for $891 will follow under separate zover. By comparison, PFSRM carried 1,901 passengers
during the second quarier of 2013 aad total income from SD&AE property was $18,781.96.

In reference to the last paragraph on: page 2 (shown below) of the Museum’s report,

Ms. Landers requested that Ms. Hyatt forward a copy in writing of the interim 24-hour
dispatching procedures that were agreed upon between the Museum and Pacific Imperial
Railroad (PIR).

At the meeting of this board in April of this year I referénced that PSRM's operating agreement
with SD&AE expired in December, 2012 and currently self-renews on a monthly basis. From
that meeting Karen Landers encouraged PIR and | to meet and discuss our plans for mutual
cooperation pertinent to the use of the railroad, PSRM's Director of Operations Mike Edwards,
Don Stocklein and I mct in May. At that mecting it was determined that PSRM was ready and
capable of establishing 24 hour dispatching that would serve the museum in the interim and that
was [ully capable of serving the needs of PIR in the future if they so desired. From the
agreements reached at that meeting, PSRM began issuing its own track warrants through its
dispatching department. PSRM has also inistalled proper signage at both Highway 94 grade
crossings with a toll free number that forwards directly to the dispatcher on call. The previously
posted phone number had been maintained and answered by CZR Y Police Department

personnel.

Action Taken

Mr. Domen moved to receive the report for information. Mr. Jones seconded the motion, and it
was unanimously approved.
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5. Report on Desert Line

Chas McHaffie reviewed PIR's report (attached to the agenda item). Donald Stoecklein added i
that PIR continues to have a good working relationship with Mexico—specifically the Lindero :
property owners. Mr. Stoecklein noted that Victor Celis was present at the meeting. He stated

that PIR’s intention is to move forward with a transaction with Lindero to do whatever is

necessary to operate train cars on those two miles of the Desert Line. Mr. Stoecklein also noted |
that George Gonzalez, representative with Baja Rail, was present and that they have had -
numerous conversations. He stated that PIR will now focus on the repairing the bridges with the

goal of moving trains on the Desert Line to the extent that PIR can interact with Mexico and if

they can't, they will find alternatives.

Mr. McHaffie stated that PIR submitted a Desert Line Reconstruction Plan Supplement, and
Ms. Landers responded that MTS is reviewing that Plan. Mr. McHaffie added that PIR tendered
a $500,000 payment to MTS last week. He reviewed the remainder of the report.

Mr. Stoecklein referenced the last item in PIR's report (“c. Rent/Lease Payment” on page 5-6 of
the agenda item). Mr. Stoecklein stated that people were curious as to why PIR delayed its
quarterly payment to MTS, and that it was due to the letter to MTS from Congressman Duncan
Hunter's office suggesting that MTS may not have had legal right to create the lease. Based on
that, Mr. Stoecklein stated that PIR was concerned about writing a echeck for $500,000 without
analyzing that allegation to determine whether to make that payment. He reported that is why
PIR delayed making the payment. Based on a letter in response to the missed payment from
Ms. Landers to PIR and PIR's own analysis, PIR concluded that it would make the payment.
Ms. Landers added that PIR's contract is currently in good standing.

Mr. Jablonski reiterated that MTS wili be reviewing the Desert Line Reconstruction Plan
Supplement and hopefully approving it so that work can begin. Mr. Stoecklein added that PIR
will be meeting with J. L. Patterson because PIR has spent $601,000 with J. L. Patterson so far
and was to receive some additional materials as it relates to J. L. Patterson's report. He added
that there is an outstanding balance of $42,000 that PIR will withhold until it gets the balance of
the J. L. Patterson report. '

Action Taken

Mr. Domen moved to receive the report for information. Mr. Jones seconded the motion, and it
was unanimously approved.

6. Real Property Matters
> Summary of SD&AE Documents Issued Since April 15, 2014

Since the April 15, 2014, SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors meeting, the
documents described below have been processed by staff.

. 00-14-590: Right of Entry Permit to Helix Water District to perform various
inspection and maintenance activities on SD&AE right-of-way. !

° $200-14-596: Right of Entry Permit to Flatiron/H&H (a joint venture) to .
construct the South Line Freight Improvement Project. .
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° 5200-14-597: Right of Entry Permit to the City of La Mesa for its Flag Day Parade.

e 200-14-598: Right of Entry Permit to Navy Region Southwest Morale, Welfare and
Recreation Department for its 28th Annual Bay Bridge Run/MWalk event.

° $200-14-599: Right of Entry Permit to BriceHouse, Inc. to construct a temporary
shuttle drop-off location at the south end of the San Ysidro Yard.

Action Taken

Mr. Jablonski moved to receive the report for information. Mr. Jones seconded the motion, and
it was unanimously approved.

7. Board Member Communications

There were no Board member communications.

Public. Comments

There were not public comments.

9. Next Meeting Date
The next meeting of the SD&AE Board of Directors is on Tuesday, October 21, 2014.

10. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 9:20 a.m.

@M@S“\

Legal Counsel

Altachment: Report on Pacific Soithwest Railway Museum Operations (submitted at the meeting)




Att. A, Al 6, 11/20/14

Pacific Southwest Railway Museum

La Mesa Dopot 4695 Nebo Drive La Meca, CA 91941 6194857776

July 10, 2014

SD&AE Board

¢/o Metropolitan Transit System
1255 Imperial Avenue, Suitie 1000
San Diego, CA 92101

Re: Second Quarter 2014

Dear SD&AE Board:

During the second quarter of 2014, atiiizing all volunteer crews, the Pacific Southwest Railway
Museum ran 50 passenger trains cairying 2,794 passengers with no FRA reportable accidents or
injuries. Total income from SD&.AI: property for fisst quarter, 2014 was $44,533.00. Our check
for $891 will follow under separaie cover. By comparison, PSRM carried 1,901 passengers
during the second quarter of 2013 aad total income from: SD&AE property was $18,781.96.

Passenger ridership by comparisun fo the same quarter in previous years:

2,882 passengers during the secand guarter of 2012 ,
2,434 passengers < during the second gikarter of 201 | .
1,977 passcng..rs during the second quarier of 2019 !
., 1,606 passgngegs duitiny the second quarter of 2089
2 2, 541 pa, _ennex.. dwwg the sewond quarte 677 2003

Passenger ridership figures have siguifivetly havinovid avesiast yeac’s and are on par with those
of 2012. This is atmbuted parlially 1o s, syoc-aa! avent.dunng this Guacter, the museuin'sannual
Bunny Trains which attracts a terge vuraber of fasulies with young ehildren., The spring weather
this year was alsovery agieeable and altracted a number ol visitors. 'Vhe other special cvent held
during thistinie period was the Chefé Pite ) 1ii'm im;x"?arsc stenthowéver, since this event
«doés not includea tram nde m !ne basc ticket PR“‘.* it \yg§_ﬂmv ammor eontnbutor to srain
ridership. s ;

u t.ll- u A e d

PSRM contirities to aintatn botiz vngnaﬂzca fafifal ci‘csa:nz-:i -w*_thin X :‘:ght of way firits
peiforming the monthly and questorly ingaeerions, HHRM e piatform tivice weeldy rack

1 &

A Pederal Tax Examnt sm [p]\s r:glltqrmn !mn ;'ro_llt ﬁnrpdiraﬂon WWW.psrm.org

e (R A LR LR s SR T
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Agenda ltem No. 2

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 21, 2014

SUBJECT:  STATEMENT OF RAILWAY FINANCES

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors receive a financial report for the
quarter ending September 30, 2014.

Budget Impact

None.

DISCUSSION:

Attachment:

Attached are the financial results for the first quarter of fiscal year (FY) 2015, which
includes the periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.

The current year-to-date revenues are $232,000 favorable to budget primarily due to the
Desert Line Lease revenue not included in the budget. This is partially reduced by Right
of Entry Permit revenue under budget by $19,000 due to writing off $14,000 in
uncollectable invoices to the Port of San Diego. Income has decreased by $20,000
compared to the same period. last year, primarily due to the uncollectable Port of San
Diego invoices.

Expenses are $12,000 unfavorable to budget primarily due to an unfavorable variance in
Personnel Costs and Outside Services. Expenses have increased by $10,000 compared
to last year, primarily due to an increase in Outside Services.

The Net Income for the first quarter of FY 2015 was $222,000 compared to net income of
$251,000 for the same period in FY 2014.

SD&AE Operating Statement 1% Quarter FY 2015
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SD&AE Operating Statement FY2015-14

FY 2015 FY 2014
Q1 Actual Q1:Budget Varianco [*1} Varianco
Revenue '
Right of Entry Permits $ (11,600) § 750 § (19,100) 3 13,250 (24,850)
Lease Income 18,881 17,499 1,362 13,081 6,800
Desert Line Lease Revenue 250,000 - 250,000 250,000 -
SD&IV 1% Freight Fee ... 8000 8,751 ' 249 9,704 Wl‘
Total Revenue 256281 33780 232651 286,035 (19,754)
Expense o
Personnel Costs S0 /23471 (6554 30,685 2,240
Qutside Services 8,050 5,048 {8,008) 515 7,535
Risk Management 3,480 #4264 ane 3336 144
Misc, Operaling Expanses A 28& 128 A158), 284 -
Total Expense 44,739 32,780 {11,949) 34820 9,919
Net Income/{Loss) $ 221642 08 ....0960 .8 220682 [ § 261216 § B,

_'I:t_mrve Balance 2014

§ 1,576,006

Allocated Inferest Eamings - Estimated 1,250
Operating Profitf{Loss) 221,542
Resarve Balance 2015 - Eslimaied § 1706828

A-10
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Agenda ltem No. _3_

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD8AE)
Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 21, 2014

SUBJECT:
REPORT ON SAN DIEGO AND IMPERIAL VALLEY (SD&IV) RAILROAD OPERATIONS
RECOMMENDATION:
That the SD&AE Board of Directors receive a report for information.
Budget Impact
None.
DISCUSSION:

An oral repart will be given during the mesting.

Attachment: Periedic Report for the 3rd Quarter of 2014

A-11
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a Genepse & Wyoming Cempany

SD&AE Board Oct 6, 2014
C/O MTS

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000

San Diego, California 92101

Periodic Report

In accordance with Section 20 of the Agreement for Operational Freight Service and
Control through Management of the San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
activities of interest for the 3rd Quarter 0of 2014 are listed as follows:

1. Labor
At the end of Sept 30, 2014 the San Diego & Imperial Railroad had 9 employces:

1 General Manager

1 Trainmaster

1 Manager - Marketing & Sales

1 Office Manager i
1 Mechanical Manager -
1 Maintenance of Way Employee

3 Train Service Employees

A-12
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2. Marketing -

Volume in the 3rd Quarter declined 25% as compared to 2013. Bridge traffic
had a 28% decrease, primarily driven by a decrease in LPG going into Mexico.
Traffic terminating or originating on the SDIY was down 11% versus last year.

3.  Reportable Injuries/Environmental

Days through year to date, September 30, 2014, there were no FRA Reportable
injuries or Environmental incidents on the SDIV Railroad.

Days FRA Reportable Injury Free: 6388 .

4. Summary of Freight

2014] 2013 2012
Total rail carloads that - 912 1219 1305 ’
moved by SDIY Rail
Service in the quarter.
Total railroad carloads 705 985 1077

Terminating/Originating
Mexico in the quarter.

Total railroad carloads 207 234
Terminating/Originating El

Cajon, San Diego, National
City, San Ysidro, California
in the gquarter.

228

Total customers directly 10 10 | 9
served by SDIY in the
| quarter

Regional Truck trips that 2736 3657 3915
SDIY Railroad Service
replaced in the quarter

Respectfully,
Matt Domen

General Manager

A-13 }
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Agenda Item No. 4

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 21, 2014

SUBJECT:
REPORT ON PACIFIC SOUTHWEST RAILWAY MUSEUM

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Board of Directors receive a report for information.

Budget Impact

None.

DISCUSSION:

A report will be presented during the meeting.

Attachment: Not Provided

A-14
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Pacific Southwest Railway Museum

La Mesa Depot 4695 Nebo Drive La Mosa, CA 91941 6184857778

October 10, 2014

SD&AE Board

c/o Metropolitan Transit System
1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101

Re: Third Quarter 2014

Dear SD& AE Board:

During the third quarter of 2014, utilizing all volunteer crews, the Pacific Southwest Railway
Museum ran.32 passenger trains carrying 1,031 passengers with no FRA reportable accidents or
injuries. Total income from SD&AE property for third quarter, 2014 was'$11,421.00. Our check
for $228 will follow under separate cover. By comparison, PSRM carried 1,254 passengers
during the third quarter of 2013 and total income from SD&AE property was $26,538.

Passenger ridership for third quarter by comparison:

1,031 passengers during the third quarter of 2014
1,254 passengers duting the third quarter of 2013
1,012 passengers during the third quarter of 2012
1,294 passengers during the third quarter of 2011
1,468 passengers during the third quarter of 2010

Passenger ridership figures have declined over last year’s and additionally, discretionary !
spending has decreased dramatically with our visitors. There were no special events during this '
quarter and we operated two trains on Saturday evening only during the months of July and
August. The museum is looking forward to a prosperous fourth quarter with two of its most
popular events occurring during this time period: The Pumpkin Express Trains and the North

Pole Trains. ’

PSRM continues to maintain both signalized railroad crossings within our right of way Jimits. I
am pleased to report that the electric ineters for both crossings at Highway 94 have been
transferred into the museum’s name. PSRM performs twice-weekly track inspections between

& Federal Tax Exempt 501 (C) 3 Californie Xon-Profit Corporation www.psrm.org

A-15
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MP 59.9 and 66.77. Likewise, our volunteer track crew regularly performs track maintenance
tasks.
Sincerely,

(5 o
& = CTUmmitea
Kh/’(‘:(l?-«t-'\‘;_. e ; 2

Diana Hyatt
President

A-16
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Agenda ltem No.

Ban Disgoe and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
- Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 21, 2044

REPORT ON'THE DESERT 1

'RECOMMENDATION:
Thatthe: SDEAE Board of Ditsstors revaiv
Budget Impact
Nore:

DISCUSSION:
Acreport willss presented during Heneeliig;

Attachrriant; Quartedy Report:

e repart for information,.

A-17
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P o i ewie aaa o

PERIODIC REPORT

October 8, 2014

The periodic report to the SD&AE Railway Company is produced quarterly by the
Pagific Imperial Railroad, Inc. for the SD&AE Board, in fulfillment of contractual
requirements and to-document activity in the restoration of the line to regional
service along with its ongoing improvement for future generations.

Pacific Imperial Railroad, Inc.

A-18
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< B H

Third Quarter 2014
CONTENTS

CHANGES IN MANAGEMENT
GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

DESERT LINE

REPORTABLE INJURIES / ACCIDENTS /
ENYIRONMENTAL INCIDENTS MARKETING

FREIGHT ACTIVITY

MTS OPERATING AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS

e L

A-19
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I. CHANGES IN MANAGEMENT
4. Mr. Jory, acting as President and M. Stoecklein acting as CEQ are
continuing their positions in the company.
II. GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS
a. PIR still maintains that the Mexican side of the rail is a crucial piece
to this operation. As such, PIR has been working with attorneys with
Baja Rail to effectuate a relationship with Mexico.
II. DESERT LINE
a. Reconstruction Plan
i.  Inspections- PIR submitted its Desert Line Reconstruction Plan
Supplement (DLRPS) during the previous quarter and MTS
Approved the DLRPS on August 28, 2014.
ii. Approval- Karen Lanciers of MTS submitted a letter to PIR
Approving the Desert Line Reconstruction Plan and Initiation of
Initial Repair Milestones,

b. Commencement of Reconstruction-

A-20
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. Asaresult of the recent approval on August 8, 2014 of the
Reconstruction Plan, PIR is now in discussions with coniractors to

commence reconstruction of the bridges.

IV. REPORTABLE INJURIES/ ACCIDENTS/

ENVIRONMENTAL INCIDENTS

i. There nave not been any reportable accidents
ii. There have not been any reportable injuries.

tii. There have not been any reportable environmental incidents.

V. MARKETING

a. PIR is continning its efforts to obtain the freight logistics needs of the
approximately 658 companies in the Maquiladoras region that are
potential rail customers for PIR.

V1. FREIGHT ACTIVITY

a. Currently, PIR has not commenced revenue generation pending

completion of the Inspections and Construction above.
VIL MTS OPERATING AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS

a. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Desert Line Lease and

Operating Agreement between PIR, San Diego and Arizona Eastern

Railways Company and the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System,

A-21
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no Performance Milestone Requirements fell within Third Quarter

2014,

- Initial Repairs: Initisl Repairs shall be completed within 12 months

after approval, by SD&AE of the Desert Line Reconstruction Plan

(“DLRP”). The DLRP was approved on August 28, 2014
cornmencing a 12 month window in which to comy lete the Initial
Repairs, PIR is in the process of obtaining bids to determine costs of

repairs to commence test train operations.

. .Rent/Lease Payment: PIR shall pay SD&AE semi- annually, a lump.

sum payment of $500,000.
1. The July 1, 2014 $500,000 payment was made to SD&AE.

A-22
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Agenda ltem No. 63

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 21, 2014

SUBJECT:
SUMMARY OF SD&AE DOCUMENTS ISSUED SINCE JULY 15, 2014
RECOMMENDATION:
That the SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors receive a report for information.
Budget Impact
None.
DISCUSSION:

Since the July 15, 2014, SD&AE Railway Company Board of Directors meeting, the
documents described below have been processed by staff.

. $200-13-593.2: Right of Entry Permit Amendment to Ramona Paving &
Construction Corp. to construct street improvements at Cesar Chavez Parkway in

San Diego.

.8200-14:-591: License to Cox Communications for an underground fiber optic
crossing on the Coronado Branch north of the Salt Works in Chula Vista.

J S200-14-595: Right of Entry Permit to the State of California Parks and
Recreation for invasive species monitoring and eradication near Jacumba on the

Desert Line.

. S200-14-598: Right of Entry Permit to Navy Region Southwest Morale, Welfare
and Recreation Department for its 28" Annual Bay Bridge Run / Walk event.

. S200-15-600: Right of Entry Permit to the San Diego County Bicycle Coalition for

the 7" annual Bike the Bay Bike ride along various locations on the Blue Line and
the Coronado Branch.

A-23



Att. A, Al 6, 11/20/14

$200-15-601: Right of Entry Permit to SDG&E for various electrical service
upgrades along the Blue Line for the South Line Freight Improvement Project.

5200-15-602: Right of Entry Permit to The Fishel Company to construct
underground fiber for the San Ysidro Yard Improvement Project impacts to US

Sprint.

$200-15-603: Right of Entry Permit to The Fishel Company to construct
underground fiber for the San Ysidro Yard Improvement Project impacts to Level

3.

$200-15-604: Right of Entry Permit to SDG&E for various electrical service
upgrades for the San Ysidro Yard Improvement Project.

$200-15-605: Right of Entry Permit to Copp Contracting, Inc. to perform street
paving at J Street and Palomar Street in Chula Vista.

$200-15-606: Right of Entry Permit to Anza-Borrego Desert Natural History
Association for several hikes on the Desert Line in the vicinity of the Carrizo

Gorge.

A-24
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Agenda Item No. {

San Diego and Arizona Eastern (SD&AE)
Railway Company
Board of Directors Meeting

October 21, 2014

SUBJECT:
APPROVAL OF THE 2015 SD&AE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING SCHEDULE

RECOMMENDATION:

That the SD&AE Board of Directors approve the 2015 SD&AE Board of Directors meeting
schedule.

Budget Impact

None.

DISCUSSION:

The SD&AE Board of Directors customarily meets once each quarter to discuss business
and receive reports from its contract operators. The following meeting schedule is
recommended for 2015:

Tuesday, January 27,2015  9:00 a.m.  (Fourth Quarter 2014 Reports)
Tuesday, April 14, 2015 9:00 a.m.  (First Quarter 2015 Reports)
Tuesday, July 14, 2015 9:00 a.m. (Second Quarter 2016 Reports)
Tuesday, October, 13,2016 9:00 a.m.  (Third Quarter 2015Reports)

Upon approval of the above meeting dates, additional information regarding materials
due dates and mail-outs are as follows:

Materials Due to Clerk Materials Mailed.

Friday, January 16, 2015 Wednesday, January 21, 2015
Friday, April 3, 20156 Wednesday, April 8, 2015
Thursday, July 2, 2015 Wednesday, July 8, 2015
Friday, October 2, 2015 Wednesday, October 7, 2015

A-25
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Metropolitan Transit System

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 « FAX (619) 234-3407

Agenda Item No. 4

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:
LOS ANGELES - SAN DIEGO — SAN LUIS OBISPO RAIL CORRIDOR AGENCY
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board of Directors approve the proposed amendment to the 2013 Amendment
to the Joint Powers Agreement Concerning the Los Angeles — San Diego — San Luis
Obispo Corridor Rail Agency (LOSSAN) to ensure that the official agency name is
correctly stated as the Los Angeles — San Diego — San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor
Agency throughout the document.
Budget Impact
None

DISCUSSION:

The Board of Directors is asked to approve a minor amendment to the 2013 Amendment
to the Joint Powers Agreement Concerning the Los Angeles — San Diego — San Luis
Obispo Corridor Rail Agency to ensure that the official agency name is correctly stated
as the Los Angeles — San Diego — San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor Agency (LOSSAN).

On April 18, 2013, the MTS Board of Directors (Board) approved the 2013 Amendment
to the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) Concerning the Los Angeles — San Diego — San
Luis Obispo (LOSSAN) Corridor Rail Agency (Agency). At that time, the LOSSAN JPA
was amended to include significant changes that reflected the provisions in Senate Bill (SB)
1225 (Chapter 802, Statutes of 2012), which permits the LOSSAN Agency to assume
administrative responsibility for the state-supported Pacific Surfliner intercity passenger
rail service.

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 ¢ (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com @ @ @ @

Metropolitan Translt System (MTS} is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastem Railway Company
(nonprofit public banefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trollay, inc., a 501(c)3) nonprofit corpotation, in cooperatior with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taiicab admiinistrator for seven citles.

MTS member agencles Include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Dlego, Santee, and the County of San Diego.



Recently, LOSSAN Agency legal counsel discovered a discrepancy between the official,
historical name of the LOSSAN Agency and the name stated on the most recent LOSSAN
JPA document that had been approved by all member agencies. The transposition of the
words “rail” and “corridor” in the 2013 amendment to the LOSSAN JPA effectively
changed the legal name of the LOSSAN Agency from “LOSSAN Rail Corridor Agency”
to “LOSSAN Corridor Rail Agency.”

It appears that the name change was an inadvertent mistake; however, the ambiguity in
naming has created a number of issues that must be resolved, including statutory
reporting issues with the state due to the conflicting agency names. In order to be
statutorily compliant with reporting requirements and to avoid future ambiguity, the
LOSSAN Board voted unanimously at its August 14, 2014 meeting, to direct staff to work
with all member agencies to prepare and execute an amendment to the LOSSAN JPA to
ensure that the official agency name is correctly stated as the Los Angeles — San Diego
— San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor Agency throughout the document.

Once approval is received from each member agency to amend the LOSSAN JPA, the
LOSSAN Board will be asked to make similar amendments to the LOSSAN Agency
bylaws.

The Board of Directors is asked to approve a minor amendment to the 2013 Amendment
to the Joint Powers Agreement Concerning the Los Angeles — San Diego — San Luis

Obispo Corridor Rail Agency to correct an administrative error regarding the official
agency name.

Paul W
Chief Execufive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. 2014 Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement Concerning LOSSAN
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2014 AMENDMENT TO THE

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

CONCERNING THE LOS ANGELES-SAN DIEGO-SAN LUIS OBISPO
CORRIDOR RAIL AGENCY

INTRODUCTION

This Amendment to the 2013 Joint Powers Agreement Concerning the Los Angeles —
San Diego— San Luis Obispo Corridor Rail Agency (Agreement) is made and entered into in the
State of California by and among the following entities that are parties to the Agreement:

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority;

Orange County Transportation Authority;

Riverside Counlty Transportation Commission;

North County Transit District;

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System;

California Department of Transportation;

Southern California Association of Governments;

San Diego Association of Governments;

Ventura County Transportation Commission;

Santa Barbara County Association of Governments;

San Luis Obispo Council of Governments;

National Railroad Passenger Corporation;

California High-Speed Rail Authority;
RECITALS
WHEREAS, on or about February 1989, some, but not all of the entities listed above first entered

into a certain joint exercise of powers agreement to establish the Los Angeles — San Diego Rail
Corridor Agency (Agency); and

1024416.1
A-1



Att. A, Al 7, 11/20/14

WHEREAS, on or about October 2001, the member agencies approved an amendment to the
joint exercise of powers agreement to make various changes, including, but not limited to,
changing the name of the Agency to the "Los Angeles — San Diego — San Luis Obispo Rail
Corridor Agency"; and

WHEREAS, on or about June 2013, the joint exercise of powers agreement was once again
amended to its current form in response to the provisions of SB 1225; and

WHEREAS, it was later discovered that an inadvertent transposition of the words "rail" and
“corridor" were included in the name of the Agency throughout the Agreement, including the
title such that the name of the Agency was inadvertently changed from" Los Angeles —
San Diego — San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor Agency" to the "Los Angeles — San Diego —
San Luis Obispo Corridor Rail Agency"; and

WHEREAS, the member agencies wish to correct this inadvertent transposition so that the joint
exercise of powers agreement correctly reflects the historical name of the Agency as the
“Los Angeles ~ San Diego — San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor Agency."

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, the parties to this Agreement agree to the
following;:

1. All references contained in the 2013 Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement
Concerning the Los Angeles — San Diego — San Luis Obispo Corridor Rail Agency which state
"Corridor Rail Agency" shall hereinafter be amended and interpreted to read as "Rail Corridor
Agency".

2. All other terms, provisions and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and
effect.
3. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an

original and all of which together shall constitute on and the same agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment by authorized
officials on the dates indicated below.

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement

1024416.1
A-2
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LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Chair

Date

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement

1024416.1
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ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Chair

Date

I HEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement

1024416.1
A4



Att. A, Al 7, 11/20/14

RIVERSIDE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Chair

Date

ITHEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
1024416.1
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NORTH COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

Chair

Date

IHEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
1024416.1
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

Chair

Date

IHEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
1024416.1



SAN DIEGO ASSOCAITION OF GOVERNMENTS

Chair

Date

I HEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
1024416.1
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VENTURA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Chair

Date

IHEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
1024416.1
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SANTA BARBARA COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

Chair

Date

ITHEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement

1024416.1
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SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Chair

Date

ITHEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement

1024416.1
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AMTRAK

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
1024416.1
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CALIFORNIA HIGH-SPEED RAIL AUTHORITY

Chief Executive Officer

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
1024416.1
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

Chair

Date

ITHEREBY ATTEST that the attached is a true and correct copy of the
original document approved by the Board of Directors:

Clerk of the Board

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement

1024416.1
A-14
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CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Date

2014 Amendment to the LOSSAN Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
1024416.1
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Agenda Item No. 8

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NOVEMBER 20, 2014
SUBJECT:
INVESTMENT REPORT —~ SEPTEMBER 2014
INFORMATIONAL ONLY

Budget Impact

None.
DISCUSSION:

Attachment A comprises a report of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS)
investments as of September 30, 2014. The combined total of all investments has
decreased month to month from $231.2 million to $230.0 million. This $1.2 million
decrease is attributable to expenditures of $2.8 million for acquisition of capital assets,
as well as normal timing differences in other payments and receipts.

The first column provides details about investments restricted for capital improvement
projects and debt service, which are related to the 1995 lease and leaseback
transactions. The funds restricted for debt service are structured investments with fixed
returns that will not vary with market fluctuations if held to maturity. These investments
are held in trust and will not be liquidated in advance of the scheduled maturities. These
restricted funds will be liquidated to satisfy the outstanding debt obligation in full by the
end of the calendar year 2015.

The second column, unrestricted investments, reports the working capital for MTS
operations allowing payments for employee payroll and vendors’ goods and services.

PaWki
Chief'Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Investment Report for September 2014

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490  (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com @ @

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, inc., San Dlego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
(nonprofit pubfic benefit corporations), and San Diago Vintage Tralley, Inc., a 501(c}3) nonprofit corporatlon, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS Is the taxicab administrator for seven cities.

MTS member agencies Include the cfties of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santes, and the County of San Diego.



Cash and Cash Equivalents

JP Morgan Chase - concentration account
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash - Restricted for Capital Support

US Bank - retention trust account

San Diego County Investment Pool
Proposition 1B TSGP grant funds

Total Cash - Restricted for Capital Support
Investments - Working Capital

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Total Investments - Working Capital

Investments - Restricted for Debt Service

US Bank - Treasury Strips - market value
(Par value $39,474,000)

Rabobank -
Payment Undertaking Agreement

Total Investments Restricted for Debt Service

Total cash and investments

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Investment Report

Att. A, Al 8, 11/20/14

September 30, 2014

Restricted Unrestricted Total
86,440 67,738,230 67,824,670
86,440 67,738,230 67,824,670
8,758,582 - 8,758,582
3,899,230 - 3,899,230
12,657,812 - 12,657,812
19,745,588 13,490,795 33,236,383
19,745,588 13,490,795 33,236,383
39,435,612 - 39,435,612
76,816,295 - 76,816,295
116,251,907 - 116,251,907
$ 148,741,747 $ 81,229,025 $ 229,970,772

N/A* - Per trust agreements, interest earned on retention account is allocated to trust beneficiary (contractor)

Average
rate of
return

0.00%

N/A *

0.246%

7.69%
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Agenda Item No. Q

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:
INCREASED AUTHORIZATION FOR LEGAL SERVICES — OPPER & VARCO, LLP

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to:

1) execute Amendment No. 2, MTS Doc. No. G1429.2-12 (in substantially the same
format as Attachment A) with OPPER & VARCO, LLP to pay current and future legal
expenses through the remainder of fiscal year 2015; and

2) ratify one prior contract amendment entered into under the CEO’s authority
(Attachment B).

Budget Impact

Approval of this contract amendment would increase the full contract value with OPPER
& VARCO, LLP by $50,000 from $100,000 to $150,000. Sufficient funding for the
recommended $50,000 contract increase is included in the current operating budget.

DISCUSSION:

Pursuant to Board Policy No. 52 (Procurement of Goods and Services), the CEO may
enter into contracts with service providers for up to $100,000. The Board must approve
all agreements in excess of $100,000.

On December 8, 2011, the Board established a panel of qualified law firms to assist the
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS), San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI) and San
Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) with various legal matters on an as-needed basis.
Thereafter, MTS began contracting with eighteen of the approved firms for designated
amounts. The firms provide different specialties of law, such as tort liability, workers’

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 « (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com @ @

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a Californla public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
(nonprofit public benefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trollay, Inc., a 501(c3) nonprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab admilnistrator for seven clties.
MTS member agenicies include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Impetial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santee, and the County of San Diego.



compensation, employment practices, real estate, environmental, etc. Thirteen of these
firms received contract increases at the July 17, 2014 Board meeting to pay current and
anticipated legal expenses through June 30, 2015. An increase was not requested for
Opper & Varco, LLP at that time, as the anticipated legal services provided by this firm
did not substantiate the need for an increase over the existing balance.

Due to new and anticipated matters that have arisen in recent months, it has been
determined that adding $50,000 to the current contract would be prudent to ensure there
is enough funding to pay this contractor through the end of the current fiscal year.
OPPER & VARCO, LLP represents MTS on real estate, right-of-entry and environmental
related litigation.

PauﬁC.\J%_b_Il@sl(
Chief Execufive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment;

A. Draft MTS Doc. No. G1429.2-12
B. MTS Doc. No. G1429.1-12
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November xx, 2014 MTS Doc. No. G1429.2-12
LEG 490 (PC 50121)

Opper & Varco, LLP

Ms. Linda C. Beresford
Attorney

225 Broadway, Suite 1900
San Diego, CA 92101-3542

Dear Ms. Beresford:

Subject: AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO MTS DOC. NO. G1429.0-12; LEGAL SERVICES -
ENVIRONMENTAL & REAL ESTATE

This shall serve as Amendment No. 2 to our agreement for the legal services as further described
below.

STATEMENT OF WORK

Pursuant to the scope of work of MTS RFP No G1389.0-11, Opper & Varco, LLP agrees to continue to
provide legal services as directed by the Gerieral Counsel regardmg environmental and real estate law
in accordance with the terms and conditions‘as: stated on MTS Doc No, G1429.0-12.

SCHEDULE

There is no change to the term of this agreement.

PAYMENT

This contract amendment shall authorize additional costs not to exceed $50,000 for legal services.

The total valué:of this contract including this amendment shall be in the amount of $150,000. This
amount shall not be exceeded wwthout written. approval from MTS.

Please sign and retum the copy marked "Orlglnal” to the Contracts Specialist at MTS. All other terms
and conditions shall remain the same and in effect. Retain the other copy for your records.

Sincerely, ' Agreed:
Paul C. Jablonski Linda C. Beresford, Attorney
Chief Executive Officer Opper & Varco, LLP

Date:

G1429.2-12.OPPER&VARCO.11.2014

Cc:  S. Lockwood, K. Landers, C. Aquino, Procurement File
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December 18, 2012 MTS Doc. No. G1429.1-12
LEG 490 (PC 50121)

Opper & Varco, LLP

Ms. Linda C. Beresford
Attorney

225 Broadway, Suite 1900
San Diego, CA 92101-3542

Dear Ms. Beresford:

Subject: AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO MTS DOC. NO. G1429.0-12; LEGAL SERVICES —
ENVIRONMENTAL & REAL ESTATE

This shall serve as Amendment No. 1 to our agreement for the legal services as further described
below.

STATEMENT OF WORK
Pursuant to the scope of work of MTS RFP No. G1389.0-11, Opper & Varco, LLP agrees to continue to

provide legal services as directed by the General Counsel regarding environmental and real estate law
in accordance with the terms and conditions as stated on MTS Doc No. G1429.0-12.

SCHEDULE
There is no change to the term of this agreement.

PAYMENT

This contract amendment shall authorize additional costs not to exceed $50,000 for legal services.
The total value of this contract including this amendment shall be in the amount of $100,000. This
amount shall not be exceeded without written approval from MTS. -

Pleass sign and retuin the copy marked “Original’ to the Contracts. Specialist at MTS. All other terms
and conditions shall remain the same and in effect. Retain the other copy for your records.

Sincerely, Ag eed:

wh €. B nd-

Linda C. Beresford, Atforney
Chief Executive Officer Opper & Varco, LLP

LMARQUIS-CL Date: ‘\)C\M 3;, 201%-

CL-G1429.1-12,.0PPER&VARCO.CAQUINO. 121812

Cc: S. Lockwood, K. Landers, C. Aquino, Procurement File .
1255 Imperial Avenus, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 82101-7490 e (618) 231-1466 « www.sdmits.com @ @ @
Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) ks a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, inc., San Dlego end Arizona Eastern Reitway Company

{nenprofit public benefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trolley, Inc., a 601(cK3) nonprofit corparation, in cooperation with Chuta Vista Transit. MTS Is the taxicab administrator for seven cities.
MTS member agencies Include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, Nationat City, Poway, San Dlego, Santee, and the County of San Diego.
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Agenda Item No. 1_0

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:
COLOCATION DATA CENTER FACILITY SERVICES — CONTRACT AWARD

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to:

1) execute MTS Doc. No. G1765.0-15 (in substantially the same format as Attachment
A) with American Internet Services, LLC (AIS) for colocation data center facility
services for a two-year base period with two one-year option periods (for a total of 4
years); and

2) exercise each option year at the CEO's discretion.

Budget Impact

The total cost of this agreement would not exceed $198,438.00 for the base period and
$190,560.00 for the two option years for a grand total of $388,998.00. The project will
be funded through the Compass Card operating budget account 532-53910.

DISCUSSION:

In July 2014, MTS took over responsibilities of managing the regional Compass Card
fare collection program from the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG)
which included all relevant technology maintenance and support. The Compass Card
back office servers, network and storage are physically located in the AIS Lightwave
Data Center colocation facility (Facility) in Kearny Mesa, and these systems have been
at that location for over five years.

= Q
1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 « (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com . @

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) Is a Califarnia public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Dlego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastem Rallway Company
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MTS member agencies Include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, EI Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santes, and the County of San Diego.



Colocation facilities provide space, power, cooling and physical security for the server,
storage, and networking equipment for companies who desire this service and connect
them to a variety of telecommunications and network service providers.

Several years ago, SANDAG entered into an agreement with AlS to build server racks
for the Compass Card program and included additional SANDAG technical equipment
for their other projects. As part of the continued transition of Compass Card program
management from SANDAG to MTS, it is necessary for MTS to separate Compass Card
equipment from SANDAG's equipment. This includes moving Compass Card equipment
into a separate and secure area within the facility. This newly formed area will provide
physical security to the Compass Card program systems and provides physical access
to MTS staff while eliminating physical access to SANDAG staff.

The Compass Card program systems are critical and necessary for the day-to-day fare
collection requirements for the region. The AIS location has in place all necessary data
center infrastructure and network circuits to support the program, and continuing the
partnership with AIS at the existing facility assures MTS the least risk to downtime and
associated costs with migrating the equipment. Based upon these reasons, this
agreement requires a sole source procurement.

One Time Monthly Annual Total Annual
Setup Recurring Recurring Cost Cost
Base Year 1 $ 7878 | $ 7940 | $ 95,280 $ 103,158
Base Year 2 $ - $ 7940 | § 95,280 $ 95,280
Option Year 1 $ B $ 7940 | $ 95,280 $ 95,280
Option Year2 | $ - $ 7940 | $ 95280 | $ 95,280
Total Cost Of Agreement | $ 388,998

="

Paul C\-lablonski”

Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Draft Standard Services Agreement; Contract G1765.0-15
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STANDARD SERVICES AGREEMENT G1765.0-15
CONTRACT NUMBER

FILE NUMBER(S)

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this _ day of 2014, in the state of California by
and between San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (“MTS"), a California public agency, and the following,
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor":

Name: American Internet Services, LLC Address: 9305 Lightwave Avenue

Form of Business: Limited Liability Company San Diego, CA 92123
(Corporation, partnership, sole proprietor, etc.)

Telephone: 858-537-0709

Authorized person to sign contracts: Dominic Miraglia VP of Sales
Name Title

The attached Standard Conditions are part of this agreement. The Contractor agrees to furnish to
MTS the following:

Data Warehouse Services as specified in:the AIS Master Services Agreement (attached as Exhibit A), Pricing
and Service Level Agreement (attached as Exhibit B) and the MTS Standard Conditions, Services, (attached as
Exhibit C). .

The base term of the contract shall be from December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2016. Option periods, if
exercised at the sole discretion of MTS, shall be from December 1, 2016 through November 30, 2017 for Option
Year 1 and from December 1, 2017 through November 30, 2018 for Option Year 2 respectively. Such optional
service periods may be exercised individually, all at once, or not at all, at MTS's sole determination.

The total contract amount shall not exceed $198,438.00 for the base period; $95,280.00 for Option Year 1; and
$95,280.00 for Option Year 2 if exercised by MTS for a grand total of $388,998.00 unless otherwise stipulated in
writing by MTS.

!_SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZATION

By: Firm:

Chief Executive Officer
Approved as to form: By:

Signature

By:

Office of General Counsel Title:
AMOUNT ENCUMBERED BUDGET ITEM FISCAL YEAR
$198.,438.00 532-53910 2015-2016
By:

Chief Financial Officer
( total pages, each bearing contract number)
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Agenda Item No. 11

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:

SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM (MTS) WEBSITE REPLACEMENT
PROJECT :

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to execute MTS
Doc. No. G1694.0-14 (in substantially the same format as Attachment A) with Steer,
Davies, Gleave for replacement of the MTS website.

Budget Impact

The total estimated cost of this agreement would not exceed $130,398.06. The funding
of this expense will be funded through the fiscal year (FY) 2015 Capital Improvement
Project 11370.

DISCUSSION:

MTS Policy No. 52, governing procurement of services, requires a formal competitive
process for procurements exceeding $100,000.

On April 7, 2014, MTS issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the MTS website
replacement project. The services include creation of a contemporary and dynamic ADA
compliant website that is responsive to all platforms. The new website will fully integrate
with external applications, both in-house and third party, including trip planning and
schedule applications, alert and advisory information feeds, improve usability and
accessibility of information for our customers as well as business and technology
partners, improve timeliness and efficacy of communication to the public about important
issues related to Bus and Trolley services and operations, and enable customers to
easily purchase tickets, passes (both physical and electronic) and other merchandise.

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 = (619) 231-1466 * www.sdmts.com @ @ e

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a Californla public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
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On June 6, 2014, MTS received a total of six (6) proposals from the following:

AmericanEagle.com, Los Angeles, CA 90067

- Civic Resource Group, Los Angeles, CA 90017
GlobeSherpa, Inc., Portland, OR 97209
Mobile Programming, LLC., Carlsbad, CA 92008
Soft Clouds, San Diego, CA 92127
Steer, Davies, Gleave, Denver, CO 80202

OOAWON

A selection committee consisting of representatives from the MTS Finance, Marketing,
IT and Transportation departments met and rated the proposals. The ratings were based
on the following criteria:

1 Qualifications of the Firm or Individual 40%
2. Staffing, Organization and Management Plan 30%
3. Work Plan 20% -
4 Cost and Price 10%

Total 100%

All proposals were deemed responsive and responsible. After the evaluation, Civic
Resource Group and Steer, Davies, Gleave were considered to be within the competitive
range and advanced to the next step of the evaluation process which included interviews
and negotiations.

Based on the evaluation panel’s analysis of the technical proposal, discussions,
interviews, and evaluation of price (Attachment B), MTS staff has determined that Steer,
Davies, Gleave's proposal is fair and reasonable and represents the best overall value
for MTS.

The following table represents the final scores and rankings for all proposers:

ahll] el e Bl TOTAL SCORE ;
RIAAE e ol freenioom (Lo
et TECH ==t ihan imneed ; ot | RANKING
SCORe | SCORE | Total qu_s_lbl_g R
QSRR e T Points: 1100
64.6 6 706 3
Civic Resource Group 76 5.4 81.4 2
GlobeSherpa 47.2 4 48 4
Mobile Programming 32.6 3.6 SR T 5
Soft Clouds 19.2 3 22.2 6
Steer, Davies, Gleave 80.4 9.4 89.8 1

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachments: A. Draft Standard Services Agreement; Contract G1694.0-14
B. Cost Summary
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STANDARD SERVICES AGREEMENT G1694.0-14
CONTRACT NUMBER
Dll u FILE NUMBER(S)
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this day of 2014, in the state of California by and

between San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (“MTS"), a California public agency, and the following contractor,
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor":

Name: _Steer, Davies, Gleave Address: __ 1900 Wazee St., Suite 250

Form of Business: _Corporation Denver, CO 80202
(Corporation, partnership, sole proprietor, etc.)

Telephone; _213-337-6791

Authorized person to sign contracts: Chris Proud Project Director
Name Title

The attached Standard Conditions are part of this agreement. The Contractor agrees to furnish to MTS services
and materials, as follows:

Provide MTS Website Replacement as set forth in the MTS Scope of Work (attached as Exhibit A), Steer, Davies,
Gleave's Proposal (attached as Exhibit B), in accordance with the Standard Services Agreement, including
Standard Conditions Services (attached as Exhibit C). '

The total contract cost shall not exceed $130,398.06.

SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZATION
By: Firm:

Chief Executive Officer
Approved as to form: By:

Signature

By:

Office of General Counsel Title:
AMOUNT ENCUMBERED BUDGET ITEM FISCAL YEAR
$130,398.06 CIP11370 2015
By:
Chief Financial Officer Date
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Purchasing Department

1255 Imperial Ave., Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101
619.231.1466 FAX 619.696.7084

COST SUMMARY

MTS WEBSITE REPLACEMENT RFP
MTS DOC. NO. G1694.0-14

AmericanEagle.com

$
Civic Resource Group $ 5
GlobeSherpa $

Mobile Programming

o
Soft Clouds Sl
$

Steer, Davies, Gleave* _f ;30,39305 _f-:-'_ﬁ- i

*Steer, Davies, Gleave’s offer was found to be the most advantageous and of greatest value to MTS.

B-1
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Agenda Item No. Q

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:
ADDITION OF THE FOLLOWING POSITIONS:
e One (1) F/T HR Representative
e Two (2) F/T Bus Operator Training Instructors
e One (1) P/T Administrative Assistant
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board of Directors authorize the CEO to add:
1) One (1) HR Representative Il to the FY15 budget, increasing the total Full Time
Equivalent (FTE) position from 3 to 4 at Grade #7 ($47,531 - $74,391);
2) Two (2) Bus Operator Training Instructors to the FY 15 budget, increasing the total
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) position from 6 to 8 at Grade #6 ($41,512 - $64,970); and
3) One (1) P/T Administrative Assistant to the FY15 budget at $15.00 per hour.
Budget impact
Approximately $159,603.00 in salary and benefits total.
e $77,000.00 in salary and benefits charged to Human Resources.
* $82,603 in salary and benefits charged to MTS Bus Operations. This total offsets
a savings of $107,397 from the proposed elimination of five (5) P/T Bus
Operating Training Instructors positions.
DISCUSSION:

MTS Human Resources and MTS Bus Operations have been working hard to hire and train a
sufficient number of Bus Operators to respond the recent increase in demand for full-time,
properly trained Bus Operators, but have not been able to do so with the current level of hiring
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and training resources. MTS Bus Operations has continued to meet daily service levels, but are
doing so by using excessive overtime and mandatory call-backs. Therefore, MTS must
significantly increase the number of full-time Bus Operators in order to effectively service our
existing routes and improve the working conditions of our current Bus Operators. The current
increased demand for Bus Operators stems from three (3) primary factors:

1. The addition and expansion of the Bus Rapid Transit lines have strained MTS'’s current
resources, with respect to both staffing and operational efficiency.

2. There has been a significant increase in attrition rate. Individuals who deferred
retirement during the recession are retiring at record rates. Consequently, new
employees forced to work overtime are resigning due to burnout and fatigue.

3. MTS Bus Operations is experiencing higher absenteeism levels and Family and Medical
Leave applications for intermittent leave are at record levels, which is a further strain on
our current staffing levels.

Currently, MTS Human Resources does not have the necessary staffing to adequately respond
to this increased demand for Bus Operators and produce the high numbers of quality
candidates necessary to maintain effective MTS Bus operations. Therefore, an HR
Representative Il hired for the sole purpose of recruiting Bus Operators is vital.

Furthermore, two full-time Bus Operator Training Instructors will be needed to maintain the
increased training demands for new hires, as well as ongoing refresher training for current Bus
Operators. The part-time Bus Operator Training Instructors positions, currently filled by retired
Bus Operators, will be phased out once they work 960 hours in a year, which is the maximum
allowable limit permitted by the Public Employee’s Retirement Law ("PERL").

Finally, one part-time Administrative Assistant is necessary to support the functions of the Bus
Operator Training Instructors, manage the administrative and clerical tasks, and allow the Bus
Operator Training Instructors to focus on field work. Currently, the position is handled through a
temp agency, which is less cost-effective than a direct hire.

oA —

Paul C~Jablongki

Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com
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1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 « FAX (619) 234-3407

Agenda Item No. @

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

NOVEMBER 20, 2014

SUBJECT:

FISCAL YEAR 2014 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (ERIN DUNN
AND LARRY MARINESI: KENNETH PUN AND GARY CAPORICCI OF PUN &
MCGEADY)

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors receive the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR).

Budget Impact

None.

DISCUSSION:

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) staff and external auditors, Pun &
McGeady, will present the FY 2014 CAFR.

A draft of the FY 2014 CAFR was presented to the Audit Oversight Committee on
October 23, 2014 as well as a review of the FY 2014 Independent Audit by Gary
Caporicci from Pun & McGeady. The Committee unanimously received the report.
During the presentation, Mr. Caporicci noted that they are issuing an “Unmodified
Opinion” and that our financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects.

Paul C.W
Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. FY14 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Board Only Due to Volume)
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Board of Directors and Transit Riders
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

The comprehensive annual financial report of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. The MTS Board of
Directors has established an Audit Oversight Committee to provide an additional level of scrutiny to the preparation of
the annual financial report. Management of MTS is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of MTS are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants. The firm of Pun & McGeady LLP,
Certified Public Accountants, has been retained to meet this requirement. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of MTS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditors
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that MTS’s
financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with U.S. GAAP. The independent auditors' report is presented as the first component of the financial
section of this report.

The independent audit also was designed to meet the requirements of a broader, federally mandated "Single Audit" to
meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements required the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. The reports related specifically to the Single Audit
are issued under separate cover.

U.S. GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditors.

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 e (619) 231-1466 ¢ www.sdmts.com
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REPORTING ENTITY

The San Diego Metropolitan Transit System was created effective January 26, 1976 to provide the policy setting and
overall management coordination of the public transportation system in the San Diego metropolitan service area. This
service area encompasses approximately 3 million people residing in a 570 square mile area of San Diego County,
including the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City,
Poway, Santee, and San Diego and the unincorporated area of the County of San Diego.

MTS’s mission statement, adopted by the Board of Directors, is to enhance the personal mobility of San Diego
metropolitan area residents and visitors by:

Obtaining maximum benefit for every dollar spent.

Being the community’s major public transportation advocate.
Increasing public transportation usage per capita.

Taking a customer-oriented approach.

Implementing capital projects on schedule and within budget.
Offering high-quality public transportation services.
Responding to the community’s socioeconomic interests.

California law establishes the San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) as the planning agency for San
Diego County. The responsibility and decision-making for all transportation-related planning, programming and
development activities occurs within SANDAG's nine-member Transportation Committee. Approved transportation
plans and programs are subsequently executed by SANDAG staff. Within this structure, MTS and the North County
Transit District (NCTD) focus primarily on operating activities.

MTS is effectively an umbrella agency. MTS owns the assets of San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI) and San Diego Transit
Corporation (SDTC), the area’s two largest transit operators. These two transit units were formed under California law
as not-for-profit public corporations and function as operating subsidiaries of MTS. SDTI and SDTC are considered
component units and are blended component units for financial reporting purposes. SDTI operates three Light Rail
Transit (LRT) routes: the Blue Line from the America Plaza Station to San Ysidro at the International Border, the
Orange Line from the Santa Fe Depot through Centre City and then east to EI Cajon Transit Center, and the Green
Line from the 12th and Imperial Transit Center Bayside platform to Santee. SDTI operates on a total of 54.3 miles of
track. SDTC operates 26 routes with an active fleet of 310 buses.

The relationship between MTS and the transit operating subsidiaries, SDTI and SDTC, is formally established through
operating agreements and MTS-adopted corporate policies. These agreements and corporate policies specify the roles
and responsibilities of each of the organizations and outline the procedures in numerous functional areas including
auditing and budgeting, fare setting, marketing and public information, revenue-producing advertising, service
contracts, and programming of federal, state and local subsidies. The MTS Board of Directors has the policy-setting
responsibility for the operation and development of MTS’s transit operating subsidiaries as well as for the planning
and approval of capital expenditures by or on behalf of these entities. The day-to-day operating functions, labor
matters and maintenance of facilities are managed by the individual transit operators. MTS has centralized and
consolidated Security, Planning, Human Resources, Finance, Information Technology, Stores, and Purchasing for
MTS and all subsidiaries.

In addition to the bus routes operated by SDTC, MTS is financially accountable for the operation of certain other bus
routes. MTS contracts with outside parties for the operation of 72 fixed-route bus lines and paratransit services with an
active fleet of 449 buses. The contracts require full operation and maintenance of the bus services. Contract services
are accounted for in the Contracted Services Fund for financial reporting purposes.
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MTS owns the San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company (SD&AE), a not-for-profit railroad holding
company entrusted with assets which include 108 miles of rail line and over 2,000 acres of property. MTS has a
contract with the San Diego and Imperial Valley Railway Co. (SDIV) for the operation of freight rail services over the
SD&AE rail line. MTS provides no subsidy to SDIV, but does receive a portion of its gross revenue. SD&AE is
considered a component unit and a blended component unit for financial reporting purposes. In December 2012,
SD&AE entered into a 99-year lease and operating agreement with Pacific Imperial Railroad, Inc. (PIR) over the 70-
mile Desert Line freight right of way in East San Diego County. The agreement provides specific performance
milestones for the first 5 years of the term, with a minimum of $1 million in annual revenue required. The agreement
may be terminated if PIR fails to meet the specified milestones. If PIR meets all milestones and commences freight
operations along the Desert Line, MTS’s revenue will increase over time to 15% of gross freight revenue.

MTS also is financially accountable for the operation of Taxicab Administration services, which includes licensing and
regulating taxicabs, jitneys, and other private for-hire passenger transportation services by contract with the cities of
San Diego, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, Poway, and Santee.

The MTS Board of Directors is comprised of 15 members with four appointed from the San Diego City Council, one
appointed from the San Diego County Board of Supervisors, one appointed from each city council of Chula Vista,
Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, and Santee, and one member of
the public elected by other Board members to serve as Chairman.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The San Diego region economic momentum is projected to slow in the upcoming year due to higher taxes
implemented and fallout from the policy changes associated with the Affordable Care Act. However, we do still expect
to see improvements in manufacturing, technology, travel and tourism, and housing construction. San Diego's gross
domestic product (GDP), the total value of the region's economy, has been forecasted to reach $184.3 billion in 2013
and $191.5 billion in 2014, increasing from the $177.4 billion earned in 2012. Unemployment has declined in San
Diego County and compares favorably to the unemployment rate in California and the national average. Sales tax
receipts and sales tax related revenues have grown for the fourth consecutive year.

The principal local source of operating subsidy for MTS’s transit programs is Transportation Development Act (TDA)
funding. One-fourth percent of the local sales tax in each California county is dedicated to transportation purposes.

On a local level, area voters approved a one-half cent transportation sales tax in 1987, called TransNet. One-third of
the sales tax proceeds is allocated for transit purposes which is further divided between MTS and North County Transit
District (MTS’s counterpart in North San Diego County) based on the proportion of the population within the area of
each jurisdiction. Prior to FY 2004, 80% of the TransNet funds had to be used for expansion of the light rail system.
The remaining 20% could be used for operations after funding a reduced price pass program for seniors, disabled, and
youth, which is capped at $5.5 million. As a result of operating budget pressures, the ratio was changed in June 2003
so that up to 40% of the TransNet program can be used for operations (increased from 20%). The original TransNet
sales tax expired in 2008, and a reauthorization measure was approved by voters in November 2004 extending the
TransNet sales tax for 40 additional years.

Long-term financial planning

The long-term goal of MTS is to fund operations solely with recurring revenues. MTS has recovered from the
financial implications of the recession and is beginning to grow its service base. Sales tax receipts throughout
California, which impacts subsidy revenue available to MTS from both TDA and TransNet funds, increased again for
the fourth consecutive year and sales tax receipts have finally recovered back to the fiscal year 2007 high on a cash
basis. MTS continues to monitor its costs and initiate additional revenue programs, and has implemented the first of
four bus rapid transit (Rapid) routes, which feature high-frequency, seven-day-a-week, extended hour, bi-directional
service to connect suburban commuters with major employment and entertainment centers. The first Rapid route,
connecting the 1-15 corridor and downtown, started in June 2014 and two additional Rapid routes will launch during
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fiscal year 2015. MTS also implemented substantial changes on its existing services in order to feed the Rapid service
and maximize their use.

As directed by the MTS Board of Directors, MTS plans to bring its contingency reserve balance from 10.0% of the
operating budget up to 12.5% by the end of fiscal year 2016.

Major Initiatives

MTS continues to focus on keeping the system's capital infrastructure in a state of good repair. After 30 years of
operation, an extensive system-wide rehabilitation and upgrade of the MTS’s Trolley operation is nearing completion,
which will enable low floor service on the entire trolley system. Two of the MTS’s bus maintenance facilities are in
the middle of construction to rehabilitate and modernize their facilities. Also, MTS continues to fund the capital
reserve for the replacement of 52 SD100 light rail vehicles that are 19 years old.

The Mid-Coast extension of the trolley system is another regional project; the project team is currently putting together
an application to enter engineering, which will allow the team to pursue a full-funding grant agreement from the FTA.
When complete, this extension will span 11 miles between Old Town and north University City. Major construction
on the Mid-Coast extension is scheduled to begin in calendar year 2016, with some potential utility realignments in
2015. It is anticipated to open for revenue service in calendar year 2018.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to MTS for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This was the eighth consecutive year and the eighteenth year overall that MTS
has achieved this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement MTS must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments

The staff of the finance department is to be commended for their efficient and dedicated service to the production of
this report. In addition, we express our appreciation for the assistance and cooperation provided by management and
staff in all departments throughout the organization.

Respectfully submitted,

Paul Jablonski
Chief Executive Officer

Larry Marinesi

Chief Financial Officer
October 31, 2014
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting — GFOA

®

Government Finance Officers Association
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Presented to
San Diego Metropolitan
Transit System, California

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2013

By« G

Executive Director/CEO
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6265 Greenwich Drive

S Suite 220

l San Diego, California 92122

PUN & McGEADY Phone: (858) 242-5100
Fax: (858) 242-5150

www.pm-llp.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego, California

Report of Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
(MTS), which comprise of the statements of net position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and related notes to the
basic financial statements.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of MTS as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, MTS implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The adoption of this standards required retrospective application of previously
reported net position and the reclassification of certain accounts at July 1, 2012 as described in Note 15 to the basic
financial statements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and schedules of funding progress of defined benefits pension plans and other postemployement
healthcare plan be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
MTS’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial statements, and
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2014, on our
consideration of MTS’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering MTS’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

fu e Gy T

San Diego, California
October 31, 2014
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The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
(MTS) is intended to provide an overview of MTS’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013. This information should be used in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, which can be found on pages i
through iv of this report.

Financial Highlights

o Net position, as reported in the statement of net position, totaled $1,583 million as of June 30, 2014, $1,493
million as of June 30, 2013 and $1,409 million as of June 30, 2012. Of this amount, $181 million was unrestricted
as of June 30, 2014, $190 million was unrestricted as of June 30, 2013, and $158 million was unrestricted as of
June 30, 2012. Total net position increased by $90 million in the current year and increased by $84 million in the
prior year. The current year increase is attributable to an increase operating revenues, TDA, STA, and TransNet
funds, partially offset by increases in operating expenses and a decrease in contributed capital.

e For the year ended June 30, 2014, the combined farebox recovery ratio (the measure of the ability to recover
operating costs through fare revenue) for San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego Transit Corporation, and MTS
Contracted Services was 41.11% compared to 39.92% for the year ended June 30, 2013 and 41.05% for the year
ended June 30, 2012. The current year increase is due primarily to a decrease in personnel costs related to the
amortization of the net pension asset and an increase in passenger revenue.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to MTS’s financial statements. MTS’s financial
statements are comprised of two components: 1) financial statements and, 2) notes to financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the financial statements themselves.

Financial statements. The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of MTS’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. In fiscal year 2014, MTS presents comparative statements
for FY2014 and FY2013.

The statement of net position presents information on all of MTS’s assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflow of resources with the difference between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of MTS is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but
unused vacation leave).

The statement of cash flows presents information showing the sources and uses of cash related to operating activities,
noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and investing activities. In addition, the
statement provides information about significant non-cash investing, capital and financing activities.

Since MTS’s primary function is to provide transportation services to the region’s citizens and recover costs through
user fees and charges, the financial statements include business-type activities. In addition, the financial statements
include not only MTS itself (known as the primary government), but also two legally separate transit operators and one
legally separate freight railway, for which MTS is financially accountable: San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway
Company (SD&AE).
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Notes to basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning MTS’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other
post-employment benefits to its employees.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial stability. In the case of
MTS, net position was $1,583 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year and $1,493 million at the end of
FY2013.

The largest portion of MTS’s net position reflects the investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by any outstanding bonds or other borrowings. Most of the investment in capital assets is comprised of trolley
system assets, buses, and construction-in-progress totaling $13 million, of which the largest project under construction
is the procurement of 65 light rail vehicles, $5 million. Prior year construction-in-progress totaled $23 million, of
which the largest project under construction was the procurement of 65 light rail vehicles, $16 million. The capital
assets that are represented by construction-in-progress will be used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. In FY2014, MTS transferred completed projects worth $90 million to
SDTC, SDTI and Other Contracted Services. In FY2013, MTS transferred completed projects worth $146 million to
SDTC, SDTI, and Other Contracted Services.

The balance in the unrestricted component of net position decreased by $9 million during the current year and
increased $32 million in the prior year.

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 Change June 30, 2012 Change
Current and other assets $ 308583122 $ 316,159,038 $ (7,575,916) $ 377,081,734 $ (60,922,696)
Capital assets, net 1,512,774,675 1,416,260,555 96,514,120 1,295,206,414 121,054,141
Total assets 1,821,357,797 1,732,419,593 88,938,204 1,672,288,148 60,131,445
Long-term liabilities outstanding 152,721,866 175,787,021 (23,065,155) 193,049,033 (17,262,012)
Other liabilities 85,076,529 62,945,676 22,130,853 69,755,429 (6,809,753)
Total liabilities 237,798,395 238,732,697 (934,302) 262,804,462 (24,071,765)
Deferred inflows of resources 497 449 589,286 (91,837) 681,123 (91,837)
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,395,206,075 1,296,216,965 98,989,110 1,172,815,524 123,401,441
Restricted 6,741,898 7,255,404 (513,506) 78,378,268 (71,122,864)
Unrestricted 181,113,980 189,625,241 (8,511,261) 157,608,771 32,016,470
Total net position $ 1583061953 $ 1493097610 $ 89,964,343 $ 1,408,802,563 $ 84,295,047

Increases in operating revenue are attributable to an increase in riders utilizing one-way fares, revenues from the
Desert Line lease, and $2.00 fees being charged for Compass Cards. Variances between FY2014 and FY2013
nonoperating revenues are attributable to significant increases in TDA, STA, and TransNet funding for capital projects.
The current year increase in operating expenses is attributable to an increase in depreciation expense associated with
the acquisition of new capital assets, as well as increases in outside services and energy costs, partially offset by a
decrease in personnel costs primarily due to the amortization cost associated with the net pension asset.
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June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 Change June 30, 2012 Change
Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 94,024,708 $ 90652522 3 3,372,186 $ 88,280,779 $ 2,371,743
Other operating revenue 10,400,773 5,906,691 4,494,082 5,228,636 678,055
Nonoperating revenues:
Federal revenue 60,851,717 57,733,099 3,118,618 71,822,863 (14,089,764)
Transportation Development Act 82,565,009 71,893,404 10,671,605 71,538,917 354,487
State Transit Assistance 17,870,768 9,878,189 7,992,579 18,981,989 (9,103,800)
State revenue - other 4,211,454 5,213,539 (1,002,085) 84,878,549 (79,665,010)
TransNet funds 42,694,815 32,275,380 10,419,435 75,793,217 (43,517,837)
Other nonoperating revenue 9,138,116 14,022,580 (4,884,464) 9,644,573 4,378,007
Total revenues 321,757,360 287,575,404 34,181,956 426,169,523 (138,594,119)
Expenses:
Operating expenses 343,566,429 327,929,073 15,637,356 306,931,351 20,997,722
Nonoperating expenses 6,994,987 7,533,318 (538,331) 8,018,977 (485,659)
Total expenses 350,561,416 335,462,391 15,099,025 314,950,328 20,512,063
Increase (decrease) in net position before
capital contributions (28,804,056) (47,886,987) 19,082,931 111,219,195 (159,106,182)
Capital contributions 118,768,399 132,182,034 (13,413,635) 44,118,023 88,064,011
Increase (decrease) in net position 89,964,343 84,295,047 5,669,296 155,337,218 (71,042,171)
Net position - beginning of year 1,493,097,610 1,408,802,563 84,295,047 1,253,465,345 155,337,218
Net position - end of year $ 1583061953 $ 1493097610 $ 89,964,343 $ 1408802563 $ 84,295,047

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. MTS’s investment in capital assets net of depreciation as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
$1,513 million and $1,416 million. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and
construction-in-progress. Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e MTS has continued its multi-year program to acquire 65 light rail vehicles for a total cost of $239 million
through the end of FY2014. As of June 30, 2014 MTS had placed 64 new trolley cars in service, 10 in the
current year, 27 in FY2013 and 27 in FY2012.

e MTS continues to modernize the bus fleet. In FY2014, 79 buses were placed into service for a total cost of $51
million.

e MTS purchased 3.59 acres of land in Barrio Logan for $17 million to expand the trolley yard

e Completed capital projects totaling $119 million were transferred from SANDAG to MTS and its component
units during FY2014.
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CAPITAL ASSETS
(Net of depreciation)

2014 2013 2012
Land $ 256,922,883 $ 240,453,415 $ 240,471,287
Buildings 742,531,433 727,660,383 648,037,600
Vehicles 449,499,941 378,389,642 272,442,209
Equipment & other 50,675,910 47,215,318 46,728,919
Construction-in-progress 13,144,508 22,541,797 87,526,399
Total $ 1512774675 $ 1416,260555 $ 1,295,206,414

Additional information on MTS’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, MTS has one capital lease obligation outstanding in the amount
of $3.6 million. In addition, MTS has two finance obligations outstanding relating to a lease/leaseback transaction
entered into in 1995 and Pension Obligation Bonds issued in fiscal year 2005 for a total obligation of $137.4 million.
In connection with the lease/leaseback transaction, MTS placed funds on deposit, which, together with the interest
earned on the deposits, will be sufficient to cover the amounts due under the finance obligation.

The pension obligation bonds were issued in fiscal year 2005 for $77.5 million to make a contribution to the SDTC
retirement plan and reduce its unfunded liability. During 2010, MTS retired 14% and refunded 41%, or $30 million, of
the bonds outstanding; this refunding was retired in FY2013. Additional information about MTS’s long-term debt can
be found in Note 9 to the financial statements.

Bond Ratings

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services provided an underlying rating for the Pension Obligation Bonds at "'AA-"" in 2014.
Additional information on MTS’s long-term debt can be found in Note 9 to the financial statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of MTS’s finances for all those with an interest in the
government’s finances. If you have questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or need
additional financial information, visit our website at www.sdmts.com or direct inquiries to the Controller, MTS, 1255
Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101.
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Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects

Accounts and other receivables

Due from other governments

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Cash and certificates of deposit restricted for capital support
Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Net pension asset

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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2014 2013
54,586,864 67,342,108
21,361,390 1,807,484

8,031,828 7,487,415
69,724,565 64,554,910
19,029,540 17,673,252

2,360,013 1,268,080

175,094,200 160,133,249
12,712,627 12,143,571
94,865,657 116,056,580
1,512,774,675 1,416,260,555
25,910,638 27,825,638
1,646,263,597 1,572,286,344
1,821,357,797 1,732,419,593
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See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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2014 2013
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 14,234,136 12,931,617
Due to other governments 22,773,555 20,184,156
Unearned revenue 3,687,955 4,223,070
Accrued expenses 8,410,845 10,123,462
Retentions payable 552,447 334,827
Due within one year:
Compensated absences payable 7,526,670 7,455,502
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 3,917,111 3,394,889
Long-term debt 2,612,420 2,490,669
Long-term debt payable from restricted assets 21,361,390 1,807,484
Total current liabilities 85,076,529 62,945,676
Noncurrent liabilities:
Retentions payable from restricted assets 8,740,742 7,487,745
Long-term debt payable from restricted assets 92,095,612 113,457,002
Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences payable 4,084,953 4,713,238
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 7,774,145 8,854,074
Net other postemployment benefits obligation 15,059,685 13,695,813
Long-term debt 24,966,729 27,579,149
Total noncurrent liabilities 152,721,866 175,787,021
Total liabilities 237,798,395 238,732,697
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred gain on refunding 497,449 589,286
Total deferred inflows of resources 497,449 589,286
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,395,206,075 1,296,216,965
Restricted for:
Capital projects 3,971,854 4,655,826
Debt service 2,770,044 2,599,578
Unrestricted 181,113,980 189,625,241
Total net position $ 1,583,061,953 $ 1,493,097,610
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
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2014 2013
Operating revenues:
Passenger revenue 93,994,559 90,651,622
Advertising 869,797 972,190
Charter 30,149 900
Miscellaneous 9,530,976 4,934,501
Total operating revenues 104,425,481 96,559,213
Operating expenses:
Personnel costs 117,092,259 123,720,353
Outside services 73,858,746 67,413,522
Transit operations funding 4,242 856 3,570,758
Materials and supplies 9,276,195 8,468,837
Energy costs 26,043,694 22,572,397
Risk management 3,610,207 2,902,322
Miscellaneous 6,244,272 6,492,642
Depreciation 103,198,200 92,788,242
Total operating expenses 343,566,429 327,929,073
Operating income (loss) (239,140,948) (231,369,860)
Public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Federal revenue 60,851,717 57,733,099
Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds 82,565,009 71,893,404
State Transit Assistance (STA) funds 17,870,768 9,878,189
State revenue - other 4,211,454 5,213,539
TransNet funds 42,694,815 32,275,380
Other local subsidies 3,323,619 6,951,227
Investment earnings 6,087,302 6,266,933
Interest expense (6,981,977) (7,520,331)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (272,805) 804,420
Other expenses (13,010) (12,987)
Total public support and nonoperating revenues (expenses) 210,336,892 183,482,873
Income (loss) before contributed capital (28,804,056) (47,886,987)
Contributed capital, net 118,768,399 132,182,034
Changes in net position 89,964,343 84,295,047
Net Position:
Beginning of year, as restated (Note 15) 1,493,097,610 1,408,802,563
End of year 1,583,061,953 1,493,097,610

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for damage and injury

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Public support funds received

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Debt service costs
Property acquisition
Proceeds from disposal of assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of ye

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents

ar

Cash and certificates of deposit restricted for capital support

Total cash and cash equivalents

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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2014 2013

105,377,683  $ 94,759,953
(117,564,640) (122,201,949)
(117,476,323) (115,897,734)
(3,635,978) (2,560,951)
(133,299,258) (145,900,681)
206,101,814 203,981,276
206,101,814 203,981,276
(3,938,254 (16,867,535)
(81,756,393) (82,816,993)
581,165 1,409,694
(85,113,482) (98,274,834)
124,738 193,156
124,738 193,156
(12,186,188) (40,001,083)
79,485,679 119,486,762
67,200491 $ 79,485,679
54,586,864  $ 67,342,108
12,712,627 12,143,571
67,209491 $ 79,485,679
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2014 2013
Reconciliation of operating (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Operating (loss) (239,140,948) $ (231,369,860)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 103,198,200 92,788,242
Amortization of net pension asset 1,915,000 14,630,000
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts and other receivables 1,487,317 (3,807,895)
Inventory (1,356,288) (543,520)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,209,259) 1,119,941
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 2,689,990 (23,282,245)
Accrued expenses (1,712,617) (980,275)
Unearned revenue (535,115) 2,008,635
Net other postemployment benefits obligation 1,363,872 1,577,144
Compensated absences payable (557,117) (55,885)
Accrued damage, injury and employee claims 557,707 2,015,037
Total adjustments 105,841,690 85,469,179
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (133,299,258) _$ (145,900,681)
Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets from SANDAG 118,768,399  $ 131,736,037
Contributions/adjustments of capital assets from outside parties - 445,997
Total contributions of capital assets 118,768,399  $ 132,182,034
Increase in fair value of investments 249501 $ 258,247

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying basic financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (U.S. GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. The more significant of MTS’s
accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

MTS (also known as San Diego Metropolitan Transit Development Board) was formed on January 26, 1976 by
passage of California Senate Bill 101 to plan, construct, and operate (or let contracts to operate) exclusive public
mass transit guideways in the urbanized south coastal area of San Diego County. MTS has certain responsibilities
for near-term transportation planning and administration of federal and state transportation funds within the area
under its jurisdiction. The Board of Directors of MTS consists of 15 members composed of four appointees from
the San Diego City Council; one appointee each from the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, EI Cajon, Imperial
Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, and Santee; one appointee from the San Diego County
Board of Supervisors; and a chairman elected by the other 14 members.

On January 1, 2003, California Senate Bill 1703 (SB 1703) became effective. SB 1703 required the consolidation
of the planning and programming functions of MTS and the North County Transit District (NCTD) into the San
Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) in an initial transfer to take place prior to July 1, 2003. SB 1703
also required the consolidation of certain project development and construction functions of MTS and NCTD into
SANDAG in a subsequent transfer to take place prior to January 30, 2004. The initial transfer occurred on July 1,
2003, and the subsequent transfer occurred on October 13, 2003. With these actions, employees were transferred
from MTS and NCTD to SANDAG, and certain planning, development, and construction functions were also
transferred. As a result, MTS’s activities since the consolidation have been focused on operating public transit
systems in the urbanized area identified above. In addition to the consolidation required by SB 1703, MTS
dissolved the independent Board of Directors of San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) and Board of Directors of
San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI). MTS now acts as the Board of Directors for all three agencies, MTS, SDTC, and
SDTI. Beginning in FY2004, SDTC and SDTI are presented as blended component units.

These basic financial statements present MTS and its legally separate component units, entities for which MTS is
considered to be financially accountable. Because MTS appoints a majority of the component units’ boards of
directors, the boards are substantively the same, and MTS is able to impose its will on the component units, MTS
presents blended component units. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance,
part of MTS’s operations.

Included within the reporting entity as blended component units:

San Diego Transit Corporation: On July 1, 1985, MTS purchased the assets used by and acquired sole
ownership of San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) from the City of San Diego for $1. SDTC has entered
into an operating agreement with MTS to operate a public transportation bus system in the City of San Diego
and certain regional routes within MTS’s jurisdictions. The current agreement, which was approved in
December 2006, was renewed on June 23, 2011, as an open-ended agreement terminable upon six months'
notice by either party. SDTC continues to provide local service to a number of adjoining cities under pre-
existing contracts. Purchases or construction of bus capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains,
and are contributed to SDTC upon completion of a project or when individually purchased by MTS. SDTC’s
assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, net position, revenues, and expenses are included in
MTS’s financial statements as a blended component unit. This agency has the same governing board as MTS
and provides services directly to the public.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

San Diego Trolley, Inc.: San Diego Trolley, Inc. (SDTI) was organized by MTS in August 1980. SDTI was
created to operate and maintain the Light Rail Transit (LRT) system pursuant to an operating agreement with
MTS. The current agreement, which was approved in December 2006, was renewed on June 23, 2011, as an
open-ended agreement terminable upon six months' notice by either party. Purchases or construction of LRT
capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains, and are contributed to SDTI upon completion of a
project or when individually purchased by MTS. SDTI’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows,
net position, revenues, and expenses are included in MTS’s financial statements as a blended component unit.
This agency has the same governing board as MTS and provides services directly to the public.

San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company: MTS purchased the San Diego and Arizona Eastern
Railway Company (SD&AE) in 1979. SDTI operates on a portion of the line and private operators provide
freight service on a portion of the line. Purchases of capital items are made by MTS with whom title remains,
and are contributed to SD&AE. Since SD&AE provides almost exclusive benefit to MTS, its assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, net position, revenues, and expenses are included in MTS’s financial
statements as a blended component unit. Separate financial reports are not available.

B. Financial Statements

The Financial Statements (i.e., the statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position, and statement of cash flows) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and
its component units.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The Financial Statements are reported using the ““economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as all eligibility
requirements have been met. Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, the Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for Deferred
Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources, when applicable.

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net position) that apply to
future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time.

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net position) that apply to future
periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as a revenue until that time.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
MTS receives funding primarily from the following revenue sources:

Passenger Revenue

Passenger fares comprised approximately 40 percent and 38 percent of MTS’s $236.5 million and $236.9
million operating budget for FY2014 and FY2013, respectively.

Other Operating Revenues

MTS receives a variety of operating revenues that are not received directly from passenger fares. The
sources of these revenues are advertising, interest income, rental and land management income, income
related to Taxicab administration, income from the SD&AE, and other miscellaneous income.

Non Operating Revenues

MTS receives subsidies that are derived from federal, state and local tax revenues. MTS does not levy or
collect any tax funds, but receives allocated portions of tax funds through federal, state and local granting
agencies.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

FTA revenues are funded by a federal gas tax and revenues of the federal general fund. Effective October
1, 2012 the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users
(SAFETEA-LU) Legislation was replaced with Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21)
which reauthorized surface transportation programs through Fiscal Year 2014. Under MAP-21, MTS
receives Section 5307 and Section 5337 grants which are earmarked for capital assistance and preventive
maintenance. In addition, MTS also receives Section 5311 and Section 5311F grants for operations. The
Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) grants which are used for operations have been eliminated. MTS
expects to receive JARC funding for the next 1-2 years from grants previously awarded.

Transit Security Grant Program (TSGP)

The Transit Security Grant Program (TSGP) is administered by the Department of Homeland Security
(DHS). The program provides funds to owners and operators of transit systems to protect critical surface
transportation infrastructure and the traveling public from acts of terrorism, major disasters, and other
emergencies.

Compressed Natural Gas Rebate

Refunds on nontaxable uses of fuel are issued by the IRS. This rebate program ended in December 2013.

Transportation Development Act (TDA)

TDA provides funding for public transit operators. This state fund is one quarter of a percent of the 8.0
percent sales tax assessed in the region. SANDAG is responsible for apportionment of these funds within
the San Diego region. As economic conditions improve, sales tax receipts have increased over the prior
year, and as a result the TDA funds available for disbursement have increased as well.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

State Transit Assistance (STA)

STA funding comes from the Public Transportation Act (PTA) which derives its revenue from the state
sales tax on gasoline. These funds are designated as discretionary or formula. The former is appropriated
by the legislature. The latter is a formula based upon population and fares generated.

Proposition 1B Revenue (Prop 1B)

The California Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Act of 2006,
approved by the voters as Proposition 1B (Prop 1B) in November 2006, authorizes the issuance of $19.9
billion in general obligation bonds for the purpose of improving highway safety, traffic reduction, air
quality, and port security.

Other State Revenue

MediCal provides further funding support specifically tied to several ADA Paratransit routes to aid
patients in their transportation to medical appointments.

TransNet

TransNet funds are derived from the Proposition A one-half cent local transportation sales tax that was
approved by area voters in November 1987. The original ordinance expired in 2008, but has been extended
to 2048 by subsequent voter approval. The ordinance allocated one-third of the sales tax proceeds for
transit purposes, which are further divided between MTS and North County Transit District (NCTD) based
on the proportion of the population within the area of each jurisdiction. TransNet funds are also
apportioned by SANDAG.

Other Local Subsidies

The City of San Diego provides Maintenance of Effort funds to aid ADA efforts. In addition, SANDAG
provides funds for the operation of certain express bus routes and NCTD provides partial subsidy for the
Sorrento Valley Coaster Connection.

D. Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is MTS’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Investments of pooled cash consist primarily of bankers’ acceptances, certificates of deposit, pooled investment
funds, liquidity funds, governmental bonds, and commercial paper. Investments are stated at fair value, which is
based on quoted market price. Money market investments and participating interest earning investment contracts
that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid temporary investments purchased with a maturity of
three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

MTS participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities. LAIF’s
investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these
investments. In addition, these structured notes and asset-backed securities are subject to market risk and to
change in interest rates. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. MTS also
participates in the San Diego County Investment Pool, which is a local government investment pool managed by
the County Treasurer's Office on behalf of the Investment Pool participants.

Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable for deposit and investment risk, are specified for the following areas:
e Interest Rate Risk
o Credit Risk
— Overall
— Custodial Credit Risk
— Concentration of Credit Risk
e Foreign Currency Risk

F. Inventory

Inventories are valued at the weighted average unit cost.

G. Prepaid Items and Other Assets

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year ended are recorded as
prepaid items.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land and right-of-way, buildings and infrastructure assets, vehicles, and equipment. Capital
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the
asset’s life are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital asset improvements are recorded as assets. SDTC has
recorded assets received from the City of San Diego and the County Transit System at net book value in order to
reflect SDTC’s custodial accountability for the assets.

Under the operating agreements between MTS and SDTC and SDTI, SDTC and SDTI are required to pay a license
fee to MTS for the use of certain capital assets. Due to SDTC’s and SDTI’s continued shortage of operating funds
sufficient to cover recurring expenditures, the payment of these fees is considered remote, and therefore, these
amounts were not recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements. Buildings, vehicles, and equipment of
the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H. Capital Assets (Continued)

Assets Years
Building and structures 2010 30
Vehicles and buses 5t025
Equipment and other capital assets 3t0 10
Capital leases 3t040

I. Construction-in-Progress

Costs incurred for construction associated with the bus and trolley systems are capitalized as construction-
in-progress until such time as they are complete and operational. Upon completion, they are contributed to SDTC
and SDTI to reflect their custodial accountability for the assets. Depreciation commences at the time of
contribution. Assets acquired through capital leases are capitalized.

J. Net Pension Asset

A pension asset was created when MTS paid into the SDTC retirement plan an amount in excess of its annual
required contribution (ARC). The ARC is an actuarially calculated amount that is sufficient to fund future costs
and extinguish any existing unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL). In October 2004, MTS made a payment
of $76,282,336 to SDTC Retirement Plan from the proceeds of the issuance of pension obligation bonds, of which
$69,050,638 was to reduce SDTC’s UAAL as calculated at that time.

K. Compensated Absences

It is MTS’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused personal leave time up to a maximum of
400 hours, which includes both vacation and sick pay benefits. All personal leave time is accrued when incurred.

L. Long-Term Obligations

Debt premiums and discounts, if any, are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line
method. Long-term debt is reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Debt issuance costs are
expensed when incurred.

M. Refunding of Debt

Gains or losses occurring from current or advance refunding of debt of the governmental funds have been deferred
and are being amortized into expense using the straight-line method over the original remaining life of the old debt
or the life of the new debt, whichever is less.

N. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reported period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
O. Net Position
Net Position is classified as follows:
Net investments in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources related to those assets.

Unrestricted — This component of net position is the amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investments
in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

P. Accounting Changes

GASB has issued Statement No. 65, Items previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This Statement specifies
the items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities that should now be reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. This Statement became
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2012 and result in certain restatements as disclosed in Note 15
to the basic financial statements and reclassification of certain accounts as presented in the Statement of Net
Position.

GASB has issued Statement No. 66, "Technical Corrections - 2012; an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10
and No. 62." The requirements of this Statement resolve conflicting accounting and financial reporting guidance
that could diminish the consistency of financial reporting. This Statement became effective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2012 and did not have a significant impact on MTS’s financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2014.

Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and investments are reported in the accompanying statements of net position as follows:

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54586864 $ 67,342,108
Cash and certificates of deposit restricted for capital support 12,712,627 12,143,571
Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects - current 21,361,390 1,807,484
Investments restricted for debt service and capital projects - noncurrent 94,865,657 116,056,580
Total cash and investements $ 183,526,538 $ 197,349,743

A-43
25



Att. A, Al 30, 11/20/14
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted as follows on June 30, 2014 and 2013:

Fair Value
Investment type 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents:
Demand Deposits $ 21,360,671 $ 25,229,120
Retention Trust Account 8,740,742 7,487,745
San Diego County Investment Pool 3,971,885 4,655,826
State of California - Local Agency Investment Fund 33,226,193 42,112,988
Total cash and cash equivalents 67,299,491 79,485,679
Investments:
U.S. Treasuries 39,410,751 39,171,173
Bank Investment Contract 76,816,296 78,692,891
Total investments 116,227,047 117,864,064
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 183,526,538 $ 197,349,743

Demand Deposits

At year end the carrying amount of demand deposits was $21,360,671 and the bank balance was $22,022,808
compared to $25,229,120 and $26,774,449 in the previous year, of which the total amount was collateralized or
insured with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in MTS’s name as discussed in Disclosures Relating
to Custodial Credit Risk.

All cash accounts in MTS, including SDTC and SDTI, are pooled and swept nightly to a concentration account. Funds
required to be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures are not included in the pooled cash
account.

Investments

Under the provisions of MTS’s investment policy and in accordance with California Government Code, MTS is
authorized to invest or deposit in the following:

e Securities of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities

e Obligations of the State of California or any local agency within the state rated "A" or higher by Standard and
Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Investor Services, Inc.

Repurchase agreements

Bankers’ acceptances

Commercial paper rated "A" or higher by Standard and Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Investor Services, Inc.
Medium-term corporate notes rated "A" or higher by Standard and Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Investor
Services, Inc.

Negotiable certificates of deposit

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) established by the State Treasurer

San Diego County Pooled Money Fund

Passbook savings or money market demand deposits with an FDIC, SIPC, or SAIF insured financial institution
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Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

San Diego County Investment Pool

The San Diego County Investment Pool is a local government investment pool managed by the County Treasurer’s
Office on behalf of Investment Pool participants. Depositors in the Investment Pool include both mandatory
participants, those agencies required by law to deposit their funds with the County Treasurer’s Office, and voluntary
participants, agencies that place their funds in the Investment Pool as an investment option. Voluntary participants,
including cities, fire districts, and various special districts accounted for approximately 8.36% and 8.8% of the
Investment Pool as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the fair value of our position
in the pool is 99.38% and 98.99%, respectively, of the value of the pool shares.

Pursuant to Section 27130-27137 of the California Government Code, the County Board of Supervisors has established
the Treasurer's Oversight Committee ("TOC") that monitors and reviews the Investment Policy. The TOC consists of
members appointed from the districts or offices that they represent, and up to five members of the public having
expertise in, or an academic background in public finance.

To mitigate credit risk, the Investment Pool's Investment Policy, which is more restrictive than the Government Code,
places a minimum standard on the ratings of investments held in the Investment Pool. Investments in securities other
than those guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury or Government Sponsored Enterprises must have a credit rating of no less
than "A" for long-term or "Al" for short-term. Non-rated securities include sweep accounts, collateralized certificates
of deposit and repurchase agreements. Sweep accounts and collateralized certificates of deposit must be FDIC insured
and collateralized with securities held by a named agent of the depository. Repurchase agreements are collateralized
by securities, authorized by the California Government Code Section 53601, having fair market value of 102% or
greater than the amount of the repurchase agreement. The investment pool does not hold any investments in structured
notes or asset-backed securities.

As of June 30, 2014, MTS had $3,971,885 invested in the San Diego County Investment Pool, compared to $4,655,826
at June 30, 2013.

Local Agency Investment Funds

MTS’s investments with Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) include a portion of the pool funds invested in
Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These investments include the following:

e Structured Notes - debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow characteristics (coupon
rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more indices and/or that have embedded
forwards or options.

o Asset-Backed Securities - the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their purchasers to receive
a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from a pool of
mortgages (such as CMQ’s) or credit card receivables.

LAIF is overseen by the Local Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance with State
statute. The fair value of our position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

As of June 30, 2014, MTS had $33,226,193 invested in LAIF, which had invested 1.86% of the pool investment funds
in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities compared to $42,112,988 and 1.96% at June 30, 2013.
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Note 2 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, MTS’s investment policy
limits investments to a maximum of five years unless otherwise approved by the Board. The investment instruments
with maturities beyond five years are held for scheduled repayment of long-term debt. Maturities are scheduled to
permit MTS to meet all projected obligations.

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

MTS’s investment policy limits investments in commercial paper and negotiable certificates of deposit to instruments
rated "A" or better by Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s Investor Services, Inc. In the current year, MTS does not hold
investments in commercial papers or certificates of deposit. Other investment instruments, including deposits in LAIF;
San Diego County Investment Pool; U.S. Government taxable bonds; and a bank investment contract, are not rated and
do not require ratings.

Disclosures Relating to Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy limits the amount of the percentage of the portfolio that can be invested by the type of
investment for certain types of investments. MTS is in compliance with investment type percentages of the total
portfolio of the investment policy.

Disclosures Relating to Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial
credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the broker or dealer to a transaction, a
government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure
the MTS’s cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner
shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus,
collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in MTS’s name.

The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the MTS’s cash deposits. California law also
allows institutions to secure MTS deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the
MTS’s total cash deposits. MTS may waive collateral requirements for cash deposits which are fully insured up to
$250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. MTS, however, has not waived the collateralization
requirements.

Summary of Investments to Maturity

Investments held by MTS grouped by maturity date at June 30, 2014 and 2013, are shown below:

Maturity 2014 2013
Current to one year $ 70552450 $ 79,485,679
One to five years 36,157,792 39,171,173
Five to ten years - -
Ten to twenty years 76,816,296 78,692,891
Total $ 183526,538 $ 197,349,743
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Note 3 — Accounts Receivable

A. Accounts and Other Receivables

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the net realizable accounts and other receivables consisted of the following:

2014 2013
Interest receivable 2844812 $ 2,910,105
Passenger revenue - General Public 2,728,084 2,188,076
Pension plan receivable 1,367,723 1,255,716
Miscellaneous trade receivables 623,549 687,683
Advertising receivable 467,660 445,835
Total accounts and other receivables 8,031,828 $ 7,487,415

B. Due from Other Governments

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, amounts due from other governments consisted of the following:

2014 2013

FTA Grant Funds 52,004,792 47,082,147
STA Funds 5,257,318 5,791,324
SANDAG - TransNet 5,177,208 404,299
SANDAG - project/route reimbursements 3,374,173 3,468,099
Passenger revenue 1,640,347 3,538,468
County of San Diego 1,540,498 1,112,738
North County Transit District - shared costs 456,199 49,692
Department of Homeland Security 105,723 649,937
City of San Diego 77,057 2,050
State of California 76,511 58,965
City of Coronado 13,340 -
U.S. Treasury Department 1,399 1,651,284
City of Chula Vista - 745,907

Total due from other governments 69,724,565 64,554,910

Note 4 — Inventory

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, inventory consists of the following repair and maintenance parts and administrative

supplies:

2013
San Diego Transit Corp. $ 2,249,585
San Diego Trolley, Inc. 15,423,667
Total inventory 19,029,540 $ 17,673,252
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Note 5 — Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Capital assets, not depreciated
Land and right-of-way
Construction-in-progress

Total capital assets, not depreciated
Capital assets, depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Buses and vehicles
Equipment and other
Capital lease property

Total capital assets, depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Buses and vehicles
Equipment and other
Capital lease property

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, depreciated, net
Total capital assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Capital assets, not depreciated
Land and right-of-way
Construction-in-progress

Total capital assets, not depreciated
Capital assets, depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Buses and vehicles
Equipment and other
Capital lease property

Total capital assets, depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Buses and vehicles
Equipment and other
Capital lease property

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, depreciated, net
Total capital assets

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014
$ 240453415 $ 16,799,468 $ (330,000) $ 256,922,883
22,541,797 85,332,661 (94,729,950) 13,144,508
262,995,212 102,132,129 (95,059,950) 270,067,391
1,413,307,286 72,942,750 (518,738) 1,485,731,298
661,778,618 107,246,075 (13,837,286) 755,187,407
97,109,406 12,976,342 (1,572,327) 108,513,421
12,091,981 - 12,091,981
2,184,287,291 193,165,167 (15,928,351) 2,361,524,107
(688,480,961) (57,306,010) 130,922 (745,656,049)
(283,388,976) (36,143,744) 13,845,254 (305,687,466)
(49,894,088) (9,370,572) 1,427,149 (57,837,511)
(9,257,923) (377,874) - (9,635,797)
(1,031,021,948) (103,198,200) 15,403,325 (1,118,816,823)
1,153,265,343 89,966,967 (525,026) 1,242,707,284
$ 1416260555 $ 192,099,096 $ (95584,976) $ 1,512774,675
Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013
$ 240,471,287 $ - 3 (17,872) $ 240,453,415
87,526,399 85,516,636 (150,501,238) 22,541,797
327,997,686 85,516,636 (150,519,110) 262,995,212
1,284,786,118 131,358,102 (2,836,934) 1,413,307,286
530,564,522 138,314,777 (7,100,681) 661,778,618
88,050,458 9,176,022 (117,074) 97,109,406
12,091,981 - 12,091,981
1,915,493,079 278,848,901 (10,054,689) 2,184,287,291
(639,960,450) (51,357,445) 2,836,934 (688,480,961)
(258,122,313) (32,365,779) 7,099,116 (283,388,976)
(41,321,539) (8,687,144) 114,595 (49,894,088)
(8,880,049) (377,874) - (9,257,923)
(948,284,351) (92,788,242) 10,050,645 (1,031,021,948)
967,208,728 186,060,659 (4,044) 1,153,265,343
$ 1295206414 $ 271577295 $ (150,523,154) $ 1,416,260,555
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MTS converted $95 million in capital assets from CIP to assets in service compared to $151 million in FY2013.
Capital asset additions totaling $119 million were contributed by SANDAG, including $64 million to SDTC, and $55

million to SDTI. In FY2013, the contributions from SANDAG totaled $132 million.

Depreciation expense for capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was comprised of the following:

2014 2013
General operations $ 1,587,986 $ 1,361,426
Other contracted services 11,686,999 12,305,236
San Diego Transit Corporation 15,628,029 14,121,961
San Diego Trolley, Inc. 74,295,186 64,999,619
Total $ 103,198200 $ 92788242

Note 6 — Net Pension Asset

In August 2004, MTS issued the 2004 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds to fund 85% of the SDTC’s unfunded
accrued actuarial liability (UAAL) and the normal cost reimbursement for the fiscal year 2005. As a result, the Pension
Obligation Bonds of $77,490,000 were sold and $76,282,336 was deposited into the pension plan in October 2004. Of
this amount $7,231,698 was funded for the FY2005 contribution and $69,050,638 was funded for prior year unfunded
accrued actuarial liability. As of June 30, 2014, the Net Pension Asset amounted to $25,910,638, compared to

$27,825,638 for FY2013.

Note 7 — Due to Other Governments

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, amounts due to other governments consisted of the following:

2014 2013

SANDAG - Subsidy revenue for construction projects in process $ 19745587 $ 18,172,628
SANDAG - CIP Reimbursement 745,215 1,182,154
State of California 607,648 45,638
SANDAG - Compass Card Program 559,958 -
North County Transit District 381,749 295,945
City of San Diego - Shared Revenue 294,979 122,338
City of Chula Vista - TDA Funds 145,000 -
City of Lemon Grove - TDA Funds 121,170 134,122
City of El Cajon - TDA Funds 90,883 90,883
City of La Mesa - TDA Funds 38,146 51,500
City of Coronado - TDA Funds 19,718 20,600
City of Poway - TDA Funds 16,074 67,977
County of San Diego 7,428 371

Total due to other governments $ 22773555 $ 20,184,156
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Note 8 — Unearned Revenue

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, unearned revenue consisted of the following:

2014 2013
Fare media payments received in advance 3 2,574,031 $ 2,787,666
Lease payments received in advance 590,962 898,185
Deposit from City of Mendoza for sale of light rail vehicles 428,341 428,341
Land management deposits 94,621 10,308
County funds - 4S Ranch development - 98,570
Total uneared revenue $ 3,687,955 $ 4,223,070

Note 9 — Long-Term Debt

A. Summary

A summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Amounts due

Balance Balance Amounts due in more than
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30,2014 within one year one year
MTS:
Capital lease obligations $ 4189818 $ - % (575,669) $ 3,614,149 % 607,420 $ 3,006,729
Deferred gain on refunding 589,286 - (91,837) 497,449 497,449
1995 LRV Lease/Leaseback 115,264,486 - (1,807,484) 113,457,002 21,361,390 92,095,612
Compensated absences payable 966,605 855,542 (898,248) 923,899 898,248 25,651
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 508,950 (3,133) (103,000) 402,817 402,817 -
Net other postemployment benefits 3,520,474 499,500 (81,049) 3,938,925 - 3,938,925
Total MTS 125,039,619 1,351,909 (3,557,287) 122,834,241 23,269,875 99,564,366
San Diego Transit Corporation:
Pension obligation bonds 25,880,000 - (1,915,000) 23,965,000 2,005,000 21,960,000
Compensated absences payable 8,422,474 3,643,267 (4,079,866) 7,985,875 4,079,866 3,906,009
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 9,337,730 3,602,187 (4,100,000) 8,839,917 2,401,612 6,438,305
Net other postemployment benefits 4,006,958 1,380,200 (928,831) 4,458,327 - 4,458,327
Total San Diego Transit Corporation 47,647,162 8,625,654 (11,023,697) 45,249,119 8,486,478 36,762,641
San Diego Trolley, Inc.:
Compensated absences payable 2,779,661 3,134,211 (3,212,023) 2,701,849 2,548,556 153,293
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims 2,402,283 818,239 (772,000) 2,448,522 1,112,682 1,335,840
Net other postemployment benefits 6,168,381 644,400 (150,348) 6,662,433 6,662,433
Total San Diego Trolley, Inc 11,350,325 4,596,850 (4,134,371) 11,812,804 3,661,238 8,151,566
Total $ 184,037,106 $ 14574413 $ (18,715355) §$ 179,896,164 § 35417591 $ 144478573
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A. Summary (Continued)

A summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

MTS:
Capital lease obligations
Deferred gain on refunding
1995 LRV Lease/Leaseback
Compensated absences payable
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims
Net other postemployment benefits

Total MTS

San Diego Transit Corporation:
Pension obligation bonds
Compensated absences payable
Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims
Net other postemployment benefits

Total San Diego Transit Corporation
San Diego Trolley, Inc.:
Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims
Net other postemployment benefits

Total San Diego Trolley, Inc
Total

Amounts due

Balance Balance Amounts due in more than
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30,2013 within one year one year

$ 4766867 $ $ (577,049) $ 4,189,818 $ 575,669 $ 3,614,149
681,123 (91,837) 589,286 589,286
116,942,900 - (1,678,414) 115,264,486 1,807,484 113,457,002
899,978 823,098 (756,471) 966,605 756,471 210,134
390,000 215,950 (97,000) 508,950 508,950 -
3,036,541 533,100 (49,167) 3,520,474 3,520,474
126,717,409 1,572,148 (3,249,938) 125,039,619 3,648,574 121,391,045
40,510,000 - (14,630,000) 25,880,000 1,915,000 23,965,000
8,572,345 3,984,336 (4,134,207) 8,422,474 4,134,207 4,288,267
10,293,000 1,525,943 (2,481,213) 9,337,730 2,015,000 7,322,730
3,405,264 1,442,600 (840,906) 4,006,958 4,006,958
62,780,609 6,952,879 (22,086,326) 47,647,162 8,064,207 39,582,955
2,752,302 3,033,316 (3,005,957) 2,779,661 2,564,824 214,837
3,581,000 (52,717) (1,126,000) 2,402,283 870,939 1,531,344
5,676,864 644,200 (152,683) 6,168,381 6,168,381
12,010,166 3,624,799 (4,284,640) 11,350,325 3,435,763 7,914,562
$ 201,508,184 $ 12149826 $ (29,620,904) $ 184,037,106 $ 15148544 $ 168,888,562

Long-term debt is reported in the accompanying statements of net position as follows:

Liabilities:
Compensated absences payable

Accrued damage, injury, and employee claims

Long-term debt

Long-term debt payable from restricted assets

Net other postemployment benefits

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred gain on debt refunding

2014 2013

Due within Noncurrent Due within Noncurrent

One Year Liabilities One Year Liabilities
7526670 $ 4,084,953 $ 7455502 $ 4,713,238
3,917,111 7,774,145 3,394,889 8,854,074
2,612,420 24,966,729 2,490,669 27,579,149
21,361,390 92,095,612 1,807,484 113,457,002
- 15,059,685 - 13,695,813
497,449 - 589,286
$ 35417591 $ 144478573 $ 15148544 $ 168,888,562

Because of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,
deferred gain on debt refunding has been reclassified as Deferred Inflows of Resources.
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Note 9 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)
B. Capital Lease

The County of San Diego (the County) has a master lease agreement with the MTS Joint Powers Agency (Agency)
for the lease of the MTS Tower building. MTS entered into a sublease agreement with the County for a portion
(27.61%) of the MTS Tower building. The sublease is classified as a capital lease because 27.61% of the title
transfers to MTS at the end of the County’s master lease. The master lease terminates on November 1, 2086;
however, the County has the option to terminate the agreement on November 1, 2041 and each tenth anniversary
thereafter. In May 2011, San Diego County refunded the underlying debt obligation in order to secure a more
favorable interest rate, which resulted in a $1.3 million reduction in future principal and interest payments under
the terms of the lease agreement. A $788,266 net economic capital gain from the refunding, which is the
difference between the present value of the minimum payments on the refunded debt and the present value of the
minimum payments on the refunding debt, has been deferred. The deferred gain will be amortized as a component
of interest expense over the life of the refunding debt, which is the same life as the refunded debt.

The asset acquired through a capital lease is as follows:

2014 2013
Building — MTS Tower $ 12,091,981 $ 12,091,981
Less accumulated depreciation (9,635,797) (9,257,923)
Total $ 2,456,184 $ 2,834,058

The following is a summary of future minimum payments under the capital lease as of June 30, 2014:

Tower Lease

Year Ending June 30: Payments
2015 $ 750,550
2016 731,665
2017 739,617
2018 743,537
2019 744,055
2020 372,148
Total minimum lease payments 4,081,572
Less amount representing interest (467,423)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 3,614,149

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the future minimum payments were $3,614,149 and $4,189,818, respectively.
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Note 9 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

C. 1995 LRV Lease/Leaseback

In fiscal year 1996, MTS entered into a master lease to lease 52 light rail vehicles to an investor and then
simultaneously entered into a sublease agreement to lease them back. MTS received prepayments of the master
lease from the investor of approximately $102.7 million, of which it used approximately $90.7 million to place two
investments that will be used to make the interest and principal payments on the finance obligation. MTS placed
$78.8 million in a fixed rate deposit and invested $11.9 million in government zero-coupon bonds. The interest
earned on the deposit, together with the principal amount of the deposit and the maturities of the zero-coupon
bonds are sufficient to cover the amounts due under the finance obligation.

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the remaining future obligation total $113,457,002 and $115,264,486, respectively.

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 21361390 $ 5689623 $ 27,051,013
2016 21,495,358 5,560,115 27,055,473
2017 4,923,324 5,240,909 10,164,233
2018 4,642,844 4,873,030 9,515,874
2019 4,989,231 4,502,751 9,491,982
2020-2024 43,105,910 14,211,017 57,316,927
2025-2026 12,938,945 604,846 13,543,791
Total $ 113457,002 $ 40,682,291 $ 154,139,293

For the above lease transaction, MTS is obligated to insure and maintain the equipment. The lease agreement also
provide for MTS’s right to continued use and control of the equipment. The LRVs acquired under the various
finance obligations have been transferred to and are recorded by SDTI. For the 1995 LRV lease/leaseback, as well
as the 1990 sale/leaseback that was retired in 2008, MTS has also agreed to indemnify the lessors for any taxes
imposed by United States taxing authorities.

. Pension Obligation Bonds

In October 2004, MTS issued $77,490,000 of Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds (POBSs) for the benefit of SDTC.
The purpose of the bonds was to make contributions to the San Diego Transit Corporation Retirement Plan and
reduce its unfunded liability. This is in essence a hedge versus the assumed investment rate of 8% used by the
actuary to determine the Actuarial Accrued Liability. The proceeds less fees were invested into the retirement
plan. The bonds consist of the following:

Series A Bonds of $38,690,000 are fixed rate bonds that mature in annual installments between 2006 and 2024 and
bear an interest rate from 2.58% to 5.15% increasing progressively over the maturities. Interest is due and payable
semi-annually on June 1 and December 1. Principal is due and payable each year on December 1.

The Taxable Pension Obligation Refunding Bonds 2009 Series A of $30,000,000 were variable rate bonds that
were to mature on December 23, 2015. Interest was adjusted on a weekly basis indexed to LIBOR and was
payable on a monthly basis. The refunding bonds were issued in 2009 to retire the Series B Bonds of $38,800,000
issued in 2004, which were variable rate bonds that matured in annual installments between 2024 and 2034. The
Taxable Pension Obligation Refunding Bonds 2009 Series A were retired in December 2012,
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Note 9 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)
D. Pension Obligation Bonds (Continued)

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding balance of the Pension Obligation Bonds is $23,965,000 and
$25,880,000, respectively.

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 2005000 $ 1149100 $ 3,154,100
2016 2,100,000 1,052,065 3,152,065
2017 2,205,000 947,884 3,152,884
2018 2,315,000 838,500 3,153,500
2019 2,430,000 723,671 3,153,671
2020-2024 12,910,000 1,604,225 14,514,225
Total $ 23965000 $ 6315445 $ 30,280,445

Note 10 — Risk Management

MTS (including SDTI, SDTC, and Other Contracted Services) is self-insured for liability claims to a maximum of
$2,000,000 per occurrence. Amounts in excess of the self-insured retention limits for public liability are covered
through commercial insurance carriers up to $75,000,000. MTS, SDTI, and SDTC purchase all-risk (excluding
earthquake) insurance coverage for property damage up to $600,000,000 per occurrence with deductibles ranging from
$25,000 to $250,000, depending on the peril involved. In addition, MTS, SDTC, and SDTI are self-insured for costs
arising from employee workers’ compensation act benefit claims including employer’s liability to a retained limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence. Amounts in excess of $1,000,000 are insured up to statutory limits. SDTC and MTS are
self-insured for unemployment claims. MTS, SDTC and SDTI have policies for crime coverage through commercial
insurance.

Claims expenditures and liabilities in connection with these self-insurance programs are reported when it is probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of
claims that have been incurred but not reported based upon past experience, modified for current trends and
information. Claim payments up to $2,000,000 per incident were recorded as general and administrative expenses in
the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Claim payments did not exceed insurance coverage
in any of the past three years.

Current year
claims and
Beginning of changes Claims End of
fiscal year in estimates payments fiscal year
MTS:
2011-2012 $ 14428000 $ 2313883 $  (2,477,883) $ 14,264,000
2012-2013 14,264,000 1,689,176 (3,704,213) 12,248,963
2013-2014 12,248,963 4,417,293 (4,975,000) 11,691,256
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Note 10 — Risk Management (Continued)

Following is a summary of accrued damage, injury and employee claims for fiscal years 2014 and 2013:

Accrued damage, injury and employee claims 2014 2013
Current portion $ 3,917,111 $ 3,394,889
Non-current portion 7,774,145 8,854,074
Total $ 11691256 $ 12,248,963

MTS has established a policy to consolidate the minimum balances required in the liability claims reserve accounts of
SDTC and SDTI to be held by MTS. The policy also established eligible uses for the MTS reserve account, which
included the reimbursement to SDTC and SDTI of awards/settlements of individual liability claims for personal injury
and/or property damage in excess of $300,000, but within the self-insurance retention at SDTC and SDTI. In
connection with these self-insurance programs, liabilities for SDTC, SDTI and MTS were $11,691,256 at June 30,
2014 and $12,248,963 at June 30, 2013.

The Board has designated $2,000,000 for the purposes of funding the future claims liabilities of MTS, SDTI, and
SDTC.

Note 11 - Contingencies

Pending legal actions. MTS, SDTC and SDTI have been named in certain legal actions pending at June 30, 2014.
While the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of management of MTS, SDTC and
SDTI, based in part on the advice of counsel, the resolution of these matters is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the financial position or results of operations of MTS, SDTC, or SDTI, or is adequately covered by insurance.

Pledged Revenue. SDTC has pledged future revenues pursuant to the provision of the Pension Obligation Bonds
issued by SDTC in FY2004.

Contingent Tax Liability Related to Leaseback Agreements. During 1990 and 1995 MTS entered into sale/leaseback
and lease/leaseback arrangements related to the acquisition of trolley cars. These agreements provided tax benefits for
the purchaser/lessor. Certain terms of the agreements call for repayment to the purchaser/lessor if the tax
consequences of the agreement are lost or changed due to changes in the Internal Revenue Code. Subsequent changes
in the Internal Revenue Code may cause an amount to be repaid to the purchaser/lessor, which is essentially the portion
of the proceeds relating to the tax benefits lost by the purchaser/lessor. No repayment has been requested to date, and
the amount of any future request is not estimable at this time.

Contingent Tax Liability Related to Component Unit. MTS learned in FYOQ7 that the freight operator who has
managed SD&AE operations in the past filed federal and state corporate tax returns through calendar year 2005, which
are not required for not for profit corporations that are deemed to be instrumentalities of a political subdivision such as
MTS. Under the direction of tax consultants, MTS directed that the freight operator prepare a final return for calendar
year 2007. However, MTS recently learned it was also necessary that SD&AE be formally recognized as an exempt
organization by the Internal Revenue Service and Franchise Tax Board. Although it is anticipated that SD&AE will be
granted exemption under federal and state laws as an instrumentality of MTS and, therefore, exempt from filing any
form of tax return, there is a risk of audit of returns that should have been filed by SD&AE for FY11, FY12, and FY13
pending formal recognition of SD&AE’s exempt status. This risk will be eliminated once SD&AE's exempt status is
formally recognized which is anticipated before the end of the current calendar year.
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Note 12 - Postemployment Health Care Benefits

Plan Description: As of January 1, 2011, all employees at MTS, all management employees at SDTI and SDTC, and
all union employees at SDTI participated in HMO and PPO plans offered by Kaiser and Anthem. As in years past,
SDTC has provided payments to operator and maintenance employee unions for provision of postemployment benefits
as determined by each union.

For the year ended June 30, 2014, total MTS payments were $81,049 for 13 retirees, total SDTI payments were
$150,348 for 28 retirees, and total SDTC payments were $468,265 for 45 management retirees plus $460,666 for 150
union retirees currently receiving postemployment health care benefits.

For the year ended June 30, 2013, total MTS payments were $49,167 for 9 retirees, total SDTI payments were
$152,683 for 25 retirees, and total SDTC payments were $433,836 for 45 management retirees plus $407,070 for 156
union retirees currently receiving postemployment health care benefits.

Because the three plans are funded as expenses are incurred, there are no accumulated plan assets and no separate
benefit plan reports are available at this time.

The Plan's Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) is the cumulative excess of prior Annual Required Contribution (ARC) over
benefit payments and contributions, with annual adjustments for interest and amortization. The reconciliation of NOO
over fiscal years 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Net OPEB Obligation (NOO)

MTS SDTI SDTC Total
NOO at June 30, 2012 $ 3036541 $ 5676,864 $ 3,405,264 $ 12,118,669
Benefit payments paid outside of a trust (49,167) (152,683) (840,906) (1,042,756)
Estimated contributions to a trust - - - -
Annual Required Contribution 526,600 631,900 1,435,300 2,593,800
Accrued interest on June 30, 2012 NOO 136,600 255,500 153,200 545,300
Amortization of June 30, 2012 NOO (130,100) (243,200) (145,900) (519,200)
NOO at June 30, 2013 3,520,474 6,168,381 4,006,958 13,695,813
Benefit payments paid outside of a trust (81,049) (150,348) (928,831) (1,160,228)
Estimated contributions to a trust - - - -
Annual Required Contribution 487,900 624,000 1,367,000 2,478,900
Accrued interest on June 30, 2013 NOO 158,400 277,600 180,300 616,300
Amortization of June 30, 2013 NOO (146,800) (257,200) (167,100) (571,100)
NOO at June 30, 2014 3 3938925 $ 6,662,433 3% 4458327 $ 15,059,685

Eligibility. Employees are eligible after attaining age/service years of 50/10 for MTS and SDTI management, 50/15 for
SDTI union, 53/10 for SDTC management, and 55/5 for SDTC unions.

Participants as of
(Most Current Available)
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012

Current retirees and surviving spouses 229 237
Other participants fully eligible for benefits 352 330
Other participants not yet fully eligible for benefits 1,074 964

Total 1,655 1,531
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Funding policy. The contribution requirements of plan members and MTS are established by management and may be
amended. The contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2014, MTS
contributions to the plan were $1,160,228 (or 52.79% of total gross health costs), while retirees contributed $1,037,710
(or 47.21% of total gross health costs), as compared to fiscal year 2013, MTS contributions to the plan were
$1,042,756 (or 49.29% of total gross health costs), while retirees contributed $1,072,969 (or 50.71% of total gross
health costs).

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. MTS’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the sponsoring
employer's Annual Required Contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
cost each year and amortize any Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities (UAAL) as a level percentage of projected payroll
on a closed basis over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of MTS’s ARC and
Annual OPEB Cost for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount actually contributed to the plans, and the
changes in MTS’s Net OPEB Obligation to the Plan:

All Groups
2014 2013
Normal Cost $ 956,500 $ 1,050,300
Amortization of Unfunded AAL 1,522,400 1,543,500
Annual Required Contribution 2,478,900 2,593,800
Interest on beginning of year NOO 616,300 545,300
Amortization of beginning of year NOO (571,100) (519,200)
Annual OPEB cost 2,524,100 2,619,900
Contributions or Benefit Payments (873,128) (726,656)
Implicit subsidy payments (287,100) (316,100)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,363,872 1,577,144
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 13,695,813 12,118,669
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $§ 15059685 $ 13695813

MTS’s Annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of Annual OPEB Cost contributed to the plan and the Net OPEB
Obligation for fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

% of Annual
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2012 $ 2,628,300 36.83% $ 12,118,669
June 30, 2013 2,619,900 39.80% 13,695,813
June 30, 2014 2,524,100 45.97% 15,059,685

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was not
funded. The Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) for benefits was $36,511,800 and the actuarial value of assets was $0
compared to $37,018,400 and $0 as of June 30, 2011. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) as of June 30, 2013 was $68,044,900 and the ratio of Unfunded AAL to covered payroll was 54%
percent compared to $65,775,100 and 56% as of June 30, 2011.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 12 - Postemployment Health Care Benefits (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The most recent funding progress schedules available for
MTS, SDTI and SDTC are presented below:

MTS (in 000s)

Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll payroll
6/30/2013 $ - $ 3855 § 3,855 0.00% $ 8,698 44.32%
SDTI (in 000s)
Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2013 $ - 3 9545 $ 9,545 0.00% $ 25,277 37.76%
SDTC (in 000s)
Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2013 - 8 23111 $ 23,111 0.00% $ 34,070 67.83%

Actuarial review and analysis of OPEB liability and funding status is required every two years, or annually if there are
significant changes in the plan. The June 2013 study was completed during FY2014. The next study, which will be
based on activity through June 2015, will be completed during FY2016.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in Actuarial Accrued Liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method was used. The actuary assumed
4.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) which is the expected long-term investment returns on
the employer's own investments, and a compensation increase of 3%. The annual healthcare cost trend rate varies
depending on the plan and type of health care service involved. Beginning in fiscal year 2013/2014, medical/drug
trends generally grade down from 7.25% and 7.75% to an ultimate of 4.5% by 2025/2026, while dental expense trends
grade down from 5.0% to an ultimate of 4.5% by 2018/2019. A general inflation rate of 3.0% was included in the
investment rate, compensation rate, and the health care cost trend rate. The UAAL is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll over a rolling 30 years.
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Note 13 — Employee Retirement System
A. MTS and SDTI
Plan Description and Provisions

MTS’s and SDTI’s defined benefit pension plans (Plan) provide retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-
living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The plans are part of the Public Agency
portion of the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State of California. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by
State statutes within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. MTS and SDTI have selected optional benefit
provisions in their contracts with CalPERS and adopt these benefits through local ordinances. Copies of the
CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office — 400 P Street, Sacramento,
CA 95814.

Funding Policy

All employees working the equivalent of 1,000 hours per fiscal year are eligible to participate as members of
CalPERS. The age at which MTS and SDTI employees are eligible to retire varies based on when they joined the
Agency; all employees must have at least five years of vested service at separation to receive benefits. Annual
retirement benefits are determined based on age at retirement, the length of membership service, and the amount of
earnings based on the highest average pay rate in either a 12 or 36 month period (depending on when the employee
first became a CalPERS member). CalPERS also provides death and disability benefits. CalPERS issues a
separate Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The contribution requirements of the Plan members are established by State statute and the employer contribution
rate is established based on annual CalPERS actuarial studies of Plan assets and liabilities and participant
demographics. All MTS and SDTI employees are required to contribute a percentage of their gross pay to fund
their future retirement benefits. Employee contributions vary based on the applicable Collective Bargaining
Agreement, agency policy, and the date the employees’ CalPERS membership began. MTS and SDTI are required
to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.

The most recent funding progress schedule available for SDTI is presented below:

SDTI (in 000s)

Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2012 $ 84,011 $ 93,892 $ 9,881 89.48% $ 24,008 41.16%

MTS is a member of the CalPERS risk pool for groups under 100 because the plan had less than 100 active
members for at least one valuation since June 30, 2003. As a result individual funding progress is not available for
MTS.
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Note 13 — Employee Retirement System (Continued)
A. MTS and SDTI (Continued)
Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2014, MTS’s and SDTI’s annual required employer contributions were $2,384,715 and $4,326,440
respectively. Of these totals, employees contributed $337,168 and $1,580,463. The required contribution for fiscal
year 2014 was determined as part of the June 30, 2011, actuarial valuation using the Entry Age Normal Cost
Method with the contributions determined as a percent of pay.

For fiscal year 2013, MTS’s and SDTI’s annual required employer contributions were $2,095,466 and $4,029,158,
respectively. Of these totals, employees contributed $66,436 and $1,398,251. The required contribution for fiscal
year 2013 was determined as part of the June 30, 2010, actuarial valuation using the Entry Age Normal Cost
Method with the contributions determined as a percent of pay.

The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses); (b)
projected salary increases from 3.30% to 14.20% depending on age, service, and type of employment; (c) 3.00%
payroll growth adjustment; (d) 2.75% inflation adjustment; and (e¢) a merit scale varying by duration of
employment coupled with an assumed annual inflation growth of 2.75% and an annual production growth of
0.25%. The actuarial value of the assets of both plans was determined using a smoothing technique that spreads
the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a fifteen-year period depending on the
size of investment gains and/or losses. MTS’s and SDTI’s initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or excess
assets) is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis depending on the plan’s date
of entry. Subsequent gains and losses are amortized over variable periods depending on the events precipitating the
gain or loss. The average remaining amortization period at June 30, 2012, the most recent valuation date, was 19
years for MTS and 21 years for SDTI.

Trend information for MTS (in 000s)

Annual Required

Fiscal Year Ended Contribution Actual Percentage of
June 30: (ARC) Contribution ARC Contributed
2012 $ 2021 $ 2,021 100%
2013 2,095 2,095 100%
2014 2,385 2,385 100%

Trend information for SDTI (in 000s)

Annual Required

Fiscal Year Ended Contribution Actual Percentage of
June 30: (ARC) Contribution ARC Contributed
2012 $ 3,908 $ 3,908 100%
2013 4,029 4,029 100%
2014 4,326 4,326 100%
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Note 13 — Employee Retirement System (Continued)
B. SDTC
Plan Description

The San Diego Transit Corporation (SDTC) Employee Retirement Plan (Plan) provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to eligible Plan members and beneficiaries. Full-
time employees and certain part-time noncontract employees who have completed one year of service in which
they have worked at least 1,000 hours of service, and certain part-time contract employees participate in the Plan.
To be eligible for participation in the defined benefit plan, the employee must have been hired before November
25, 2012 if they are an Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU), Local 1309 member, or before April 28, 2011 if they
are an International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 465 member.

Beginning in FY 2011, SDTC negotiated changes to retirement benefits for ATU Local 1309 members and IBEW
Local 465 members. ATU Local 1309 represented employees hired after November 25, 2012 and IBEW local 465
represented employees hired after April 28, 2011 will receive their retirement benefits from a defined contribution
401(a) plan. Based on the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement, SDTC contributes a fixed percentage of
each employee’s gross wages to a 401(a) account and matches voluntary employee contributions up to a maximum
of 2% of the employees’ gross wages.

SDTC issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Plan. The financial report may be obtained by writing to San Diego Transit Corporation, 1255
Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101.

Funding Status and Progress

The SDTC defined benefit pension plan is funded with both employer and employee contributions. Required
funding levels are determined by annual independent actuarial study comparing plan assets and liabilities and
participant demographics. Employee contributions vary based on the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement,
agency policy, and the date the employees’ membership began. After deducting employee contributions, SDTC
contributes the remaining balance necessary to achieve the actuarially required funding level. The valuation
method used to calculate the contribution for the Plan is the Individual Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method.

According to this cost method, the normal cost for an employee is the level amount which would fund the
projected benefit if it were paid annually from date of eligibility until retirement. The significant actuarial
assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirements included (a) 7.50% investment
rate of return, (b) projected salary increase of 3.25% to 14% depending on age, service, and type of employment;
(c) 3% inflation adjustment; and (d) cost of living adjustments up to 2% annually for certain Non-Contract
members only. The actuarial value of the assets of the plan was determined using a smoothing technique that
spreads the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period depending on
the size of investment gains and/or losses. SDTC’s initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized
as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. Subsequent gains and losses are amortized over
variable periods depending on the events precipitating the gain or loss. The average remaining amortization period
at July 1, 2013, the most recent valuation date, was 25 years.
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Note 13 — Employee Retirement System (Continued)
B. SDTC (Continued)
The most recent schedule of funding progress for SDTC is presented below:

SDTC (in 000s)

Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
7/1/2013 $ 148,452 3 241331 % 92,879 61.51% $ 32,707 283.97%

Annual Pension Cost

The annual pension cost of $13,527,981 and $11,358,529 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, was equal to SDTC’s required and actual contributions. Of this total, employees contributed
$899,791 and $401,274 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The required contribution was
determined as part of the July 1, 2012 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. Following is the
most recent data available.

Trend information for SDTC (in 000s)

Annual Required

Fiscal Year Ended Contribution Actual Percentage of
June 30: (ARC) Contribution ARC Contributed
2012 $ 10,132 $ 10,132 100%
2013 11,359 11,359 100%
2014 13,528 13,528 100%

Note 14 — Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures

SDTC had unrestricted net deficits of $26,537,249 at June 30, 2014 compared to $15,881,180 at June 30, 2013. The
deficit is primarily a result of the timing difference between recognition of expenses on an accrual basis and when
those expenses are funded by subsidy transfers. MTS expects that this deficit will be funded with future subsidies.

Note 15 — Restatement of Net Position
As a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 65, net position was restated as follows:

Net position at July 1, 2012, as previously reported $ 1,409,034,602

Restatement to recognize deferred bond issuance cost
as an expense due to implementation of GASB 65 (360,626)

Restatement to record insurance costs related to bond
issuance as prepaid expenses due to implementation of
GASB 65 128,587

Net position at July 1, 2012, as restated $ 1,408,802,563
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Note 16 — Subsequent Events
Purchase of Head Lease Rights

On September 18, 2014, the MTS Board of Directors authorized staff to execute the purchase of the Head Lease Rights
to 52 light rail vehicles as set forth in the Participation Agreement and other leverage lease documents executed by
MTS on December 15, 1995. MTS has sufficient funds on hand in Treasury Strips and a fixed rate deposit account at
Rabobank to fulfill the $119 million purchase option in five installments during FY15 and FY16.

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27). This Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures for Pensions Plans. This Statement
further identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected
benefits payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service.
Management is evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard on the financial statements and believes that its
impact, when adopted, may be substantial to MTS. GASB No. 68 will be implemented effective with the fiscal year
2014-2015 financial statements.
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Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF DEFINED PENSION PLAN

The following Schedule of Funding Progress shows the recent history of the actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued
liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to payroll. (Amounts in
thousands of dollars)

MTS

Beginning with the 6/30/2003 valuation, CalPERS established a risk pool for cities and other government entities that

have less than 100 active members. An actuarial valuation was performed with other participants within the same risk
pool. Therefore, standalone information for the Schedule of Funding Progress for MTS is not available.

SDTI (in 000s):

Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2010 $ 71,032 $ 79,497 $ 8,465 89.35% $ 23,364 36.23%
6/30/2011 77,582 88,127 10,545 88.03% 24,097 43.76%
6/30/2012 84,011 93,892 9,881 89.48% 24,008 41.16%
SDTC (in 000s):
Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
7/1/2011 $ 151,113  $ 236,875 % 85,762 63.79% $ 32,573 263.29%
7/1/2012 147,787 235,401 87,614 62.78% 33,393 262.37%
7/1/2013 148,452 241,331 92,879 61.51% 32,707 283.97%
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Required Supplementary Information (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS OF OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

The following Schedule of Funding Progress shows the recent history of the actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued
liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to payroll. (Amounts in

thousands of dollars)

MTS (in 000s):
Actuarial Annual UAAL as a
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2009 $ 2,701 $ 2,701 0.00% $ 8,281 32.62%
6/30/2011 3,276 3,276 0.00% 8,023 40.83%
6/30/2013 3,855 3,855 0.00% 8,698 44.32%
SDTI (in 000s):
Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2009 $ 7,565 $ 7,565 0.00% $ 26,788 28.24%
6/30/2011 9,417 9,417 0.00% 24,617 38.25%
6/30/2013 9,545 9,545 0.00% 25,277 37.76%
SDTC (in 000s):
Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Valuation Value of Entry Age Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Assets Normal AAL AAL Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/2009 $ 21,3718  § 21,378 0.00% $ 37,463 57.06%
6/30/2011 24,326 24,326 0.00% 33,136 73.41%
6/30/2013 23,111 23,111 0.00% 34,070 67.83%

Actuarial review and analysis of OPEB liability and funding status is performed every two years or annually if there
are significant changes in the plan. The next scheduled actuarial review and analysis of OPEB liability and funding
status will be performed in FY2016 based on the year ending June 30, 2015.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Combining Schedule of Net Position
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual:
Combined Operations
General Fund
Taxicab Administration
San Diego & Arizona Eastern Railway
Contracted Services
San Diego Transit Corporation

San Diego Trolley, Inc.
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Statistical Section
(Unaudited)

Included in this section of the Metropolitan Transit System comprehensive annual financial report is detailed
information to assist in analysis and understanding of the information presented in the financial statements, notes and
required supplementary information.

Contents

Financial trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how MTS’s financial position has changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain detailed information about the fare structures and revenue generated from transit operations
provided by MTS.

Debt Capacity
This schedule presents information to help the reader assess the affordability of MTS’s current levels of outstanding
debt and MTS’s ability to issue debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules provide service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in MTS’s
financial report relates to the services MTS provides.

Operating Information
These schedules provide service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in MTS’s
financial report relates to the services MTS provides.
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

Operating Revenue by Source (in 000’s)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Att. A, Al 30, 11/20/14

Federal State Local
Fiscal Year Ended Passenger Fares  Operating Funds  Operating Funds  Operating Funds Interest Other
San Diego Transit
2005 $ 21,383 % 14200 $ 25862 $ 7,278 68 800
2006 22,264 15,000 23,415 13,383 129 (526)
2007 22,298 15,000 29,360 9,901 63 1,115
2008 23,680 13,934 21,863 10,507 - 868
2009 27,882 17,177 24,496 14,416 - 271
2010 26,708 18,267 16,249 21,456 - 31
2011 26,056 19,894 29,435 18,307 - 166
2012 27,498 20,709 20,497 17,549 - 214
2013 28,621 20,266 31,954 18,886 - 33
2014 27,781 19,336 16,489 20,897 - 7
San Diego Trolley
2005 25,855 10,651 1,741 8,279 - 880
2006 27,934 12,788 7,415 6,000 - 695
2007 27,402 15,325 6,279 6,000 - 469
2008 31,120 13,881 4,479 6,000 - 664
2009 33,454 16,616 787 7,043 - 997
2010 33,050 16,449 5,637 5,000 - 462
2011 34,673 14,912 5,497 5,000 - 1,220
2012 35,216 14,989 7,208 5,492 - 361
2013 35,554 22,426 3,379 5,000 - 625
2014 40,188 22,913 1,501 5,000 - 1,312
MTS - Contracted Services
2005 16,564 711 31,703 2,136 - -
2006 17,382 - 137 455 (345)
2007 18,935 200 36,300 1,778 - (974)
2008 21,138 921 38,020 1,285 - 75
2009 23,857 4,681 29,581 1,456 - 64
2010 24,410 10,420 21,524 1,636 - 47
2011 24,036 4,641 28,857 2,002 - -
2012 25,380 7,155 26,635 1,984 - -
2013 26,476 5,595 28,132 2,368 - -
2014 26,025 10,362 26,906 2,665 - -
Source: Audited Financial Statements.
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Att. A, Al 30, 11/20/14
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Farebox Recovery Percentage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

MTS-Contract

Fiscal Year Ended  San Diego Transit ~ San Diego Trolley Services
2005 26.67 54.25 31.97
2006 30.38 50.78 31.96
2007 30.44 48.97 33.05
2008 29.59 55.62 34.40
2009 3431 57.15 40.00
2010 28.46 54.26 42.06
2011 31.22 57.41 40.37
2012 30.50 55.63 41.50
2013 29.01 53.98 42.31
2014 30.34 56.52 39.46

Source: Audited Financial Statements; calculated as passenger revenue divided by operating expenses (less depreciation and
OPEB), interest expense, and miscellaneous expenses.
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2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Source:

Last Nine Fiscal Years

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Regional Population and Personal Income Statistics

Att. A, Al 30, 11/20/14

County of San San Diego County
County of San Diego Personal County of San Average
Diego Population Income Diego Per Capita Unemployment

(1) (thousands) (1) Personal Income (1) Rate (2)

$ 2,982,816 129,600,000 $ 47,055 4.10%
3,014,165 136,200,000 47,405 4.80%
3,051,262 142,000,000 47,019 6.40%
3,077,633 139,600,000 46,047 10.20%
3,104,581 142,700,000 45,974 10.50%
3,131,254 150,200,000 46,767 10.40%
3,157,669 160,200,000 48,265 9.30%
3,186,188 171,200,000 49,778 7.40%
3,216,304 181,700,000 52,878 6.10%

(1) California Department of Transportation - Estimates 2006-2011, Forecast 2012-2014
(2) California Employment Development Department, June 2014

In FY2012, MTS changed the presentation of income statistics and has restated this schedule with data for all of San Diego County
rather than the MTS service area. MTS has made these changes because comparable data for San Diego County Data is available
from 2006 forward, and because it has proven difficult to obtain reliable data for the MTS service area from published sources. In
addition, MTS presents this schedule from 2006 through the current year and will present one additional year of activity to a
maximum of ten years as of 2015.
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2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

2014

Source: MTS payroll records

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Full-Time and Part-Time Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time and Part-time Employees at June 30

Att. A, Al 30, 11/20/14

MTS San Diego Transit ~ San Diego Trolley Total
73 927 528 1,528
90 880 539 1,509
121 866 527 1,514
117 844 533 1,494
114 824 530 1,468
110 782 528 1,420
116 758 543 1,417
122 761 568 1,451
136 786 599 1,521
149 785 600 1,534
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Att. A, Al 30, 11/20/14
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Ten Largest Employers in San Diego County

Number of Percent of 1,491,600
Company Name Employees (1) County Total (2)
State of California 43,300 2.90%
University of California, San Diego 28,672 1.92%
Federal Government 24,200 1.62%
U.S. Department of Defense 21,500 1.44%
County of San Diego 20,100 1.35%
City of San Diego 18,000 1.21%
Sharp Healthcare 15,865 1.06%
Scripps Health 13,750 0.92%
San Diego Unified School District 13,559 0.91%
Kaiser San Diego Medical Center 8,900 0.60%

Source:
(1) The Daily Transcript - 2014 Data updated July 31, 2014
(2) Employment Development Department, State of California

Note: County of San Diego employment information is presented. Employer information is not currently available for the area
served by the Metropolitan Transit System within San Diego County. MTS presents only current employment data for the county
of San Diego.
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6265 Greenwich Drive

S Suite 220

l San Diego, California 92122

PUN & McGEADY Phone: (858) 242-5100
Fax: (858) 242-5150

www.pm-llp.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System (MTS), which
comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered MTS’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of MTS’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of MTS’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether MTS’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

A-111
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To the Board of Directors
of the San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
San Diego, California
Page 2

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

fae F Me Gy AT

San Diego, California
October 31, 2014
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Audit Team

Engagement Partner
Kenneth H. Pun

CPACOMA y | Concurring Partner
| — Gary M. Caporicci

CPA, CGFM, CFF

* B

Engagement Manager
Coley Delaney
CPA
I
i i o
Seniors
Andrew Roth, CPA
David Siris, CPA
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3
Professional Staff I’P\[\/\
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRESENTATION

Management’s Responsibilities

» Present the Financial Statements in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

» Adopt sound accounting policies

» Establish and maintain Internal Controls over Financial
Reporting and Compliance

» Provide evidence supporting the financial statements and
related disclosures

» Fair presentation of Financial Statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

)
M
PUN & McGEADY
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRESENTATION

Auditor’s Responsibilities

» Assess Audit Risk of Internal Controls Over Financial
Reporting and Compliance

» Determine compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in the United States of America

» Determine the fairness and accuracy of Financial Statements
presentation

» Issue Audit Opinion on the Financial Statements
» Issue Recommendations to Management, if any

2
PUN & McGEADY
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRESENTATION

Approach To The Audit

WM - P&M's Audit Approach for MTS

-~ " | = Phasel - Detailed Planning

[ ' al = Phase Il - Risk Based Review of Internal
Controls Over Systems and Compliance

= Phase Ill — Validation of Account
Balances

= Phase |V — Review Financial Statements
and Issue Audit Opinion

B

PUN & McGEADY
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Summary Statement of Net Position
June 30,

2014 2013
Asnetu:
Currenl assets $ 175,094,000 $ 160,133,000
Non-current assels 133,489,000 156,026,000
Properly and equipmenl, nel 1,512,775,000 1,416,261,000
Total assets 1,821,358,000 1,732420,000
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 85,077,000 62,946,000
Long-term liabililies 152,722,000 175,787,000
Total liabillties 237,799,000 238,733,000
Deferred Inflows of regources: 497,000 589,000
Net Position:
Net Investement in Capilal Assels 1,395,206,000 1,296,217,000
Restricted 6,742,000 7,255,000
Unrestricted 181,114,000 189,626,000
Total net position $ 1,583,062,000 $ 1,493,098,000

BM

PUN & McGEADY
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Summary Statements of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position
For the years ended June 30,
2014 2013
Revenues
Operaling revenues $ 104,425,000 $ 96,559,000
Nonoperating revenues 217,605,000 191,017,000
Total Revenues 322,030,000 287,576,000
Expenses
Operaling expenses 343,566,000 327,929,000
Nonoperating expenses 7,268,000 7,534,000
Total Expenses 350,834,000 335,463,000
Change in net position before
Capital Contribution (28,804,000) (47,887,000)
Capital Contribution 118,768,000 132,182,000
Change in Net Position 89,964,000 84,295,000
Net Position:
Beginning of Year 1,493,098,000 1,408,803,000
knd ot Year $ 1,583,062,000 $ 1,493,098,000

PUN & McGEADY
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San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Summary Statement of Cash Flows
June 30,

2014 2013
Cash flows from Operating % (133299,000) $ (145,901,000)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing 206,102,000 203,981,000
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing (85,114,000) (98,275,000)
Cash Flows from Investing 125,000 193,000
Changes in cash and cash equivalents $ (12,186,000) $ (40,001,000)

BM

PUN & McGEADY
9
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Schedule of Funding Progress
of Defined Benefits Plans
For the year ended June 30, 2014
SDTC Transit* SDTI Trolley **
Actuarial Value of Assets $ 148,452,000 $ 84,011,000
Entry Age Norma! Actuarial Accrued Liabilities {241,331,000) (93,892,000)
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities $ (92,879,000) $ (9,881,000)
Funded Status 62% 89%
Actuarial Valuation Date July 1,2013 June 30,2012
*  SDTC Employee Retirement Plan
*+ CALPERS
ZM
PUN & McGEADY
10




AlNo. 30, 11/2014

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
Schedule of Funding Progress
of Other Post Employment Healthcare Plan
For the year ended June 30, 2014

MTS Transit Trolley
Actuarial Value of Assets $ -8 - 8
Entry Age Normal Actuarial Accrued Liabilities (3,855,000) (23,111,000) (9,545,000)
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities $(3,855,000) $(23,111,000) $(9,545,000)
Funded Status 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Actuarial Valuation Date June 30,2013 June 30,2013  June 30,2013

PUN & McGEADY
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRESENTATION

Audit Results

= Unmodified Opinion
= Financial Statements are fairly presented in all material
respects
= Significant accounting policies have been consistently
applied
= Estimates are reasonable

= Disclosures are properly reflected in the financial
statements

PUN & McGEADY
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PRESENTATION

Other Results

» No disagreements with Management

- No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in
internal controls were noted

= No accounting issues

PUN & McGEADY
13

Thank You
For Allowing Pun & McGeady LLP
to provide services to

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

M

PUN & McGEADY
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//m“\\\\\\\\ Metropolitan Transit System

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 ¢ FAX (619) 234-3407

Agenda Item No. _4é

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:
YEAR END OPERATIONS REPORT (WAYNE TERRY, BILL SPRAUL AND DENIS
DESMOND)
INFORMATIONAL ONLY
Budget Impact
None.
DISCUSSION:

MTS Board Policy No. 42, Transit Service Evaluation and Adjustment, establishes a
process for evaluating existing transit services to achieve the objective of developing a
customer-focused, competitive, integrated, and sustainable system. Additionally, federal
Title VI guidance requires that certain performance measures be evaluated and reported
to the Board periodically. The analyses, included in the attachment to this report, show
trends for the current fiscal year and help to track performance throughout the year.

Staff from the Planning department and the Rail and Bus Operating Divisions will provide
a summary of fiscal year 2014 service performance.

oz

Paul C. Jablonski”

Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, sharon.cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Service Performance Monitoring Report

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 » (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com

Mstropolitan Translt System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
(nonprofit public benefit corporations), and San Dlego Vintage Trollsy, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab administrator for seven cities

MTS member agencies include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santse, and the County of San Diego



San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
POLICY 42 PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT

FY 2014: JULY 2013 - JUNE 2014

Att. A, Al 45, 11/20/14

Page 10f 8

The following measures of productivity and service quality are used to ensure that services are focused on providing compelitive and atlractive
transportation that meets our customers' needs.

Total Passengers = i I e Feiiral dal TR |

% %
# Change # Change
Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 ’ 9 | change | change
FY12- FY13- FY12- FY13-
FY13 FY14 FY13 FY14

Premium Express 310,455 308,912 286,428 (1,543) (22,484) -0.5% -7.3%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - 17,666 = 17,666 - -
Express 2,329,041 2,366,370 2,457,794 37,329 91,424 1.6% 3.9%
Light Rail 32,674,616 29,699,366 39,665,093 (2,975,250) 9,965,727 -9.1% 33.6%
Silver Line (Light Rail) - - 29,540 - - - -
Rapid (SuperlLoop, Route 235) - 1,557,568 1,658,456 = 100,888 - 6.5%
Urban Frequent 38,311,741 38,457,861 38,270,989 146,120 (186,872) 0.4% -0.5%
Urban Standard 13,647,404 11,984.646 11.425.215 (1,662,758) (559,431) -12.2% -4.7%
Circulator 841,764 773,698 725,279 (68,066) (48,419) -8.1% -6.3%
Rural 41,819 45,180 72,236 3.361 27,056 8.0% 59.9%
Demand-Responsive 355,300 379,415 417,717 24,115 38.302 6.8% 10.1%
System Total Passengers 88,512,140 85,573,016 95,026,413 (2,939,124) 9,453,397 -3.3% 11.0%
Fixed-Route Bus Ridership 55,482,224 55,494,235 54,914,063 12,011 (580,172) 0.0% -1.0%

NOTES : Overall, MTS system-wide ridership has increased +11%, mainly due to increased Trolley ridership. This is primarily attributed to Automatic
Passenger Counters (APCs) now installed on most Trolley cars, which improved accuracy and provide a clearer picture of ridership trends. The
previous estimation methodology relied on the number of one-way tickets sold, which dropped significantly when Day Passes replaced transfers. In
addition, new low-floor Trolley cars, reconfigured routes, an improved economy, additional service, and gas prices of more than $4 per gallon also
contributed to the ridership gains. Fixed-route bus ridership decreased slightly, partially due to construction delays on major routes. Ridership
decreases in some categories, such as Premium Express and Circulator, reflect routes changing to a different route category.

Sl A S VST ~ThEs Rk Y ey e I L T e NN A Fae )
% %
# Change # Change Change | Change

Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY12- FY13- FY12- FY13.

FY13 FY14 FY13 FY14
Premium Express 1,221 1,214 1,187 (7) (17) -0.6% -1.4%

Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - 1,104 - - - -
Express 8,422 8.631 9,022 209 391 2.5% 4.5%
Light Rail 97,401 87,955 120,739 (9,446) 32,784 -9.7% 37.3%

Silver Line (Light Rail) - - 181 - - = =
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) - 4,862 5,204 - 432 - 8.9%
Urban Frequent 125,394 125,383 125.361 (11) (22) 0.0% 0.0%
Urban Standard 46,467 41,228 39,436 (5.239) (1,792) -11.3% -4.3%
Circulator 3,582 2,966 2,782 (616) (184)| -17.2% -6.2%
Rural 265 227 306 (38) 79 -14.3% 34.8%
Demand-Responsive 1,302 1,367 1.500 65 133 5.0% 9.7%
System Avg. Weekday Pass. 284,054 273,833 306,922 {10,221) 33,089 -3.6% 12.1%
Fixed-Route Bus Avg. Weekday Pass. 185,351 184,511 184,503 (840) (8) -0.5% 0.0%

NOTES : The average weekday passenger statistics show how many passengers ride MTS on a typical weekday. For FY14, there is a +12.1%
increase in system-wide average weekday passengers (33,089 passengers per average weekday). Most of this is a result of an increase of +32,784
Trolley passengers per average weekday (+37.3%). Fixed-route bus average weekday passengers remained aimost unchanged. The greatest fixed-
route percentage decrease in average weekday passengers was the Circulator category, with a -6.2% decrease in average weekday passengers
(-184 passengers per average weekday), mainly the result of routes changing categories to Urban Standard.
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POLICY 42 PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT ’ '

FY 2014: JULY 2013 - JUNE 2014

Page 2 of 8
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Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 ;vf;:r\'(%i k]
Premium Express 21.9 21.3 298 -2.7% 0.9%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - 25.6 - -
Express 33.9 32.2 3186 -5.0% -1.9%
Light Rail 187.7 160.6 228.1 -14.4% 42.0%
Silver Line (Light Rail) - - 40.6 - -
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) - 34.3 334 - -2.6%
Urban Frequent 37.5 37.0 355 -1.3% -4.1%
Urban Standard 29.6 28.0 26.6 -5.4% -5.0%
Circulator 16.5 15.4 17.6 -6.7% 14.3%
Rural 9.4 9.4 13.0 0.0% 38.3%
Demand-Responsive 2.1 2.1 2.1 0.0% 0.0%
System Riders Per Rev. Hour 45.0 42.3 45.9 -6.0% 8.5%
Fixed-Route Bus Riders Per Rev. Hr. 34.3 33.5 324! -2.3% -3.3%

NOTES: MTS operated 4% more revenue hours in FY14 than in FY13. The ‘passengers per revenue hour’ metric shows how the revenue hours (in-
service hours plus layover hours) that were added or removed relate to ridership increases or decreases. Increasing riders per revenue hour would
indicate that the system is more efficient, for example, carrying more passengers with the same number of buses. For FY14, all MTS services carried
45.9 passengers per revenue hour, an increase of +8.5% (+3.6 riders per revenue hour). The change in riders per revenue hour figure on MTS' fixed-
route bus services was a moderate decrease of -3.3% (1.1 riders per revenue hour). For FY14, Trolley passengers per revenue hour increased
+42.0% to 228.1 passengers per revenue hour, an increase of +67.5 riders per revenue hour.

Weokday Passengers PerInService Hour T ]

The ‘passengers per in-service hour’ measure is related to the above ‘passengers per revenue hour,’ but shows how many passengers are carried
while the vehicle is in-service picking up passengers, excluding layover time. Analyzing this figure helps MTS to understand how effective it is at
providing the right level of service, instead of how effective MTS is at grouping trips and breaks together for a vehicle to operate (revenue hours).

% Change | % Change

Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY12-FY13 | FY13-FY14
Premium Express 24.0 23.5 24.8 -2.1% 5.5%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - B 294 - -
Express 41.0 40.4 39.1 -1.5% -3.2%
Light Rail 222.4 209.2 274.4 -5.9% 31.2%
Silver Line (Light Rail) - - 63.7 - -
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) - 46.8 456 - -2.6%
Urban Frequent 45.7 45.1 445 -1.3% -1.3%
Urban Standard 39.5 37.9 36.2 -4.1% -4.5%
Circulator 25.7 22.3 27.5 -13.2% 23.3%
Rural 10.1 8.5 9.6 -15.8% 13.1%
Demand-Responsive N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
System Riders/In-Svc. Hour 60.3 56.9 62.4 -5.6% 9.7%
Fixed-Route Bus Riders Per In-Svc. Hr. 42.7 42.0 41.2 -1.6% -1.9%

NOTES: Compared to FY13, MTS' system-wide passengers per in-service hour increased +5.5 to 62.4 passengers per in-service hour (+9.7%) in
FY14. For FY14, fixed-route bus passengers per in-service hour experienced a small -1.9% decrease to 41.2 passengers per in-service hour.
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On-time performance is d;ﬁned.a's departing wﬁiﬁ-s minutes of the scheduled time. It is measured by service change period in order to show the
results of scheduling changes. MTS' goal for on-time performance is 85% for Urban Frequent bus routes, and 90% for Trolley and all other bus route
categories.

: Service Change
outs Categniies Jan. 2013 Jun. 2013 Sept. 2013 | Jan. 2014 | Jun.2014 | COAL

Premium Express 98.4% 98.8% 91.9% 99.2% - 90.0%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) = = - - 85.7% 90.0%
Express 81.0% 81.8% 80.0% 80.2% 83.3% 90.0%
Light Rail 94.0% 95.2% 90.7% 89.0% 88.0% 90.0%
Silver Line (Light Rail) 90.9% 86.8% 88.8% 88.6% 91.0% 90.0%
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) 91.2% 90.0% 84.0% 88.6% 90.8% 85.0%
Urban Frequent 83.6% 79.6% 83.4% 82.1% 81.2% 85.0%
Urban Standard 84.9% 83.1% 86.0% 83.1% 86.1% 90.0%
Circulator 87.4% 91.6% 86.6% 92.4% 90.5% 90.0%
Rural N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Demand-Responsive N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

System On-Time Performance 85.7% 84.1% 85.1% 84.5% 85.0%

NOTES: Overall, on-time performance has remained around 85%. Following the June 2014 service change, three route categories have met their
goal while five categories did not. Each route is continually evaluated to determine if performance below the target is a result of issues that MTS
controls, such as driver performance or scheduling, or situations outside MTS' direct control, such as construction, traffic congestion, and passenger
issues. Trolley on-time performance has been impacted by Blue Line Trolley Renewal construction activities and is expected to increase as the
project wraps up next year. Performance of Urban Frequent bus routes, which by far carry the greatest number of passengers, is heavily impacted by
construction, stop signs and stop lights, and traffic as they typically go through high density corridors.

Sy e TR O MR O S T R e T e Al a4 SRR
Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 1.47 1.42 1.49
MTS Contract Services 0.89 1.13 1.30
MTS Rail 0.04 0.04 0.02

NOTES : MTS Directly-Operated Bus preventable accidents are slightly up for FY14 compared to FY13. MTS Contract Services preventable
accidents are up as MTS' contractor determined accidents were not previously recorded correctly. The contractor responded accordingly and made
changes to their reporting system. MTS Trolley reported three preventable accidents in FY14. Accidents deemed “preventable” by MTS' definition
may not be violations of the California Vehicle Code (CVC). No Trolley accidents in FY 14 have involved a CVC violation by a Trolley operator. For
bus and Trolley operations, continued operator retraining and safety awareness programs are held throughout the year to improve the operator
average for this safety metric.

Mean Distance Between Fallures (N P o A A A L ey |1 U S R T = A NN TP YT NETARI ]
Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014

MTS Directly-Operated Bus 9,706 11,167 12,405

MTS Contract Services 10,908 10,190 9,265

MTS Rail 476,369 325,354 430,189

NOTES : MTS Directly-Operated Bus MDBF is up for FY14 compared to FY13, due to the arrival of new buses. MTS Contract Services MDBF for
FY14 remained consistent with a slight decrease compared to FY13 due to older buses. Trolley MDBF is up, as new cars arrived and increased
MDBF.
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TN Ry

Page 4 of 8
iplaints/Comments/Suggestions Per 100,000 Passengers o ]

% Change | % Change

Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY12-FY13 | FY13-FY14
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 5.7 5.8 4.6 1.8% -20.7%
MTS Contract Svcs. Fixed-Route Bus 8.3 8.7 6.9 4.8% -20.7%
MTS Rail 1.4 3.0 1.7 114.3% -42.7%
General System 0.8 1.0 0.4 25.0% -60.0%

NOTES : Passenger complaints have decreased in FY14. In FY13, MTS saw an increase in the number of passenger complaints, mostly due to the
realignment of the Blue, Orange, and Green Trolley Lines in September 2012. Complaints related to the MTS System, rather than an individual
operator, are tracked separately. These complaints are in addition to any complaints that the operators receive and are related to planning issues,
website problems, and general MTS policies and procedures. For FY 14, the MTS General System received 0.4 complaints per 100,000 passengers.

OBJECTIVE | Develop a Sustainable System
The following measures are used to ensure that transit resources are deployed efficiently and do not exceed budgelary constraints.

[ReVONg BOURS S=oIl s o773 L1700 Rea S Lot A (80 2 o Rl A 4 DN it A3 oL oo O S A S 1 P | e g LR |
Operator FY14 Actual FY14 Budget # Diff % Diff

MTS Directly-Operated Bus 795,085 796,263 (1,178) -0.1%

MTS Contract Svcs. Fixed-Route Bus 900,886 895,405 5,481 0.6%

MTS Rail 504,089 501,008 3.081 0.6%

System 2,200,060 2,192,676 7,384 0.3%

NOTES: Service levels were slightly more than budgeted, largely due to changes made in conjunction with new Rapid service along the 1-15 Corridor.
MTS Directly-Operated Bus hours were slightly under budget and MTS Contract Services Fixed-Route Bus hours were slightly above budget. MTS
Rail hours were slightly above budget in FY14.

[Revenue Miles

w= g

LT T

-

3 L AR O e

kR

Operator FY14 Actual FY14 Budget # Diff % Diff
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 8,694,639 8,694,616 23 0.0%
MTS Contract Svcs. Fixed-Route Bus 9,643,899 9,607,787 36,112 0.4%
MTS Rail 8,616,212 8,488,071 28,141 0.3%
System 26,854,750 26,790,474 64,276 0.2%

NOTES : Service levels were slightly more than budgeted, largely due to changes made in conjunction with new Rapid service along the I-15 Corridor.
MTS Directly-Operated Bus and MTS Contract Services Fixed-Route Bus miles were slightly above budget. MTS Rail miles were slightly above
budget in FY14.

ahilcle Requirement.

= g AT IR T

O T R

scheduled.
# Change
Operator June 2013 June 2014 FY13-FY14
MTS Direclly-Operated Bus 210 213 3
MTS Contract Svcs. Fixed-Route Bus 260 272 12
MTS Rail 96 96 .

e =

This measure shows the maximum number of vehlcles lhal are on the road at any time in order to provide the levels of service that have been

NOTES : Peak vehicles have seen an increase for MTS Bus and MTS Contract Services fixed-route services. These increases are mainly due to the
increased service implemented in FY14 and the transition of routes between MTS Contract Services and MTS Directly-Operated fixed-route services.

Trolley's peak car requirement has remained consistent between FY13 and FY14.

BOTiT B v e |

TWeekday) LSl i) vt T A e IAOe 7

% Change

Operator June 2013 June 2014 FY13-FY14
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 135 14.5 7.4%
MTS Contract Svcs. FR Bus 14.1 13.9 -1.4%
MTS Rail 18.2 18.1 -0.5%

NOTES: In-service speeds have remained relatively flat year-over-year. MTS Directly-Operated Bus speeds are up due to implementation of Rapid
service along the |-15 Corridor, which operates, on managed lanes along Interstate 15.
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The ‘in-service mlles per total mlles ratio is only calcuta:ed ror MTS in- house busoperatlons as contractors are responsnblefor bus and driver
assignments (runcutting) for MTS Contract Services.

% Change

Operator June 2013 June 2014 FY13-FY14
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 85.9% 86.7% 0.8%
MTS Contract Svcs. FR Bus N/A N/A N/A
MTS Rail 99.7% 99.3% -0.4%

NOTES: Ratios have remained practically steady over the two service periods reported for MTS Directly-Operated Bus and MTS Trolley operations.

aiT-: - . T L= W 1 E
As wilh the n:: -age slatlshc. in- servlce hours per total hours can only be calculated for MTS in- house bus operations.

% Change

Operator June 2013 June 2014 FY13-EY14
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 75.9% 75.7% -0.2%
MTS Contract Svcs. FR Bus N/A N/A N/A
MTS Rail 99.4% 97.7% -1.7%

NOTES:: Effi cnency of scheduling has kept the ratio generally consistent over time, with only a minor changes from FY13 to FY14.

A RUSE DLW oM Dkl Bad i "]"‘"Y’ 1L B R -1 (i

Thns metrlc measures the percent of total operating cost recovered through fare revenue. The Transponatlon Development Act (TDA) has a
requirement of 31.9 percent system-wide for fixed-route (excluding regional routes which have a 20 percent requirement).

Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 Fy2014 | % Change | % Change

FY12-FY13 | FY13-FY14
MTS FR (No Premium Exp/Rapid Exp) 36.7% 39.6% 38.2% 2.9% -1.4%
MTS Premium Express 46.0% 46.5% 43.2% 0.5% -3.3%
MTS Rapid Express - - 45.3% - -
MTS Rail 57.2% 55.3% 50.8% -1.9% 4.5%
System Farbox Recovery Ratio 42.8% 42.6% 43.0% -0.2% 0.4%|

For both system-wide and Premium Express services, farebox recovery ratios continue to exceed the Transportation Development Act
(TDA) target.

MTS's goal is to improve route- category average year-over-year. This metric is the amount of publlc subsudy requwed to provnde service for each
unlinked passengers boarding (measured as total operating cost minus fare revenue, divided by total passengers).

% Change | % Change

Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY12.FY13 | FY13-FY14
Premium Express $4.44 $4.73 $5.50 6.5% 16.3%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - 54.86 - -
Express $2.33 $2.51 $2.60 7.7% 3.6%
Light Rail $0.81 $0.97 $50.69 19.8% -28.9%
Silver Line (Light Rail) - - $8.63 - -
Rapid (SuperL.oop. Route 235) - $2.11 2.35 - -
Urban Frequent $1.50 $1.44 $1.58 -4.0% 9.7%
Urban Standard $1.24 $1.39 $1.56 12.1% 12.2%
Circulator $2.23 $2.00 $2.21 -10.3% 10.5%
Rural $12.91 $13.17 £9.79 2.0% -25.7%
Demand-Responsive $32.56 $32.55 $31.62 0.0% -2.9%
System Subsidy Per Pass. $1.37 $1.47 $1.40 7.3% -4.8%
Fixed-Route Bus Subsidy Per Pass. $1.50 $1.51 51.68 0.7% 11.3%

Overall, system-wide subsidy per passenger decreased to $1.40 in FY14. For fixed-route bus service, subsidy per passenger increased from $1.51 to
$1.68 in FY14 (+11.3%). Light rail subsidy per passenger decreased from $0.97 to $0.69 over the last year, which is a -28.9% decrease.
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Title VI Compliance

The indicators below are required by the FTA to be monitored by and reported to the MTS Board. They measure the quantity and quality of service
that MTS provides to minority and non-minority populations, as defined in FTA Circular 4702.1B (2012).The circular defines a minority route as "a
route that has at least 1/3 of its total revenue mileage in a Census block or block group, or traffic analysis zone(s) with a percentage of minority
population that exceeds the percentage of minority population in the transit service area."

§Eongerl 0ad FACIOr DISINTINIE (i o R e e
Headway Vehicle Load
On-Time Standard factor _ Minoity
" (Standard = Route
Category/Mode Performance | (Base Weekday)
No more than Y -Yes Jta
Standard P = Peak o R e
_ 20% of trips N - No . ie
B = Base

exceed factor)

Premium Express

Rapid Express

20 20P/30B

Y

50 15P/30P/608B - N

60" 15P/30P - Y
110* 20 - Y
150 15P/30P/60B - N
210" 15 - Y
870 90 - N
950" 30 - Y
960 20 - Y

Light Rail

Rnoutes

Blue 75P/15B =

Y

Orange 15 - Y
Green 15 - N
Silver Line 30 N

Rapid

I

201 10P/15B .

Y
202 10P/15B - Y
204 10P/16B - Y
235" 15P/30B - N
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Urban Frequent

Goal

Y

2 - Y
3 - Y
5 - Y
6 - Y
7 - Y
8 - N
9 - N
10 - Y
11 - Y
13 - Y
15 10P/15B - Y
30 15P/30B - N
41 15 - Y
44 15 - Y
120 15 - Y
701 15 - Y
709 15 - Y
712 15 - Y
901 15P/30B - Y
906/907 15 - Y
929 12P/158B - Y
932 15 - Y
933/934 15 - Y
955 16 - Y
961 15 - Y
992 N

Urban Standard

'

Y

14 60 - N
27 30 - N
28 30 - N

31 30 - Y
35 15P/308B - N
105 30 - N
115 30 - N
703 60 - Y
704 30 - Y
705 30 - Y
707 60 - Y
815 30 - Y
816 30 - Y
832 30 - N
833 30 - Y
834 30 - N
844/845* 30 - N
848 30 - N
854 30 - N
855 30 - Y
856 30 - Y
864 30 - N
871/872 30 - Y
874/875 30 - Y
904 30 - N
905 30 - Y
916/917 30P/60B - Y
921 30 - Y
923 30 - N
928 30 - Y
936 30 - Y
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Urban Standard

Routes

944/945% - Y/N (Note 2)
962/963 30 - Y
967 60 - Y
Circulator
18 - N
25 - Y
83 - N
84 - N
88 - N
851 - Y
964 30P/60B - Y
965 30 - Y
972 No missed trips. ~30 - Y
973 No missed trips. ~30 - Y
978 No missed trips. ~30 - Y
979 No missed trips. ~30 - Y

Note 1: (*) Route discontinued in FY14. (*) New route in FY14.

Note 2: Route 944 is a minority route and Route 945 is a non-minority route.

Note 3: Load standard is 1.0 for routes operated with a minibus. Routes 972, 973, 978, are 979 are timed to the COASTER schedule and wait for
passengers to transfer from the selected COASTER trips.

Note 4: Rural and Demand Responsive services have no specific goals for on-time performance, headway, or load standard.

[ServicoAvalIabIlity = T | 1 SR T e e - e ) e e TR N e T B
> 80% of residents or jobs within % mile of a bus stop or rail station in urban areas.

> 100% of suburban residences within 5 miles of a bus stop or rail station.
> One return trip at least 2 days/week to destinations from rural villages

03

% of residents | o ¢ jone within
80% of residents or jobs within % Tméximl_i 1/2 mile of a bus
mile of a bus stop or rail station in 2 r:lls npl“ |stop or rail station
urban area 3 rﬁamn'aumu =y In urban areas
98.1% 98.2%

% of suburban residents within 5

o . .
100% of suburban residences within miles of a bus stop or rail station

5 miles of a bus stop or rail station.

100.0%

Available Service

One return trip at least 2 days/week to |

destinations from rural villages
(Lakeside and Alpine).

Route 848 serves Lakeside seven
days a week and Route 864 serves
Alpine seven days a week.

See attached map entitled ‘Metropolitan Transit System Area of Jurisdiction'.
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FY 2014 ANNUAL ROUTE STATISTICS

Att. A, Al 45, 11/20/14

Updated: 11/14/2014
R Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
oute p
assengers Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger
Blue Line 15,094,878 47,268 2494 (9% 0.28 78.9% [$ 1.32
Orange Line 10,896,289 33,505 216.3 | § 1.16 474% | $ 2.20
Green Line 13,673,926 39,966 21711 % 0.78 57.1% | $ 1.83
Silver Line 29,540 181 406 | $ 8.63 11.5% | $ 9.76
1 1,515,014 4,981 3161|% 2.50 29.7% | $ 3.56
2 1,423,635 4,583 3811% 1.99 35.0% | $ 3.05
3 1,822,383 6,265 394 1% 0.19 836% | $ 1.156
4 873,817 2,824 376 | 9% 2.06 333% | $ 3.09
5 913,424 3,091 489 | % 1.36 427% | $ 2.38
6 606,400 1,940 3311% 2.48 296% | $ 3.52
7 3,771,716 11,618 46.7 (9% 1.43 426% | $ 2.49
8 603,070 1,621 315|9% 2.62 29.1% | $ 3.69
9 536,493 1,565 3121% 2.67 28.4% | $ 3.73
10 1,554,363 5,101 403 |9 1.83 368% | $ 2.89
11 2,574,222 8,736 33.8|% 2.39 30.7% | $ 3.45
13 2,183,110 7,126 465 |9 1.45 419% | $ 2.50
14 89,619 352 12.0] % 8.40 10.9% | § 9.43
15 1,548,803 4,986 3659 212 33.4% | $ 3.19
18 47,009 186 16.3 % 2.09 328% | $ 3.1
20 1,233,204 4,141 303|9% 2.79 27.5% | $ 3.84
25 110,738 436 173 $ 1.91 348% | $ 2.93
27 255,527 945 17719 2.10 322% | $ 3.10
28 420,822 1,386 329|% 0.30 76.6% | $ 1.27
30 2,175,394 6,851 3099 2.63 30.1% | $ 3.77
31 112,438 441 239 |$% 3.80 22.0% | $ 4.87
35 611,302 1,859 3139 0.19 84.3% | $ 1.18
41 1,391,958 4,633 385|% 1.92 36.4% | $ 3.02
44 1,344,856 4,513 3571% 2.18 331% | $ 3.26
50 248,096 981 221 |$% 4.23 19.7% | $ 5.26
60° 5,450 339 281 % 3.10 250% | $ 4.14
83 43,097 170 1321 $ 2.81 266% | $ 3.83
84 34,587 137 11.5(§% 3.39 23.2% | $ 4.41
88 110,873 377 255\ % 3.31 246% | $ 4.39
105 399,745 1,397 264 |93 3.34 24.4% | $ 4.42
110" 2,826 177 230 % 4.06 19.6% [ $ 5.05
115 365,861 1,345 242 | % 2.22 31.5% | $ 3.24
120 953,698 3,085 282 % 3.09 251% | $ 4.13
150 746,389 2,946 426 |9 1.69 381% | $ 2.73
201 787,028 2,532 426 9% 1.59 417% | $ 2.72
202 675,577 2,110 38.1|% 1.92 37.0% | $ 3.05
204 152,767 466 1591 % 6.21 152% | $ 7.32
210" 71,364 302 277 $ 3.20 23.9% | $ 4.20
235* 43,084 2,224 11.41$% 9.29 9.3% | $ 10.24
2807 7,089 442 204 % 7.73 348% | $ 11.86
2907 10,597 662 308(% 2.96 57.3% | $ 6.92
701 588,348 2,224 238 (% 1.74 327% | $ 2.58
703 40,465 - 275(% 1.90 346% | $ 2.91
704 503,788 1,823 247 % 1.86 318% | $ 2.73
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Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
Route

Passengers | Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger
705 308,324 1,110 269 (% 1.16 424% | $ 2.02
707 62,372 245 229 (% 2.36 272% | $ 3.24
709 1,045,506 3,858 392 |% 0.90 487% | $ 1.76
712 856,355 3,097 305(% 1.15 42.9% [ $ 2.02
810 146,432 616 272 | % 4.20 502% | $ 8.43
815 359,232 1,077 318 |9% 0.42 713% | $ 1.45
816 348,447 1,378 331 (% 0.89 541% | $ 1.94
820 46,634 197 1731 % 7.46 35.0% | $ 11.48
832 60,286 202 16.2 | $ 2.03 336% | % 3.05
833 134,734 452 1971 9% 1.55 39.7% | $ 2.57
834 19,061 75 16.2 | $ 4.60 18.3% | $ 5.63
844.845* 167,008 674 1291 $ 2.89 26.2% | $ 3.92
848 442,090 1,442 306 |9 1.08 496% | $ 214
850 33,197 136 213 9% 5.90 40.8% | $ 9.96
851 94,583 373 205 9% 1.45 41.4% | $ 2.47
854 191,523 730 2619 1.62 38.1% | 3 2.62
855 290,389 1,009 318|9% 0.88 53.9% | $ 1.90
856 719,975 2,598 302|% 1.51 40.4% [ $ 2.54
860 36,282 154 175 % 8.18 334% | $ 12.28
864 457,090 1,471 192 (% 3.26 24.9% | $ 4.35
870 14,580 57 115($% 2.3 471% | $ 4.37
872 121,782 463 2199 1.67 382% [$ 2.69
874.875 510,711 1,747 2911 % 1.27 448% | $ 2.30
880 23,883 94 148 (3 5.01 46.8% | $ 9.42
888 2,755 13 46($ 33.39 39% |$ 3475
891 1,461 14 40(% 41.10 29% |$ 4233
892 1,769 17 51189 31.83 40% [$ 3314
894 66,251 262 156 | $ 7.53 146% | $ 8.81
901 1,069,771 3,419 259 | % 2.19 313% | $ 3.19
904 94,312 260 185 % 1.28 202% | $ 1.61
905 642,499 2,241 36493 1.14 50.8% | $ 2.32
906.907 1,512,377 4,911 3841% 0.08 92.5% | $ 1.08
917 255,363 909 222 | % 2.04 32.0% | $ 2.99
921 398,098 1,490 266 | $ 1.29 448% | $ 2.34
923 265,030 1,019 186 | $ 1.69 378% [ $ 2.71
928 408,829 1,479 29.3|% 1.38 41.5% | $ 2.36
929 2,516,163 8,056 364 |9 0.65 60.0% [ $ 1.62
932 1,291,346 4,379 31.3($ 0.91 514% | $ 1.88
934 1,806,978 6,056 322(% 1.28 43.4% | $ 2.25
936 656,485 1,959 314 |9% 0.76 57.0% | $ 1.76
944.945" 11,539 643 9.0($ 4.59 18.5% | $ 5.63
9507 39,881 187 68.1|% 0.90 574% | $ 2.1
955 1,584,508 5,191 37119 0.54 64.1% | $ 1.50
960" 96,004 397 2629 3.21 232% [ $ 4.18
961 635,939 2,180 307 19% 1.01 48.9% | $ 1.99
962.963 697,087 2,493 28119 0.97 50.6% | $ 1.97
964 89,491 353 15.0( § 2.36 302% | $ 3.38
965 68,996 247 147 ($ 242 29.7% | $ 3.45
967 64,284 238 145|$ 2.73 26.4% | $ 3.7
968 65,281 248 146 | $ 3.19 23.5% | $ 4.17
992 445,159 1,313 2271|% 1.03 51.3% | $ 2.12
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Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
Route

Passengers | Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger

MTS ACCESS 417,717 1,500 21(9% 31.62 13.0% | $ 36.32
SVCC 125,905 504 211 $% 1.36 Note 11 | $ 2.38

SERVICE CATEGORY Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
Passengers | Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger

Premium Express 286,428 1,197 215|$% 5.50 432% | $ 9.68
Rapid Express 17,666 1,104 256 (9% 4.86 45.3% | $ 8.89
Express 2,457,794 9,022 31619 2.60 288% | $ 3.65

Light Rail 39,694,633 120,920 2273 $ 0.70 59.8% | $ 1.74

Rapid 1,658,456 5294 334|595 2.35 324% | $ 3.47

Urban Frequent 38,270,989 125,361 355|% 1.58 394% | $ 2.60
Urban Standard 11,425,215 39,436 266 |$ 1.56 394% | $ 2.57
Circulator 725,279 2,782 176 [ $ 2.21 318% | $ 3.24

Rural 72,236 306 13.0 | $ 9.79 11.6% | $ 11.07
Demand-Responsive 417,717 1,500 2119% 31.62 13.0% | $  36.32

MODE Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per

Passengers | Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger |

Light Rail 39,694,633 120,920 2273 % 0.70 59.8% | $ 1.74

Fixed Route Bus 54,914,063 184,503 3249 1.68 383% | § 2.73
Demand-Responsive 417,717 1,500 211 8 31.62 13.0% [ $ 36.32
Rural 72,236 306 13.0( $ 9.79 116% [ $  11.07

System Totals | 95,026,413 | 306,923 | 459 | $ 1.40 | 43.0%| $  2.46 |

Note 1: (*) Route discontinued in FY14. (*) New route in FY14.

Note 2: After federal JARC grant, Route 905 subsidy/passenger is $0.77.
Note 3: After federal JARC grant, Route 929 subsidy/passenger is $0.57.
Note 4: After federal JARC grant, Route 932 subsidy/passenger is $0.76.
Note 5: After federal JARC grant, Route 955 subsidy/passenger is $0.41.
Note 6: After federal JARC grant, Route 960 subsidy/passenger is $1.61.
Note 7: After federal JARC grant, Route 967 subsidy/passenger is $1.96. Route 968 subsidy/passenger is $2.44

Note 8: City of Coronado subsidized fares for summer service on Route 904. Subsidy/passenger after payment is $1.14.
Note 9: After Rural 5311 grant, Routes 888, 891, 892, and 894 subsidy/passenger is $5.66.
Note 10: After Rural 5311 grant, Route 864 subsidy/passenger is $2.86.
Note 11: SVCC fares and one-half of the subsidy are paid for by NCTD resulting in a 72% farebox recovery.

Note 12: Routes 201, 202, 204 & 235, SANDAG reimburses MTS for the net operating cost (operating cost less fare revenue) using TransNet funds.
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The following measures of productivity and service quality are used to ensure that services are focused on providing competitive and attractive
transportation that meets our customers' needs.

Total Passengers P SO AR AT YIRS )

% %
# Change # Change
Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 Change | Change
FY12- FY413- FY12- FY13-
: FY13 FY14 FY13 FY14

Premium Express 310,455 308,912 286,428 (1.543) (22,484) -0.5% -7.3%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - 17,666 - 17,666 - -
Express 2,329,041 2,366,370 2,457,794 37,329 91,424 1.6% 3.9%
Light Rail 32.674.616 29,699,366 39,665,093 | (2.,975.250) 9,965,727 -9.1% 33.6%
Silver Line (Light Rail) - - 29,540 - - - -
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) - 1,657,568 1,658,456 - 100,888 - 6.5%
Urban Frequent 38,311,741 38,457,861 38,270,989 146,120 (186,872) 0.4% -0.5%
Urban Standard 13,647,404 11,984,646 11,425215 | (1.662,758) (559,431)] -12.2% -4.7%
Circulator 841,764 773,698 725.279 (68.066) (48,419) -8.1% -6.3%
Rural 41,819 45,180 72,236 3,361 27,056 8.0% 59.9%
Demand-Responsive 355.300 379,415 417,717 24,115 38,302 6.8% 10.1%
System Total Passengers 88,512,140 85,573,016 95,026,413 | (2,939,124) 9,453,397 -3.3% 11.0%
Fixed-Route Bus Ridership 55,482,224 55,494,235 54,914,063 12,011 (580,172) 0.0% -1.0%

NOTES:: Overall, MTS system-wide ridership increased +11%, mainly due to increased Trolley ridership. This is primarily attributed to Automatic
Passenger Counters (APCs) now installed on most Trolley cars, which improved accuracy and provide a clearer picture of ridership trends. The
previous estimation methodology relied on the number of one-way tickets sotd, which dropped significantly when Day Passes replaced transfers. In
addition, new low-fioor Trolley cars, reconfigured routes, an improved economy, additional service, and gas prices of more than $4 per gallon also
contributed to the ridership gains. Fixed-route bus ridership decreased slightly, partially due to construction delays on major routes. Ridership
decreases in some categories, such as Premium Express and Circulator, reflect routes changing to a different route category.
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% %
# Change # Change Change | Change

Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 EY12- EY13. FY12. FY13-

FY13 FY14 FY13 FY14
Premium Express 1,221 1,214 1,197 (7) (17) -0.6% -1.4%

Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - 1,104 i - = =
Express 8.422 8,631 9,022 209 391 2.5% 4.5%
Light Rail 97,401 87,955 120,739 (9,446) 32,784 -9.7% 37.3%

Silver Line (Light Rail) - - 181 - - - -
Rapid (SuperLoop. Route 235) - 4,862 5,204 - 432 - 8.9%
Urban Frequent 125,394 125,383 125,361 (11) (22) 0.0% 0.0%
Urban Standard 46,467 41,228 39,438 (5,239) (1.792)| -11.3% -4.3%
Circulator 3,582 2,966 2,782 (616) (184)| -17.2% -6.2%
Rural 265 227 306 (38) 79 -14.3% 34.8%
Demand-Responsive 1.302 1,367 1.500 65 133 5.0% 9.7%
System Avg. Weekday Pass. 284,054 273,833 306,922 (10,221) 33,089 -3.6% 12.1%
Fixed-Route Bus Avg. Weekday Pass. 185,351 184,511 184 503 (840) (8) -0.5% 0.0%

NOTES: The average weekday passenger statistics show how many passengers ride MTS on a typical weekday. For FY14, there is a +12.1%
increase in system-wide average weekday passengers (33,089 passengers per average weekday). Most of this is a result of an increase of +32,784
Trolley passengers per average weekday (+37.3%). Fixed-route bus average weekday passengers remained almost unchanged. The greatest fixed-
route percentage decrease in average weekday passengers was the Circulator category, with a -6.2% decrease in average weekday passengers
(-184 passengers per average weekday), mainly the result of routes changing categories to Urban Standard.
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Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 Fraons | Thanae 2
Premium Express 21.9 213 215 -2.7% 0.9%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) = - 25.6 - -
Express 339 32.2 31.6 -5.0% -1.9%
Light Rail 187.7 160.6 228.1 -14.4% 42.0%
Silver Line (Light Rail) - - 40.6 - -
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) = 34.3 334 - -2.6%
Urban Frequent 37.5 37.0 355 -1.3% -4.1%
Urban Standard 29.6 28.0 26.6 -5.4% -5.0%
Circulator 16.5 15.4 17.8 -6.7% 14.3%
Rural 9.4 9.4 13.0 0.0% 38.3%
Demand-Responsive 2.1 2.1 2.1 0.0% 0.0%
System Riders Per Rev. Hour 45.0 42.3 45.9 -6.0% 8.5%
Fixed-Route Bus Riders Per Rev. Hr. 34.3 33.5 32.4 -2.3% -3.3%

NOTES: MTS operated 4% more revenue hours in FY14 than in FY13. The ‘passengers per revenue hour’ metric shows how the revenue hours (in-
service hours plus layover hours) that were added or removed relate to ridership increases or decreases. Increasing riders per revenue hour would
indicate that the system is more efficient, for example, carrying more passengers with the same number of buses. For FY14, all MTS services carried
45.9 passengers per revenue hour, an increase of +8.5% (+3.6 riders per revenue hour). The change in riders per revenue hour figure on MTS’ fixed-

route bus services was a moderate decrease of -3.3% (1.1 riders per revenue hour). For FY14, Trolley passengers per revenue hour increased
+42.0% to 228.1 passengers per revenue hour, an increase of +67.5 riders per revenue hour.

The ‘passengers per in-service hour’ measure is related to the above ‘passengers per revenue hour,’ but shows how many passengers are carried
while the vehicle is in-service picking up passengers, excluding ayover time. Analyzing this figure helps MTS to understand how effective it is at
providing the right level of service, instead of how effective MTS is at grouping trips and breaks together for a vehicle to operate (revenue hours).

0, 0,
Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 Fr2ome | %Change | % Shanee
Premium Express 24.0 23.5 24.8 -2.1% 5.5%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - 29.4 - -
Express 41.0 40.4 38.1 -1.5% -3.2%
Light Rail 222.4 209.2 274.4 -5.9% 31.2%
Silver Line (Light Rail) - - 63.7 - -
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) - 46.8 45.6 - -2.6%
Urban Frequent 45.7 45.1 44.5 -1.3% -1.3%
Urban Standard 39.5 37.9 36.2 -4.1% -4.5%
Circulator 25.7 22.3 27.5 -13.2% 23.3%
Rural 10.1 8.5 9.6 -15.8% 13.1%
Demand-Responsive N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
System Riders/In-Svc. Hour 60.3 56.9 62.4 -5.6% 9.7%
Fixed-Route Bus Riders Per In-Svc. Hr. 42.7 42.0 41.2 -1.6% -1.9%

NOTES: Compared to FY13, MTS' system-wide passengers per in-service hour increased +5.5 to 62.4 passengers per in-service hour (+9.7%) in
FY14. For FY 14, fixed-route bus passengers per in-service hour experienced a small -1.9% decrease to 41.2 passengers per in-service hour.
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On-time performance is defined as departing within 5 minutes of the scheduled time. It is measured by service change period in order to show the
results of scheduling changes. MTS’ goal for on-time performance is 85% for Urban Frequent bus routes, and 90% for Trolley and all other bus route

categories.

. Service Change
Route Categories Jan. 2013 Jun. 2013 Sept, 2013 | Jan. 2014 | Jun.2014 | COAL

Premium Express 98.4% 98.8% 91.9% 99.2% - 90.0%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) < - - - 85.7% 90.0%
Express 81.0% 81.8% 80.0% 80.2% 83.3% 90.0%
Light Rail 94.0% 95.2% 90.7% 89.0% 88.0% 90.0%
Silver Line (Light Rail) 90.9% 86.8% 88.8% 88.6% 91.0% 90.0%
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) 91.2% 90.0% 84.0% 88.6% 90.8% 85.0%
Urban Frequent 83.6% 79.6% 83.4% 82.1% 81.2% 85.0%
Urban Standard 84.9% 83.1% 86.0% 83.1% 86.1% 90.0%
Circulator 87.4% 91.6% 86.6% 92.4% 90.5% 90.0%
Rural N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A ,, S
Demand-Responsive N/A N/A N/A N/A NA|

System On-Time Performance 85.7% 84.1% 85.1% 84.5% 85.0%|

NOTES : Overall, on-time performance remained around 85%. Following the June 2014 service change, three route categories have met their goal
while five categories did not. Each route is continually evaluated to determine if performance below the target is a resuit of issues that MTS controls,
such as driver performance or scheduling, or situations outside MTS' direct control, such as construction, traffic congestion, and passenger issues.
Trolley on-time performance has been impacted by Blue Line Trolley Renewal construction activities and is expected to increase as the project wraps
up next year. Performance of Urban Frequent bus routes, which by far carry the greatest number of passengers, is heavily impacted by construction,
stop signs and stop lights, and traffic as they typically go through high density corridors.

— '—___;T_‘%—_—,—:._. et + % e e J
Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 1.47 1.42 1.49
MTS Contract Services 0.89 1.13 1.30
MTS Rail 0.04 0.04 0.02

NOTES: MTS Directly-Operated Bus preventable accidents were slightly up for FY14 compared to FY13. MTS Contract Services preventable
accidents are up as MTS' contractor determined that accidents were not previously recorded correctly. The contractor responded accordingly and
made changes to their reporting system. MTS Trolley reported three preventable accidents in FY14. Accidents deemed "preventable” by MTS'
definition may not be violations of the California Vehicle Code (CVC). No Trolley accidents in FY14 have involved a CVC violation by a Trolley
operator. For bus and Trolley operations, continued operator retraining and safety awareness programs are held throughout the year to improve the
operator average for this safety metric.
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Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 9,706 11,167 12,405
MTS Contract Services 10,908 10.190 9,265
MTS Rail 476,369 325,354 430,189

NOTES: MTS Directly-Operated Bus MDBF is up for FY14 compared to FY13, due to the arrival of new buses. MTS Contract Services MDBF for
FY14 showed a slight decrease compared to FY13 due to fleet age. Trolley MDBF is up, as new cars arrived and were placed into service.
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[Complaints/Comments/Suggestions Per 100,000 Passengers ]
% Change | % Change
Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY12-FY13 | FY13-FY14
MTS Direclly-Operated Bus 5.7 5.8 4.6 1.8% -20.7%
MTS Contract Svcs. Fixed-Route Bus 8.3 8.7 6.9 4.8% -20.7%
MTS Rail 1.4 3.0 1.7 114.3% -42.7%
General System 0.8 1.0 0.4 25.0% -60.0%

NOTES: Passenger complaints decreased in FY14. In FY13, MTS saw an increase in the number of passenger complaints, mostly due to the
realignment of the Blue, Orange, and Green Trolley Lines in September 2012. Complaints related to the MTS System, rather than an individual
operator, are tracked separately. These complaints are in addition to any complaints that the operators receive and are related to planning issues,
website problems, and general MTS policies and procedures. For FY14, the MTS General System received 0.4 complaints per 100,000 passengers.

OBJECTIVE | Develop a Sustainable System
The following measures are used to ensure that transit resources are deployed efficiently and do not exceed budgetary constraints.
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Operator FY14 Actual FY14 Budget # Diff % Diff

MTS Directly-Operated Bus 795,085 796,263 (1,178) -0.1%

MTS Contract Svcs. Fixed-Route Bus 900,886 895,405 5.481 0.6%

MTS Rail 504.089 501,008 3.081 0.6%

System 2,200,060 2,192,676 7,384 0.3%

NOTES : Service levels were slightly more than budgeted, largely due to changes made in conjunction with new Rapid service along the 1-15 Corridor.
MTS Directly-Operated Bus hours were slightly under budget and MTS Contract Services Fixed-Route Bus hours were slightly above budget. MTS
Rail hours were also slightly above budget in FY14.
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Operator FY14 Actual FY14 Budget # Diff % Diff

MTS Directly-Operated Bus 8,694,639 8,694,616 23 0.0%

MTS Contract Svcs. Fixed-Route Bus 9,643,899 9,607,787 36.112 0.4%

MTS Rail 8,516,212 8,488,071 28,141 0.3%

System 26,854,750 26,790,474 64,276 0.2%

NOTES : Service levels were slightly more than budgeted, largely due to changes made in conjunction with new Rapid service along the I-15 Corridor.
MTS Directly-Operated Bus and MTS Contract Services Fixed-Route Bus miles were slightly above budget. MTS Rail miles were slightly above
budget in FY14.

jokday Poak-Vehicle Requirement T A R S Py e e T L T e T
This measure shows the maximum number of vehicles that are on the road at any time in order to provide the levels of service that have been
scheduled.

# Change

Operator June 2013 June 2014 FY13-FY14
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 210 213 3
MTS Contract Svcs. Fixed-Route Bus 260 272 12
MTS Rail 96 96 -

NOTES : Peak vehicles have seen an increase for MTS Bus and MTS Contract Services fixed-route services. These increases are mainly due to the
increased service implemented in FY14 and the transition of routes between MTS Contract Services and MTS Directly-Operated fixed-route services.
ed consistent between FY13 and FY14.
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% Change

Operator June 2013 June 2014 FY13-FY14
MTS Direclly-Operated Bus 13.5 14.5 7.4%
MTS Contract Svcs. FR Bus 14.1 13.9 -1.4%
MTS Rail 18.2 18.1 -0.5%

NOTES: In-service speeds have remained relatively flat year-over-year. MTS Direclly-Operated Bus speeds are up due to implementation of Rapid
service along the I-15 Corridor, which operates on managed lanes along Interstate 15.
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In-Service/TotalMiles =

The ‘in-service miles per total miles' ratio is only only calculated for MTS in-house bus operations, as contractors are responsible for bus and driver
assignments (runcutting) for MTS Contract Services.

0,
Operator June 2013 June 2014 F/‘\’(1C::I?=r;91i
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 85.9% 86.7% 0.8%
MTS Contract Svcs. FR Bus N/A N/A N/A
MTS Rail 99.7% 99.3% -0.4%

NOTES : Ratios have remained practically steady over the two service periods reported for MTS Directly-Operated Bus and MTS Trolley operations.

In-Service/Total Hours
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% Change

Operator June 2013 June 2014 FY13-FY14
MTS Directly-Operated Bus 75.9% 75.7% -0.2%
MTS Contract Svcs. FR Bus N/A N/A N/A
MTS Rail 99.4% 97.7% -1.7%

As with the mileage statistic, 'in-service hcurs per total hours are only calculated for MTS in-house bus opera!zons

NOTES: Eﬂ'cuency of scheduling has kept the ratio generally consistent over time, with only a minor changes from FY13 to FY14.
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This metric measures the percent of total operating cost recovered through fare revenue. The Transponatuon Development Act (TDA) has a
requirement of 31.9 percent system-wide for fixed-route (excluding regional routes which have a 20 percent requirement).

Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 % Change | % Change

FY12-FY13 | FY13-FY14
MTS FR (No Premium Exp/Rapid Exp) 36.7% 39.6% 38.2% 2.9% -1.4%
MTS Premium Express 46.0% 46.5% 43.2% 0.5% -3.3%
MTS Rapid Express - - 45.3% = -
MTS Rail 57.2% 55.3% 59.8% -1.9% 4.5%
System Farbox Recovery Ratio 42.8% 42.6% 43.0%| -0.2% 0.4%

For both system-wide and Premium/Rapid Express services, farebox recovery ratios continue to exceed the Transportation Development Act (TDA)
target.
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This metric is the amount of public subsidy required to provnde service for each unlinked passengers boarding (measured as total operating cost

minus fare revenue, divided by total passengers). MTS's goal is to improve route-category average year-over-year.

% Change | % Change

Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY12-FY13 | FY13-FY14
Premium Express $4.44 $4.73 $5.50 6.5% 16.3%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - $4.86 - -
Express $2.33 $2.51 $2.60 7.7% 3.6%
Light Rail $0.81 $0.97 $0.69 19.8% -28.9%
Silver Line {Light Rail) - ] $8.63 - <
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) - $2.11 $2.35 - -
Urban Frequent $1.50 $1.44 $1.58 -4.0% 9.7%
Urban Standard $1.24 $1.39 $1.56 12.1% 12.2%
Circulator $2.23 $2.00 $2.21 -10.3% 10.5%
Rural $12.91 $13.17 $0.79 2.0% -25.7%
Demand-Responsive $32.56 $32.55 $31.62 0.0% -2.9%
System Subsidy Per Pass. $1.37 $1.47 51.40 7.3% -4.8%
Fixed-Route Bus Subsidy Per Pass. $1.50 $1.51 31.68 0.7% 11.3%

Overall, system-wide subsidy per passenger decreased to $1.40 in FY14. For fixed-route bus service, subsidy per passenger increased from $1.51 to
$1.68 in FY14 (+11.3%). Light rail subsidy per passenger decreased from $0.97 to $0.69 over the last year, which is a -28.9% decrease.
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Title VI Compliance

The indicators below are required by the FTA to be monitored by and reported to the MTS Board. They measure the quantity and quality of service
that MTS provides to minority and non-minority populations, as defined in FTA Circular 4702.1B (2012).The circular defines a minority route as "a
route that has at least 1/3 of its total revenue mileage in a Census block or block group, or traffic analysis zone(s) with a percentage of minority
population that exceeds the percentage of minority population in the transit service area.”
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Headway Vehicle Load
" Factor Minorit;
On-Time Standard y
" (Standard = Route
Category/Mode Performance | (Base Weekday)
_ No more than Y - Yes
Standard P = Peak ‘, "
B 20% of trips N -No
B = Base
exceed factor)

Premium Express

15P /30 B

Y

50 87% 15P/30P/60B - N
60* 80% 15P/30P - Y
1104 95% 20 - Y
150 83% 15P/30P/60B - N
210* 93% 15 - Y
870 37% 90 - N
950" 100% 30 - Y
960 85% 20 - Y

Light Rail
Goal
Routes
Blue
Orange
Green
Silver Line 89% 30 -

1=l

10P /158 .

201 89% Y
202 86% 10P/15B - Y
204 86% 10P/15B - Y
235" 98% 15P/30B - N
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Urban Frequent
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901
906/907
929
932
933/934
955
961

Urban Standard

834
844/845"
848
854
855
856
864
871/872
874/875
904
905
916/917
921
923
928
936
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Urban Standard

Routes!

944/945*

962/963
967

Clrculator

979

San Diego Metropolitan Transit System

POLICY 42 PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT
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72%

85%

96%

88%

91%

78%

91%
No missed trips.
No missed trips.
No missed trips.

No missed trips.

<X << << <X ZZZ<Z

Note 1: (*) Route discontinued in FY14. (*) New route in FY14.

Note 2: Route 944 is a minority route and Route 945 is a non-minority route.
Note 3: Load standard is 1.0 for routes operated with a minibus. Routes 972, 973, 978, are 979 are timed to the COASTER schedule and wait for
passengers to transfer from the selected COASTER trips.

Att. A, Al 45, 11/20/14

Note 4: Rural and Demand Responsive services have no specific goals for on-time performance, headway, or load standard.
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> 80% of residents or JObS within % mile of a bus stop or rail station in urban areas.

> 100% of suburban residences within 5 miles of a bus stop or rail station.
> One return trip at least 2 days/week to destinations from rural villages

80% of residents or jobs within %;
mile of a bus stop or rail station in
urban area

% of resldants | o, ;¢ 005 within
within 1/2 mile
1/2 mile of a bus
ofabusstopor|_, = 7
stop or rall station
rail station in I\ tifban areas
urban areas ;
98.1% 98.2%

100% of suburban residences within
5 miles of a bus stop or rail station.

% of suburban residents within 5
miles of a bus stop or rail station

100.0%

One return trip at least 2 days/week to
destinations from rural villages
(Lakeside and Alpine).

 Available Service

Route 848 serves Lakeside seven
days a week and Route 864 serves
Alpine seven days a week.

See attached map entitled ‘Metropolitan Transit System Area of Jurisdiction'.
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A Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
oute
Passengers Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger
Blue Line 15,094,878 47,268 249.4 | § 0.28 78.9% | $ 1.32
Orange Line 10,896,289 33,505 216.3 | $ 1.16 47.4% | § 2.20
Green Line 13,673,926 39,966 2171 | % 0.78 571% | $ 1.83
Silver Line 29,540 181 406 | $ 8.63 11.5% | § 9.76
1 1,515,014 4,981 316 |9$ 2.50 29.7% | $ 3.56
2 1,423,635 4,583 3819 1.99 35.0% | $ 3.05
3 1,822,383 6,265 3904 |% 0.19 83.6% | $ 1.15
4 873,817 2,824 376 (% 2.06 33.3% | $ 3.09
5 913,424 3,091 489 | % 1.36 427% | $ 2.38
6 606,400 1,940 331§ 2.48 29.6% | $ 3.52
7 3,771,716 11,618 46.7 | $ 1.43 426% | $ 2.49
8 603,070 1,621 315|% 2.62 29.1% | $ 3.69
9 536,493 1,565 31.2|% 2.67 28.4% | § 3.73
10 1,554,363 5,101 40.3|% 1.83 36.8% | $ 2.89
11 2,674,222 8,736 338 |% 2.39 30.7% | $ 3.45
13 2,183,110 7,126 465 $ 1.45 41.9% | $ 2.50
14 89,619 352 12.0 | $ 8.40 10.9% | $ 9.43
15 1,548,803 4,986 365 % 212 33.4% | § 3.19
18 47,009 186 163 $ 2.09 32.8% | $ 3.11
20 1,233,204 4,141 303 (9% 2.79 27.5% | $ 3.84
25 110,738 436 173 1% 1.91 34.8% | $ 2.93
27 255,527 945 1771 $ 210 32.2% | $ 3.10
28 420,822 1,386 329|% 0.30 76.6% | $ 1.27
30 2,175,394 6,851 309 | % 2.63 301% | $ 3.77
31 112,438 441 23.9 | $ 3.80 22.0% | $ 4.87
35 611,302 1,859 31.3|$% 0.19 84.3% | $ 1.18
41 1,391,958 4,633 385(% 1.92 36.4% | $ 3.02
44 1,344,856 4,513 35719% 2.18 33.1% | $ 3.26
50 248,096 981 2211 % 4.23 19.7% | $ 5.26
60" 5,450 339 28.1| % 3.10 25.0% | $ 4.14
83 43,097 170 132§ 2.81 26.6% | $ 3.83
84 34,587 137 115|9% 3.39 23.2% | $ 4.41
88 110,873 377 255 | % 3.31 24.6% | $ 4.39
105 399,745 1,397 264 | % 3.34 24.4% | $ 4.42
1107 2,826 177 23.0| % 4.06 19.6% | $ 5.05
115 365,861 1,345 24218 2.22 31.5% | § 3.24
120 953,698 3,065 28.2|% 3.09 251% | § 4.13
150 746,389 2,946 426 | $ 1.69 38.1% | $ 2.73
201 787,028 2,532 426 % 1.59 41.7% | $ 2.72
202 675,577 2,110 38.1|$% 1.92 37.0% | $ 3.05
204 152,767 466 159 $ 6.21 152% | $ 7.32
210" 71,364 302 27.7 | % 3.20 23.9% | $ 4.20
235" 43,084 2,224 11.4 | $ 9.29 9.3% | $ 10.24
2807 7,069 442 204 % 7.73 34.8% [ $ 11.86
290" 10,597 662 3089 2.96 573% | $ 6.92
701 588,348 2,224 238 | % 1.74 32.7% | $§ 2.58
703 40,465 - 275 $ 1.90 34.6% | $ 2.91
704 503,788 1,823 247 | $ 1.86 318% | $ 2.73
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REVISED Att. A, Al 45, 11/20/14
R Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
oute
Passengers | Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger
705 308,324 1,110 269 | $ 1.16 42.4% | $ 2.02
707 62,372 245 229 | % 2.36 272% | $ 3.24
709 1,045,506 3,858 39.2 1% 0.90 48.7% | $ 1.76
712 856,355 3,097 305|8% 1.15 42.9% | $ 2.02
810 146,432 616 27.2| % 4.20 50.2% | § 8.43
815 359,232 1,077 3181% 0.42 71.3% | $ 1.45
816 348,447 1,378 33.119% 0.89 541% | § 1.94
820 46,634 197 17.3[$ 7.46 35.0% |$ 1148
832 60,286 202 16.2 | $ 2.03 33.6% | $ 3.05
833 134,734 452 19.7 | $ 1.55 39.7% | § 2.57
834 19,061 75 16.2( $ 4.60 18.3% | $ 5.63
844.845" 167,008 674 129§ 2.89 26.2% | $ 3.92
848 442,090 1,442 306 (% 1.08 49.6% | $ 2.14
850 33,197 136 21.3|$ 5.90 40.8% | $ 9.96
851 94,583 373 2058 1.45 41.4% | $ 2.47
854 191,523 730 26.1|$% 1.62 38.1% | § 2.62
855 290,389 1,009 31.8|$% 0.88 53.9% | $ 1.90
856 719,975 2,598 302 | % 1.51 40.4% | § 2.54
860 36,282 154 1751 8% 8.18 33.4% |$ 12.28
864 457,090 1,471 19.2]$ 3.26 249% | $ 4.35
870 14,580 57 11.5]8% 2.31 471% | $ 4.37
871.872 121,782 463 2191 $ 1.67 38.2% [ § 2.69
874.875 510,711 1,747 29.1 | § 1.27 44.8% | $ 2.30
880 23,883 94 14.8 | $ 5.01 46.8% | $ 9.42
888 2,755 13 46| 8% 33.39 39% |$ 3475
891 1,461 14 40($% 41.10 29% |$ 4233
892 1,769 17 511% 31.83 40% | $ 33.14
894 66,251 262 156 | $ 7.53 14.6% | $ 8.81
901 1,069,771 3,419 259 | % 2.19 31.3% | $ 3.19
904 94,312 260 185( % 1.28 202% | $ 1.61
905 642,499 2,241 3648 1.14 50.8% | $ 2.32
906.907 1,512,377 4,911 384 (% 0.08 92.5% | $ 1.08
916.917 255,363 909 222|% 2.04 32.0% | $ 2.99
921 398,098 1,490 26.6 | $ 1.29 44.8% | $ 2.34
923 265,030 1,019 18.6 | $ 1.69 37.8% | $ 2.71
928 408,829 1,479 29.3 | $ 1.38 415% | § 2.36
929 2,516,163 8,056 36.4|$ 0.65 60.0% | $ 1.62
932 1,291,346 4,379 31.3|$% 0.91 514% | § 1.88
933.934 1,806,978 6,056 322|9% 1.28 43.4% | $ 2.25
936 656,485 1,959 314 (% 0.76 57.0% | $§ 1.76
944.945" 11,539 643 9.0% 4.59 18.5% | $ 5.63
950" 39,881 187 68.1 8% 0.90 57.4% | $ 2.11
955 1,584,508 5,191 371 % 0.54 64.1% | $ 1.50
960" 96,004 397 26.2 | % 3.21 23.2% | § 4.18
961 635,939 2,180 307|% 1.01 48.9% | $ 1.99
962.963 697,087 2,493 28.1|$% 0.97 50.6% | $ 1.97
964 89,491 353 15.0 | $ 2.36 30.2% | $ 3.38
965 68,996 247 1471 % 2.42 29.7% | $ 3.45
967 64,284 238 145 % 2.73 26.4% | $ 3.71
968 65,281 248 146 | § 3.19 23.5% | $ 4.17
992 445,159 1,313 227 $% 1.03 51.3% | $ 2.12
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REVISED Att. A, Al 45, 11/20/14
Route Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
Passengers | Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger
MTS ACCESS 417,717 1,500 21($ 31.62 13.0% | $  36.32
SVCC 125,905 504 211§ 1.36 Note 11 [ § 2.38
SERVICE CATEGORY Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
Passengers | Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger
Premium Express 286,428 1,197 215 $ 5.50 43.2% | $ 9.68
Rapid Express 17,666 1,104 256 % 4.86 45.3% | § 8.89
Express 2,457,794 9,022 316|$ 2.60 28.8% | $ 3.65
Light Rail 39,694,633 120,920 2273 | % 0.70 59.8% | $ 1.74
Rapid 1,658,456 5,294 334 |% 2.35 324% | $ 3.47
Urban Frequent 38,270,989 125,361 355(% 1.58 39.4% | § 2.60
Urban Standard 11,425,215 39,436 2669 1.56 394% | $ 2.57
Circulator 725,279 2,782 176 $ 2.21 31.8% | $ 3.24
Rural 72,236 306 13.0 | § 9.79 11.6% | § 11.07
Demand-Responsive 417,717 1,500 2119 31.62 13.0% |$ 36.32
MODE Annual Avg. Weekday | Passengers/ Subsidy per Farebox Cost Per
Passengers | Passengers | Revenue Hour Passenger Recovery | Passenger |
Light Rail 39,694,633 120,920 22731 % 0.70 59.8% | $ 1.74
Fixed Route Bus 54,914,063 184,503 324 | % 1.68 38.3% | § 2.73
Demand-Responsive 417,717 1,500 21| % 31.62 13.0% | $§ 36.32
Rural 72,236 306 13.0] $ 9.79 11.6% | $ 11.07
System Totals | 95,026,413 | 306,923 | 459 | $ 1.40 | 43.0%| $  2.46 |

Note 1: (*) Route discontinued in FY14. (*) New route in FY14.

Note 2: After federal JARC grant, Route 905 subsidy/passenger is $0.77.

Note 3: After federal JARC grant, Route 929 subsidy/passenger is $0.57.

Note 4: After federal JARC grant, Route 932 subsidy/passenger is $0.76.

Note 5: After federal JARC grant, Route 955 subsidy/passenger is $0.41.

Note 6: After federal JARC grant, Route 960 subsidy/passenger is $1.61.

Note 7: After federal JARC grant, Route 967 subsidy/passenger is $1.96. Route 968 subsidy/passenger is $2.44

Note 8: City of Coronado subsidized fares for summer service on Route 904. Subsidy/passenger after payment is $1.14.
Note 9: After Rural 5311 grant, Routes 888, 891, 892, and 894 subsidy/passenger is $5.66.

Note 10: After Rural 5311 grant, Route 864 subsidy/passenger is $2.86.

Note 11: SVCC fares and one-half of the subsidy are paid for by NCTD resulting in a 72% farebox recovery.

Note 12: Routes 201, 202, 204 & 235, SANDAG reimburses MTS for the net operating cost (operating cost less fare revenue) using TransNet funds.
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FY 2014: YEAR END
OPERATIONS REPORT

MTS Board of Directors
November 20, 2014

Policy 42 Evaluation Criteria

CUSTOMER FOCUSED/COMPETITIVE ' INTEGRATED |

PRODUCTIVITY

¢Total Passengers

* Average
Weekday
Passengers

* Passengers/
Revenue Hour

* Passengers/
In-Service Hour

QUALITY

* Passenger
Load Factor

e On-Time
Performance

* Accidents/
100,000 Miles

* Comments/
100,000
Passengers

* Mean Distance
Between Failures

*Route
Headway

® Span-of-
Service
Consistency

¢ Service
Availability

SUSTAINABLE

T S
| CONNECTIVITY RESOURCES

e In-Service
Miles

¢ [n-Service
Hours

¢ Peak Vehicle
Requirement

EFFICIENCY

* In-Service
Speed

¢ In-Service/
Total Miles

e In-Service/
Total Hours

¢ Farebox
Recovery Ratio

o Subsidy/
Passenger
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Total Passengers
Year-over-year improvement by Route, Category, and System
% Change

Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY13-

FY14
Premium Express 310,455 308,912 286,428 -7.3%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) = — 17,666 -
Express 2,329,041 2,366,370 2,457,794 3.9%
Light Rail 32,674,616 | 29,699,366 39,694,633 33.7%
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) -| 1,557,568 1,658,456 6.5%
Urban Frequent 38,311,741 | 38,457,861 38,270,989 -0.5%
Urban Standard 13,647,404 | 11,984,646 11,425,215 -4.7%
Circulator 841,764 773,698 725,279 -6.3%
Rural 41,819 45,180 72,236 59.9%
Demand-Response 355,300 379,415 417,717 10.1%
System 88,512,140 | 85,573,016 95,026,413 11.0%
Fixed-Route Bus 55,482,224 | 55,494,235 54,914,063 -1.0%

— FTA sets service standards
— FTA caps fares

ADA Paratransit

* Required by Americans with Disabilities Act

¢ Most expensive service provided by MTS

¢ Ridership up 10.1% FY13 to FY14
— Up again 15% so far in FY15 — est. $2.2 million additional cost

¢ Few opportunities to save costs or increase revenue...

— MTS has a favorable contract rate for operations

FTA guidance on ADA paratransit is evolving

MTS using technology to improve efficiency
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L3 .
Ridership: FY15 through October 2014
40,000,000
35,000,000
30,000,000
w 25,000,000
o0
£ 20,000,000
B
@ 15,000,000
0 10,000,000
5,000,000
i FY15 . FY14
WFixed-Route Bus | 19,700,434 _ 18,789,885
@Trolley _ 13,977,605 _ 13,851,097
‘@Systemwide Ridership. 33,847,218 32,788,088
Year-to-date, system ridership has increased 3% in FY15 over FY14.

Average Weekday Passengers

Year-over-year improvement by Route, Category, and System

# Change |% Change

Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY13- FY13-

FY14 FY14
Premium Express 1,221 1,214 1,197 (17) -1.4%
Rapid Express (Routes 280, 290) - - 1,104 - -
Express 8,422 8,631 9,022 391 4.5%
Light Rail 97,401 87,955 | 120,920 32,965 37.5%
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) - 4,862 5,294 432 8.9%
Urban Frequent 125,394 125,383 | 125,361 {22) 0.0%
Urban Standard 46,467 41,228 39,436 {(1,792) -4.3%
Circulator 3,582 2,966 2,782 (184) -6.2%
Rural 265 227 306 79 34.8%
Demand-Response 1,302 1,367 1,500 133 9.7%
System 284,054 273,833 | 306,922 | 33,089 12.1%
Fixed-Route Bus 185,351 184,511 | 184,503 (8) 0.0%
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Passengers per Revenue Hour
Improve route category average

R % Change

Route Categories FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY13-FY31 a
Premium Express 21.9 21.3 21.5 0.9%
Rapid Express {Routes 280, 290) - - 25.6 -
Express 33.9 32.2 31.6 -1.9%
Light Rail 187.7 160.6 227.3 41.5%
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) - 34.3 33.4 -2.6%
Urban Frequent 37.5 37.0 35.5 -4.1%
Urban Standard 29.6 28.0 26.6 -5.0%
Circulator 16.5 15.4 17.6 14.3%
Rural 9.4 9.4 13.0 38.3%
Demand-Response 2.1 2.1 2.1 0.0%
System 45.0 42.3 45.9 8.5%
Fixed-Route Bus 34.3 33.5 32.4 -3.3%

On-Time Performance
Route Categories Senvice Change GOAL
Jan. 2013 Jun. 2013 | Sept. 2013 | Jan. 2014 | Jun. 2014
Premium Express 98.4% 98.8% 91.9% 99.2% | - 1 90.0%
Rapid Express (Rts. 280, 290) - - - - 85.7% | 90.0%
Express ] 81.0% 81.8% 80.0% 80.2% 83.3% | 90.0%
Light Rail 93.2% 93.1% 90.2% 88.9% 88.8% | 90.0%
Blue Line 91.8% 96.6% 79.3% 78.9% 77.2% | 90.0%
Orange Line 92.9% 91.9% 95.6% 90.6% 90.7% | 90.0%
Green Line 97.2% 97.2% 97.2% 97.5% 96.2% | 90.0%
Rapid (SuperLoop, Route 235) 91.2% 90.0% 84.0% 88.6% 90.8% | 85.0%
Urban Frequent 83.6% 79.6% 83.4% 82.1% 81.2% | 85.0%
Urban Standard 84.9% 83.1% 86.0% 83.1% | 86.1% | 90.0%
Circulator 87.4% 91.6% 86.6% 92.4% 90.5% | 90.0%
Rural N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Demand-Response N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
System 85.7% 84.1% 85.1% 84.5% 85.0%
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Mean Distance Between Failures

Improve operator average

Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
Directly-Operated Bus 9,706 11,167 12,405
Contract Services Bus 10,908 10,190 9,265
Light Rail 476,369 . 325,354 430,189

Preventable Accidents
per 100,000 Miles

/ITI{JI’OVG operator average

Mode/Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
Directly-Operated Bus 1.47 142 1.49
Contract Services Bus 0.89 1.13 1.30
Light Rail 0.04 0.04 0.02

“Preventable” is not necessarily at-fault or involve a violation. This measure is used
as a training tool when MTS’ own investigation reveals that operator action could have
improved the outcome.
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Comments per 100,000 Passengers

Improve operator average

Mode/Operator FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 :f(f:i'\‘('ﬁ
Directly-Operated Bus 5.7 5.8 4.6 -20.7%
Contract Services Fixed-Route Bus 8.3 8.7 6.9 -20.7%
Light Rail 1.4 3.0 1.7 -42.7%
General System 0.8 1.0 0.4 -60.0%

Farebox Recovery Ratio

Meet TDA requirement of 31.9% system-wide for fixed-route

excluding regional routes which only require 20%

Mode FY 2012 | FY 2013 | FY 2014 :;f:;:ii
Fixed-Route (No Premium Exp./Rapid Exp.) 36.7% 39.6% | 38.3% -1.4%
Premium Express 46.0% 46.5% | 43.2% -3.3%
Rapid Express - -| 453% -
Light Rail 57.2% 55.3% | 59.8% 4.5%
System 42.8% 42.6% | 43.0% 0.4%
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New Service/Major Service Changes
RAPID CORRIDOR RIDERSHIP

Interstate 15 Corridor (July-Oct. 2014): Weekday ridership up 60%. Potential
ridership increase of over 400k passengers annually.

Mid-City Rapid (Oct. 2014): El Cajon Blvd. corridor weekday ridership up 12%.

Corridor 2013 2014 % Increase
(Routes 20, 810, 820, (Routes 20, 235,
850, 860, 880) 270, 280, 290)
[-15 5,338 8,546 60.1%
Corridor 2013 2014 % Increase
(Routes 1, 15) {Route 1, 215)
Mid-City 9,967 11,120 11.6%

New Service/Major Service Changes
TRIAL SERVICES
Passengers/Revenue Hour % Over Average
Route Category | 12-mo. | Current (Under) Weekday
Average | Trial Goal | Actual Goal Boardings
Route 14 i o
(Grantille-La Mesa) 17.6 11.5 10.2 11.2% 261
Route 170 9
(Adams Ave. Exp.) 31.6 25.0 7.4 -70.4% 161
Route 270 o
(RB-Sorrento Mesa) 25.6 21.0 143 -31.9% 67
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FY 2014

Trolley Highlights

Wayne Terry

Chief Operating Officer

e Accidents: 20 (FY14)
vs. 18 (FY13)

transit agencies:

TRAIN ACCIDENTS

FY 2014

e Compared to other California rail

—Sacramento: 0.55
—LA Metro Blue/Gold Lines: 0.66
=San Jose VTA: 1.99

—San Francisco MUNI: 1.35

Accidents per 100K
Miles

0.65 0.59 0.65

0.4
0.2

O W
FY FY FY FY FY
10 11 12 13 14
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SPECIAL EVENTS SERVICE
FY 2014

* Special Events Serviced: 185

* Special Event Train Trips 2,352 R meisi

* Special Events Service
Revenue: $ 925,568

SIEMENS S70US LRV PROCUREMENT
FY 2014
¢ FY14 remaining LRVs
delivered fulfilling the 65 car
order.

* Mixed consist operations
SD100-570 continues to be
successful.

¢ SD100 communications
retrofit was completed.

* No liquidated damages.
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Hegenscheidt U2000-150
Wheel -Truing Machine

e Replaces the Hegenscheidt wheel-
truing machine installed in 1987

* Provides computer assisted wheel-
truing to enhance wheel flange
profiling and extend the life of the
wheel

* Improved efficiency by wheel-truing
both axle wheels simultaneously

* Enhanced protection from wheel
shavings is provided for the wheel-

TRACTION POWER SUBSTATION PROJECT

FY 2014

e Completed Orange Line substation
breaker retrofit project

e Low-floor - substation
enhancement project — 17 new
traction power substations have
been received and set in place.
This fulfills the order.

10
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MASTER CONCESSIONAIRE SERVICES

FY 2014
Annual Revenue to MTS
$250,000
$222,532
$200,000
$171,994
$150,000 - $143,824
$100,000
$50,000 $32,772
s_

FY 10 Fy 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14

BLUE LINE REHABILITATION
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24th Street Statlon

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2014

14
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Centralized Train Control -

Green Line:

¢ Imperial Terminal to Santee via
Mission Valley

Blue Line:

¢ [mperial Station to San Ysidro

¢ America Plaza to Imperial Station —
Equipment installed, software
refinement in progress

Orange Line:
¢ Indesign

Train Tracking

FY 2014
MTS Bus Highlights

Bill Spraul
Chief Operating Officer

16
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Summary

Ridership
Financial Management

Service Quality

RAPID Service

Call Center Implementation
Additional Highlights

Ridership

¢ Fixed-Route: 54,914,063
passenger trips

e Access Paratransit: 417,717
passenger trips

— Increase of 10% over 2013

e RAPID Service: 620,000
passenger trips to date

17
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Financial
Management/Sustainability

* Farebox recovery ratio better than goal,
38.3% vs. 35.3%

¢ Achieved overall fixed-route, RAPID and
paratransit budget while controlling costs

e MTS Access cost per trip decreased by 1.2%

Service Quality

Customer complaints decreased by 11.6%

On-time performance maintained, at 0.6%
better than 2013

Safety continues to be an area of focus with
reducing preventable accidents the top priority

Fleet reliability increased by 8.6% vs. 2013

18
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RAPID Service

In June 2014, we launched Route 235 (I-15), the first of three new RAPID routes.
Routes 215 and 237 were implemented in early October 2014.

* Fleet consists of 47 special RAPID-branded New Flyer articulated buses.

* Route 235 provides service between Downtown & Escondido along I-15.
- Over 400,000 passenger trips to date

* Route 215 (Mid-City Rapid) provides service between Downtown & SDSU.

¢ Route 237 (UCSD/Miramar College) connects I-15 communities to Miramar
College, UTC and UCSD via Mira Mesa Blvd.

e Routes 215 and 237 combined have over 220,000 passenger trips to date.

* SuperLoop routes continue to excel due to the student pass program
partnership with UCSD.

- 1,615,372 passenger trips

- Increase of ~30% this fall over fall 2013

Call Center Implementation

In April 2014, MTS procured and installed a new call management
system. MTS’ three call centers now use this system and have been
consolidated in to one coordinated team within Bus’ Support Services.

— MTS Customer Service

- MTS Information and Trip Planning

- Compass Card Program
Key improvements since implementing the new call management
system and call center consolidation:

- Customer Service - Information and Trip Planning
o Abandoned calls down 86% o Abandoned calls down 34%
o Caller wait time down 79% o Caller wait time down 38%

o Average time per call down 7%

- Compass Card
o Abandoned calls down 21%

19
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Additional Highlights
50 new CNG regular service Gillig buses placed

in service

e 47 new Rapid CNG articulated New Flyer buses
placed in service

57 new Paratransit vehicles placed in service
6 new Minibus vehicles R Y,

placed in service

Added Commuter Express
buses in to the RAPID fleet

Additional Highlights

* Completed construction
of the LEED-Silver South
Bay Maintenance Facility
and successfully relocated
the administration &
maintenance facilities

* Added dispatching
resources and RTMS (GPS-based CAD/AVL system)
to Commuter Express services

* Rehabilitated East County bus stops on rural routes

20
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1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
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Agenda Item No. f‘ﬁ

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:

FISCAL YEAR 2014 FINAL BUDGET COMPARISON (MIKE THOMPSON)
RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors receive a report for information.

Budget Impact

None.
DISCUSSION:

With the completion of the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR), the FY 2014 budget can be reviewed and compared with actual audited
financial results. Attachment A-1 combines the operations, administration and other
activities results for FY 2014. Attachment A-2 details the FY 2014 combined operations
results and Attachments A-3 to A-8 present budget comparisons for each San Diego
Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) operation. Attachment A-9 details budget
comparisons for MTS Administration, and A-10 provides FY 2014 results for MTS'’s other
activities (Taxicab/San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company). Attachment A-11
details subsidy revenue and other non-operating revenue and expenses. Attachment A-
12 details MTS’s contingency reserve balance. Attachment A-13 details the balances of
all reserve accounts.

Qverall Results

For FY 2014, MTS had an excess of revenues over expenses of $2,253,000. The
amended budget assumed an excess of revenues over expenses of $1,824,000, and the
final resulted in bringing in an additional $429,000.

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 ¢ (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS} is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
{nonprofit public benefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trolley, Inc., a 501{c)(3) nonprofit corporation, In cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab administrator for seven cities.

MTS member agencies include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santee, and the Gounty of San Diego.



A comparison of the results against the amended budget is outlined below.
REVENUES

Fare Revenue

Passenger revenues were $96,662,000 compared to $96,890,000 in the amended
budget for an unfavorable variance of $228,000 (-0.2%). This was due to

lower-than-anticipated ridership in the second half of the fiscal year.

Other Operating Revenue

Other operating revenues were $8,753,000 compared to $7,995,000 in the amended
budget for a favorable variance of $758,000 (9.5%).

EXPENSES

Overall, operating expenses were $240,798,000 compared to an amended budget of
$239,213,000 for an unfavorable variance of $1,585,000. This was due to energy costs.

Total personnel costs for the fiscal year totaled $115,953,000 compared to an amended
budget of $115,957,000, which resulted in a favorable variance of $4,000 (0.0%).

Total outside service expenses for the fiscal year totaled $79,838,000 compared to an
amended budget of $79,948,000, which resulted in a favorable variance of $110,000
(0.1%).

Total energy costs for the fiscal year totaled $27,251,000 compared to the budget of
$25,593,000, resulting in an unfavorable variance of $1,658,000 (-6.5%). The
unfavorable variance is due to increased natural gas and electricity rates.

Subsidy Revenue and Other Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses

Attachment A-11 details subsidy revenue and other non-operating revenue and
expenses. Total subsidy and other non-operating revenues for the fiscal year totaled
$137,636,000 compared to $136,152,000 in the amended budget for a favorable
variance of $1,484,000 (1.1%). This was primarily due to additional TransNet operating
support revenues received, plus gains on the sale of assets that were not budgeted.

Reserves

Attachment A-12 details the adjustments to MTS’s contingency reserve balance. The
ending reserve balance on June 30, 2013, was $26,588,000.

For FY 2014, MTS had an excess of revenues over expenses before reserves of
$2,266,000. This balances needs to be adjusting for interest, other adjustments, and the
income or loss from SD&AE and Taxicab Administration results (which are self-funded).
The total of the adjustments is a decrease of $25,000, and the net change for the fiscal
year is an increase of $2,241,000, resulting in a contingency reserve balance on June
30, 2014 of $28,829,000. This balance represents 11.7% of the MTS FY 2014 operating



expense budget. The goal is for MTS to increase the contingency reserve to 12.5% of
the operating budget by FY 2016.

MTS has a number of other reserve accounts, and the balances for each account are
listed on Attachment A-13.

Paul C\Jablonski
Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Comparison to Budget
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

MTS
CONSOLIDATED
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014
JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

Passenger Revenue $ 96662 $ 96890 $ (228) -0.2%
Other Revenue 8,753 7,995 758 9.5%
Total Operating Revenue $ 105415 $ 104885 % 530 0.5%
Personnel costs $ 115953 $ 115957 $ 4 0.0%
Qutside services 79,838 79,948 110 0.1%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 9,517 9,566 49 0.5%
Energy 27,251 25,593 (1,658) -6.5%
Risk management 4,878 4,870 (7) -0.1%
General & administrative 2,275 2,173 (102) -4.7%
Vehicle/facility leases 1,087 1,106 19 1.7%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 0) 0 0 0.0%
Depreciation = < - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 240,798 $ 239213 $ (1,585) -0.7%
Operating income (loss) $ (135,383) $ (134328) $ (1,055) -0.8%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 137,636 136,152 1,484 1.1%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ 2253 $ 1,824 $ 429 23.5%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)
] YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 9,662 $ 9689 $ (228) -0.2%
Other Revenue 1,291 689 602 87.3%
Total Operating Revenue $ 97953 $ 97579 $ 374 0.4%
Personnel costs $ 97674 $ 97977 % 304 0.3%
Outside services 66,270 66,550 280 0.4%
Transit operations funding - - - -

Materials and supplies 9,498 9,541 43 0.4%
Energy 26,449 24,844 (1,605) -6.5%
Risk management 4,496 4,512 16 0.4%
General & administrative 347 328 (19) -5.8%
Vehicle/facility leases 802 822 20 2.4%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -

Administrative Allocation 27,717 27,717 0 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -

Total Operating Expenses $ 233253 $ 232291 $ (961) -0.4%
Operating income (loss) $ (135300) $ (134712) $ (588) -0.4%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 135,300 134,712 588 0.4%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ © $ © $ 0 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS

TRANSIT SERVICES (SAN DIEGO TRANSIT CORPORATION)

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

Att. A, Al 46, 11/20/14

JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 27,781 % 27671  $ 111 0.4%
Other Revenue 34 5 29 587.7%
Total Operating Revenue $ 27816 $ 27676 $ 140 0.5%
Personnel costs $ 64984 $ 65,043 $ 59 0.1%
QOutside services 1,768 1,647 (121) -7.4%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 4,708 4,819 111 2.3%
Energy 6,107 5,710 (396) -6.9%
Risk management 2,791 2,535 (256) -10.1%
General & administrative 166 170 4 2.4%
Vehicle/facility leases 294 308 15 4.8%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 10,307 10,307 ©0) 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 91,124 $ 90540 $ (584) -0.6%
Operating income (loss) $ (63309) $ (62,864) $ (444) -0.7%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 63,309 62,864 444 0.7%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ - $ 0o $ 0) 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
RAIL OPERATIONS (SAN DIEGO TROLLEY, INCORPORATED)

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014
JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)

[ YEAR TO DATE ]

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 40,188 % 40,611 $ (423) -1.0%
Other Revenue 1,256 684 572 83.6%
Total Operating Revenue $ 41444 $ 41,295 $ 149 0.4%
Personnel costs $ 31,629 $ 31,770 $ 141 0.4%
Outside services 3,824 3,949 125 3.2%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 4,721 4,700 (21) -0.5%
Energy 11,219 10,426 (794) -7.6%
Risk management 1,690 1,952 262 13.4%
General & administrative 170 142 (28) -19.5%
Vehicle/facility leases 354 357 3 1.0%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 15,652 15,652 0 0.0%
Depreciation = - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 69259 $ 68947 $ (312) -0.5%
Operating income (loss) $ (278150 $ (27652) $ (163) -0.6%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 27,815 27,652 163 0.6%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ - $ 0o 5 0) 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS

MULTIMODAL OPERATIONS (FIXED ROUTE)
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

Passenger Revenue $ 23932 % 23810 $ 122 0.5%
Other Revenue - - - -
Total Operating Revenue $ 23932 % 23,810 $ 122 0.5%
Personnel costs $ 543 § 495 $ (48) -9.7%
Qutside services 42,371 42,700 330 0.8%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 15 8 8) -99.9%
Energy 6,316 6,078 (238) -3.9%
Risk management - - - -
General & administrative 1 2 71.1%
Vehicle/facility leases 15 17 2 10.2%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 1,227 1,227 0 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 5048 $ 50527 $ 39 0.1%
Operating income (loss) $ (26556) $ (26,717) $ 161 0.6%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 26,556 26,717 (161) -0.6%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ - $ 0 $ 0 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS

MULTIMODAL OPERATIONS (PARATRANSIT)
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%
Passenger Revenue $ 2,093 5 2129 $ (36) -1.7%
Other Revenue - - - -
Total Operating Revenue $ 2093 $ 2129 $ (36) -1.7%
Personnel costs $ 140 $ 141  $ 1 1.0%
Outside services 12,327 12,285 42) -0.3%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies - - - -
Energy 2,455 2,362 (93) -3.9%
Risk management 15 15 - 0.0%
General & administrative 2 5 2 47.3%
Vehicle/facility leases 140 140 0) 0.0%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 392 392 0 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 15471 $ 15340 $ (131) -0.9%
Operating income (loss) $ (133777 $ (13211) $ (167) -1.3%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 13,377 13,211 167 1.3%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ - $ 0 $ 0 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS

CONSOLIDATED CHULA VISTA TRANSIT OPERATIONS
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014

JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE &
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 2,668 % 2669 % ) -0.1%
Other Revenue B - - -
Total Operating Revenue $ 2,668 $ 2669 $ 2 -0.1%
Personnel costs $ 302 $ 339 % 37 11.0%
Outside services 5,643 5,631 (11) -0.2%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 54 14 (39 -271.0%
Energy 352 268 (84) -31.4%
Risk management - 10 10 -
General & administrative 8 9 1 13.1%
Vehicle/facility leases - - - -
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 139 139 ()] 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 649 $ 6410 $ (86) -1.3%
Operating income (loss) $ 3829) $ (3741) $ (88) -2.3%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 3,829 3,741 88 2.3%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ © $ 0 5 0) 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
CORONADO FERRY
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014
JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)
I YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ - $ - $ -
Other Revenue - - - -
Total Operating Revenue $ - $ - $ - -
Personnel costs $ - $ - $ - -
Outside services 183 183 - 0.0%
Transit operations funding - - -

Materials and supplies - - -

Energy - - -

Risk management - - -

General & administrative - - - -
Vehicle/facility leases - - -

Amortization of net pension asset - - -
Administrative Allocation - - - -
Depreciation - - - B
Total Operating Expenses $ 183 $ 183 $ - 0.0%
Operating income (loss) $ (183) $ (183) $ - 0.0%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 183 183 0) 0.0%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ 0 $ © $ 0) 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

ADMINISTRATION
CONSOLIDATED

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014
JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)

| YEAR TO DATE |

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ - $ - $ - -
Other Revenue 6,274 6,306 (32) -0.5%
Total Operating Revenue $ 6,274 % 6,306 $ (32) -0.5%
Personnel costs $ 17551 $ 17253 $ (298) -1.7%
Outside services 13,365 13,164 (201) -1.5%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 13 18 6 31.4%
Energy 792 739 (53) -72%
Risk management 366 341 (25) -7.3%
General & administrative 1,824 1,736 (88) -5.1%
Vehicle/facility leases 285 284 ® -0.3%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation (27,826) (27,826) 0 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 6,370 $ 5709 $ (661) -11.6%
Operating income (loss) $ 96) $ 597 $ (693) 116.1%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 2,349 1,227 1,122 91.4%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ 2253 % 1,824 $ 429 23.5%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OTHER ACTIVITIES
CONSOLIDATED

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014
JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)

| YEAR TO DATE |

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ - $ - $ - -
Other Revenue 1,188 1,000 188 18.8%
Total Operating Revenue $ 1,188 $ 1,000 $ 188 18.8%
Personnel costs $ 728  $ 727 % 2 -0.2%
Outside services 202 234 32 13.6%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 6 7 1 9.3%
Energy 11 10 @ -5.4%
Risk management 15 17 2 10.6%
General & administrative 104 109 5 4.8%

Vehicle/ facility leases 2 a = -

Amortization of net pension asset - z = =

Administrative Allocation 109 109 - 0.0%
Depreciation = < = -
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,175 $ 1,213  §$ 37 3.1%
Operating income (loss) $ 13 3 (213) $ 226 106.1%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues (13) 213 (226) -106.1%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ o $ 0 $ 0 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

MTS
COMBINED SUBSIDY AND OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2014
JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)

| YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Subsidy Revenue

Federal Revenue $ 59,749 $ 46,389 $ 13,361 28.8%
Transportation Development Act 44,974 57,780 (12,806) -22.2%
State Transit Assistance 3,987 4,264 (278) -6.5%
State Revenue - Other 1,631 1,600 31 1.9%
TransNet funds 26,918 26,248 670 2.6%
Other Local subsidies 1,644 1,634 11 0.7%
Total Subsidy Revenue $ 138903 $ 137915 $ 988 0.7%

Other Non-Operating Revenue and Expense

Investment Earnings $ 7532 % 7567 % (35) -05%
Other Non-Operating Income 568 213 356 167.2%
Other Non-Operating Expenses (9,367) (9,543) 176 -1.8%

Total Other Non-Operating Revenue
Revenue and Expense $ (127 $ (1,763) $ 496 -28.2%

Total Subsidy and Non-Operating
Revenue and Expense $ 137636 $ 136152 $ 1,484 1.1%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

MTS
CONTINGENCY RESERVE BALANCE
JUNE 30, 2014
(in $000's)
Balance, June 30, 2013 $ 26,588
Current Year Adjustments:
FY 2014 Income (Loss) Before Reserves 2,266

Remove Other Activities contributions to income:

SDAE (65)

Taxi 52

Interest allocation/ other (12)
Net Adjustments: 2,241
Balance, June 30, 2014 $ 28,829
% of MTS Operating Expense Budget 11.7%



Title
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

MTS
RESERVE BALANCES

JUNE 30, 2014

Amount Explanation

Contingency

Capital Project Reserve

Taxicab Contingency

Insurance

Billboard San Diego

Billboard Chula Vista

SD&AE

MTS JPA Residual

Land Management

Total

$ 28,828,747 For ongoing operations, future matching of grants; goal of
12.5% of operating budget per Policy 36

1,000,000 To hold prior year's revenue for the FY 2015 capital budget
242,410 For ongoing operations and future capital improvement needs

2,000,000 Established for potential future liability claims, minimum $2
million per Policy 46

158,915 Per agreement with city, used for improvements to right of way
1,324,571 Per agreement with city, used for improvements to right of way

1,576,036 Established from 1984 state payments for storm damage,
restriced for repair/improvement of line

146,780 Established from proceeds of legal settlement, restricted for
repairs to MTS Tower

439,254 For repair and maintenance of rental property

$ 35,716,713
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Metropolitan Transit System
FY 2014 - Final Budget Review

MTS Board of Directors Meeting
November 20, 2014

METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
FINAL YEAR END BUDGET COMPARISON - FY 2014
COMPARISON OF OPERATIONS TO BUDGET

(in $ 000')
ACTUAL BUDGET  VARIANCE VAR %
Operating Revenue $105,415 $104,885 S 530 0.5%
Operating Expenses 240,798 239,213 (1,585) -0.7%
Operating Income (Loss)  $(135,383) $(134,328) $ (1,055) -0.8%
Non Operating Revenue 137,636 136,152 1,484 1.1%
Net Income (Loss) $ 2,253 S 1,824 S 429  23.5%

« Operating Expenses - Energy unfavorable by $1.7M (-6.5%}) due to
Electricity and CNG costs
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METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
FINAL YEAR END BUDGET COMPARISON - FY 2014
COMPARISON OF NON OPERATING REVENUE TO BUDGET

(in $ 000's)
PM

ACTUAL  ADJUST  BUDGET  VARIANCE VAR %
Federal $ 59,749 § (12,800) S 46,389 S 561 1.2%
TDA 44,974 12,800 57,780 6)  0.0%
TransNet 26,918 0 26,248 670  2.6%
STA 3,987 0 4,264 278)  -6.5%
Other 2,008 0 1,471 538 36.6%
Total $137,636 § - $136,152 $ 1,484  1.1%

METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
FINAL YEAR END BUDGET COMPARISON - FY 2014
CONTINGENCY RESERVE

(in $ 000's)
Balance, June 30, 2013 $ 26,588
FY 2014 operations S 2,253
Other Activities Reserve/Interest Adjustments: (13)
Adjusted total from operations S 2,241
Balance, June 30, 2014 S 28,829

« Balance represents 11.7% of FY14 MTS Operating Budget
» Goal is to get to 12.5% by FY16
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1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 *» FAX (619) 234-3407

Agenda Item No. ﬂ

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:
OPERATIONS BUDGET STATUS REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2014 (MIKE
THOMPSON)
INFORMATIONAL ONLY
Budget Impact
None at this time.
DISCUSSION:

This report summarizes the year-to-date operating results for September 2014
compared to the fiscal year (FY) 2015 budget for San Diego Metropolitan Transit System
(MTS). Attachment A-1 combines the operations’, administrations’ and other activities’
results for September 2014. Attachment A-2 details the September 2014 combined
operations’ results and Attachments A-3 to A-8 present budget comparisons for each
MTS operation. Attachment A-9 details budget comparisons for MTS Administration,
and Attachment A-10 provides September 2014 results for MTS’s other activities
(Taxicab/San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company).

MTS NET-OPERATING SUBSIDY RESULTS

As indicated within Attachment A-1, for the year-to-date period ending September 2014,
MTS net-operating income unfavorable variance totaled $298,000 (-0.8%). Operations
produced a $587,000 (-1.6%) unfavorable variance and the administrative/other
activities areas were favorable by $289,000.

MTS COMBINED RESULTS

Revenues. Year-to-date combined revenues through September 2014 were
$28,136,000, compared to the year-to-date budget of $28,291,000, representing a
$155,000 (-0.5%) unfavorable variance.

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7480 » (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comptised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Rallway Company
(nonprofit public benefit corparations), and San Diego Vintage Trolley, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab administrator for seven cities.

MTS member agencies include the cities of Chula Vista, Coranado, El Gajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santes, and the County of San Diego.



Expenses. Year-to-date combined expenses through September 2014 were
$64,529,000, compared to the budget of $64,386,000, resulting in a $143,000 (-0.2%)
unfavorable variance.

Personnel Costs. Year-to-date personnel-related costs totaled $30,200,000, compared
to a budgetary figure of $30,571,000, producing a favorable variance of $371,000
(1.2%).

Outside Services and Purchased Transportation. Total outside services for the first
three months of the fiscal year totaled $21,671,000, compared to a budget of
$21,796,000, resulting in a favorable variance of $125,000 (0.6%). This is primarily due
to a favorable variance of repairs/maintenance costs within Operations, partially offset by
increased purchased transportation costs for ADA Paratransit services.

Materials and Supplies. Total year-to-date materials and supplies expenses were
$2,473,000, compared to a budgetary figure of $2,569,000, resulting in a favorable
expense variance of $95,000 (3.7%). This favorable variance is primarily due to revenue
parts costs within Operations.

Energy. Total year-to-date energy costs were $8,180,000, compared to the budget of
$7,366,000 resulting in an unfavorable variance of $814,000 (-11.0%). The unfavorable
variance is due to increased electricity rates that were higher than expected.

Risk Management. Total year-to-date expenses for risk management were $1,084,000,
compared to the budget of $1,110,000, resulting in a favorable variance totaling $26,000
(2.3%).

General and Administrative. The year-to-date general and administrative costs,
including vehicle and facilities leases, were $920,000 through September 2014,
compared to a budget of $974,000, resulting in a favorable variance of $54,000 (5.5%).

YEAR-TO-DATE SUMMARY
The September 2014 year-to-date net-operating income totaled an unfavorable variance
of $298,000 (-0.8%). These factors include unfavorable variances in energy costs and

operating revenue; partially offset by favorable variances in personnel, outside services,
materials, risk management and general and administrative costs.

Paul C\ Jablonskj
Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com

Attachment: A. Comparison to Budget
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

MTS
CONSOLIDATED
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)
YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

Passenger Revenue $ 25659 $ 25830 $ (171) -0.7%
Other Revenue 2,477 2,461 16 0.6%
Total Operating Revenue $ 28136 $ 28291 §$ (155) -0.5%
Personnel costs $ 30200 $ 30,571 % 371 1.2%
Outside services 21,671 21,796 125 0.6%
Transit operations funding - - - =
Materials and supplies 2,473 2,569 95 3.7%
Energy 8,180 7,366 (814) -11.0%
Risk management 1,084 1,110 26 2.3%
General & administrative 607 643 36 5.6%
Vehicle/ facility leases 313 331 17 5.2%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation - - - 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 64529 $ 64,386 $ (143) -0.2%
Operating income (loss) $ (36393) $ (36095 $ (298) -0.8%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues (361) (361) 0) 0.0%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ (36754) $ (36456) $ (298) 0.8%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 25659 $ 25830 $ (171) -0.7%
Other Revenue 111 177 (66) -37.3%
Total Operating Revenue $ 25770 $ 26,007 $ (237) -0.9%
Personnel costs $ 25558 $ 25696 $ 138 0.5%
Qutside services 18,229 18,286 57 0.3%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 2,458 2,561 103 4.0%
Energy 7,976 7,162 (814) -11.4%
Risk management 934 1,013 79 7.8%
General & administrative 6 84 78 92.6%
Vehicle/facility leases 249 258 9 3.4%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 7,290 7,290 - 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 62700 $ 62350 $ (350) -0.6%
Operating income (loss) $ (369300 $ (36343) $ (587) -1.6%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 390 390 - 0.0%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ (36540) $ (35953) $ (587) 1.6%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
TRANSIT SERVICES (SAN DIEGO TRANSIT CORPORATION)

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)

| YEAR TO DATE |

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 6713  $ 6944 $ (232) -3.3%
Other Revenue 0 1 (1) -64.0%
Total Operating Revenue $ 6,713  $ 6946 $ (232) -3.3%
Personnel costs $ 1729 $ 17,087 $ (209) -1.2%
Outside services 451 446 “4) -0.9%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 1,099 1,237 138 11.2%
Energy 1,687 1,770 83 4.7%
Risk management 440 482 43 8.9%
General & administrative (12) 46 58 126.7%
Vehicle/facility leases 84 92 8 8.8%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 2,763 2,763 - 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 23,807 $ 23923 $ 117 0.5%
Operating income (loss) $ (17,093) $ (16,978) $ (116) -0.7%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues (287) (287) - 0.0%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ (@17381) $ (17,265) $ (116) 0.7%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS

RAIL OPERATIONS (SAN DIEGO TROLLEY, INCORPORATED)

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 11,120 $ 10,864 $ 257 2.4%
Other Revenue 111 176 (65) -37.1%
Total Operating Revenue $ 11,231 $ 11,040 $ 191 1.7%
Personnel costs $ 780 $ 8225 % 365 4.4%
Outside services 861 998 137 13.7%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 1,339 1,299 (40) -31%
Energy 3,625 2,978 (646) -21.7%
Risk management 491 527 37 6.9%
General & administrative 14 34 21 60.1%
Vehicle/facility leases 92 92 0) -0.1%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 4,033 4,033 - 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 18313 $ 18,186 $ (127) -0.7%
Operating income (loss) $ (7,082) $ (7,146) $ 64 0.9%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues - - - -
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ (7,082) $ (7,146) $ 64 -0.9%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS

MULTIMODAL OPERATIONS (FIXED ROUTE)
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)
[ YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 6590 $ 6,736  $ (146) -2.2%
Other Revenue - - - -
Total Operating Revenue $ 659 $ 6736 $ (146) -2.2%
Personnel costs $ 120 $ 8 % (34) -40.5%
Outside services 11,716 11,879 163 1.4%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 16 21 4 20.7%
Energy 1,830 1,700 (130) -7.7%
Risk management - - - -
General & administrative 2 1 1) -79.7%
Vehicle/facility leases 5 1 18.6%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 361 361 - 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 14049 $ 14051 $ 2 0.0%
Operating income (loss) $ (7459 $ (7,316) $ (143) -2.0%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues - - - -
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ (7459) $ (7,316) $ (143) 2.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS

MULTIMODAL OPERATIONS (PARATRANSIT)
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015

Att. A, Al 47, 11/20/14

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ 601 $ 550 $ 50 9.1%
Other Revenue - - - -
Total Operating Revenue $ 601 $ 550 $ 50 9.1%
Personnel costs $ 19 $ 32 % 13 41.9%
Outside services 3,507 3,277 (229) -7.0%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies - - - -
Energy 699 590 (109) -18.5%
Risk management 4 4 - 0.0%
General & administrative - 2 -
Vehicle/facility leases 70 70 0.0%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 110 110 - 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 4409 $ 4085 $ (323) -7.9%
Operating income (loss) $ (3,808) $ (3535) $ (273) -7.7%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues - - - -
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ (3,808) $ (3535 $ (273) 7.7%
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%
Passenger Revenue $ 635 $ 736 % (101) -13.7%
Other Revenue - - - -
Total Operating Revenue $ 635 $ 736 $ (101) -13.7%
Personnel costs $ 7% % 78 $ 3 3.8%
Outside services 1,492 1,483 )] -0.6%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 4 4 ()] -0.8%
Energy 135 123 (11) -9.1%
Risk management - - - -
General & administrative 3 1 2 -153.4%
Vehicle/facility leases - - - -
Amortization of net pension asset - - = -
Administrative Allocation 23 23 - 0.0%
Depreciation - = - s
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,731 $ 1,712 $ (19) -1.1%
Operating income (loss) $ (1,096) $ 977) $ (119) -12.2%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 617 617 - 0.0%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ 479 $ (360) $ (119) 33.2%

Att. A, Al 47, 11/20/14

SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
CONSOLIDATED CHULA VISTA TRANSIT OPERATIONS

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OPERATIONS
CORONADO FERRY
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)
| YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%
Passenger Revenue $ . $ - $ = =
Other Revenue - - - -
Total Operating Revenue $ - $ - $ - -
Personnel costs $ - $ - $ - -
Outside services 47 47 - 0.0%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies - - - -
Energy - 5 a <
Risk management - 3 - <
General & administrative - - - -
Vehicle/facility leases - - - .
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation - - - -
Depreciation - = - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 47 $ 47 $ - 0.0%
Operating income (loss) $ 47 $ @7 $ - 0.0%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues 60 60 - 0.0%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ 13 % 13 % - 0.0%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

ADMINISTRATION
CONSOLIDATED

COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)

| YEAR TO DATE |

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR. %

Passenger Revenue $ - $ - $ - -
Other Revenue 2,306 2,189 117 5.4%
Total Operating Revenue $ 2306 $ 2189 $ 117 5.4%
Personnel costs $ 4451 $ 4690 $ 238 51%
Qutside services 3,434 3,484 49 1.4%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies 15 6 9 -160.0%
Energy 201 202 1 0.5%
Risk management 146 92 (54) -58.9%
General & administrative 576 533 (43) -8.0%
Vehicle/facility leases 64 72 8 11.7%
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation (7,318) (7,318) - 0.0%
Depreciation - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 1,570 $ 1,761 $ 191 10.8%
Operating income (loss) $ 736 $ 428 $ 308 -72.0%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues (751) (751) 0) 0.0%
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ @s) $ (323) $ 308 -95.5%
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SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM

OTHER ACTIVITIES
CONSOLIDATED
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2015
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
(in $000's)
[ YEAR TO DATE |
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR.%

Passenger Revenue $ - $ - $ - *
Other Revenue 60 95 (35) -37.2%
Total Operating Revenue $ 60 $ 9% $ (35) -37.2%
Personnel costs $ 191 $ 185 § (6) -3.0%
Outside services 8 27 19 70.4%
Transit operations funding - - - -
Materials and supplies - 2 -
Energy 3 ©) -11.4%
Risk management 3 4 1 18.1%
General & administrative 25 27 1 4.7%
Vehicle/facility leases - - - -
Amortization of net pension asset - - - -
Administrative Allocation 28 28 - 0.0%
Depreciaﬁon - = - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 259 $ 275  $ 17 6.0%
Operating income (loss) $ 199 $ (180) $ (19) -10.4%
Total public support and nonoperating revenues - - - -
Income (loss) before capital contributions $ 199 $ (180) $ (19) 10.4%
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Metropolitan Transit System
FY 2015 - September 2014
Financial Review

MTS Board of Directors Meeting
November 20, 2014

COMBINED MTS TRANSIT OPERATORS
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 - FY 2015

(in $000's)
ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR %
Fare Revenue $ 25,659 $ 25,830 ($171)  -0.7%
Other Revenue 111 177 (66) -37.3%
Total Operating Revenue  $25,770 $26,007 ($237) -0.9%

+ Fare Revenue - Increased over the prior year by $674K (2.7%)
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COMBINED MTS TRANSIT OPERATORS
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 - FY 2015

(in $000's)

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE VAR %
Personnel Costs $ 25,558 § 25,696 S 138 0.5%
Purchased Transportation 16,351 16,205 (146) -0.9%
Other Outside Services 1,878 2,081 203 9.8%
Energy 7,976 7,162 (814) -11.4%
Other Expenses 10,938 11,207 269 2.4%
Total Expenses $ 62,700 $ 62,350 $ (350) -0.6%

Purchased Transportation

- Higher than expected ADA Paratransit services

Energy
- Higher than expected SDG&E electricity rates

Other Expenses
- Favorable variances within Materials, Risk, and General & Administrative

METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 - FY 2015
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE LESS EXPENSES ($000’s)

Combined Net Operating Variance
MTS Operating Revenue
MTS Operating Expenses
Combined MTS Operators

(350)

MTS Administration / Other Activities

Total Combined Net Operating Variance
Variance Percentage

(237)
$  (587)
298
$ (289
-0.8%
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METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
COMPARISON TO BUDGET - SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 - FY 2015
ON-GOING CONCERNS

YTD

Budget Actual Projection

Sales Tax Subsidy Revenue

$401.1 M $100.3 M $401.1 M

Energy Prices

CNG $ 093 $ 092 $ 0.89
Diesel $ 318 $ 329 §$§ 282
Gas $ 315 $ 323 $ 280
Electricity $0.182 $0.210 $ 0.196
Passenger Levels 98.0M 247M 98.0M
State of California Budget $180M $4.1M $18.0M
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1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 » FAX (619) 234-3407

Agenda Item No. @

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

November 20, 2014

SUBJECT:

CHULA VISTA TRANSIT UPDATE (PAUL JABLONSKI)

INFORMATIONAL ONLY

Budget Impact
None. MTS currently funds the full operational cost of Chula Vista Transit (CVT).

DISCUSSION:

In April 2006, MTS completed the Comprehensive Operations Analysis which analyzed
all public transportation services provided by MTS and its various operators, and
concluded that enhanced bus services could be provided in Chula Vista by combining
Chula Vista Transit (CVT) services into a new contract to be bid by MTS. In 2006 MTS
awarded a contract for bus services which included services within Chula Vista to Veolia
(now Transdev). Following the contract award, staff began discussions with CVT staff
regarding consolidating the operation of services within Chula Vista under the new
MTS/Veolia contract. A Memorandum of Understanding was prepared and negotiated
between the parties and approved in 2007. Total consolidation of CVT under MTS was
not finalized at that time, however, due to the continued need for the maintenance facility
at the City’s Public Works Facility. Nevertheless the City Manager indicated the City's
intent to assume full control of the facility for City use in the near future, and MTS began
to seek an alternative.

MTS determined that the South Bay Bus Maintenance Facility (SBBMF), also in Chula
Vista, could be expanded to accommodate the addition of both CVT vehicles and the

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 e (619) 231-1466 » www.sdmts.com

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
{nanprofit public benefit carporations), and San Diego Vintage Trolley, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nenprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab adminlstrator for seven cilies.

MTS member agencies include the citles of Chula Vista, Coronado, Ei Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santes, and the County of San Dlego.



South Bay Bus Rapid Transit vehicles. The expansion project was completed in
September 2014 and MTS has indicated to the City that it will transition the operation of
the current CVT services to SBBMF in January. With the resolution of this last need to
maintain a separate CVT operation, MTS staff is negotiating final consolidation of CVT
into MTS.

i >

Paul C\Jablonski

Chief Executive Officer

Key Staff Contact: Sharon Cooney, 619.557.4513, Sharon.Cooney@sdmts.com
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/Il‘“\\\\\\\%\ Metropolitan Transit System

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000
San Diego, CA 92101-7490
(619) 231-1466 » FAX (619) 234-3407

Agenda Item No. Q

Chief Executive Officer's Report ADM 121.7

November 20, 2014

In accordance with Board Policy No. 52, Procurement of Goods and Services, attached are listings of
contracts, purchase orders, and work orders that have been approved within the CEO’s authority (up to
and including $100,000) for the period October 24, 2014 through November 11, 2014.

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000, San Diego, CA 92101-7490 » (619) 231-1466 ¢ www.sdmts.com =y

Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) is a California public agency comprised of San Diego Transit Corp., San Diego Trolley, Inc., San Diego and Arizona Eastern Railway Company
{nonprofit public benefit corporations), and San Diego Vintage Trolley, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, in cooperation with Chula Vista Transit. MTS is the taxicab administrator for seven cities.

MTS member agencies include the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, El Cajon, Imperial Beach, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, National City, Poway, San Diego, Santes, and the Gounty of San Dlego.
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